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MONDAY, OCTOBER 19, 2015 - - MORNI NG SESSI ON
JUDGE CLIFTON: W are back on record on the 19th of

Cctober, 2015. It's a Monday. |It's approximately 9:03 in the
norning and this is Day 18 of the m |k hearing.

We're in dovis, California. M name is Jill difton
['"'mthe United States Adm nistrative Law Judge who i s assigned
to take in the evidence of this hearing. | do not participate
in the decision, | merely certify the record. The record being
the record of exhibits and the record of the testinmny. W
W ll invite any corrections to the transcript before I certify
that record. W'Ill also have a briefing schedul e and everyone
I's wel come to submt a brief. A brief is to comment on the
evidence and the law. To the extent you wish to focus on a
particular area, you are welcone to do that. The briefs are to
assist in analyzing and digesting the contents of the record.
Al right. Briefs are not considered part of the record
because they are not evidence, but they are useful as argunent.

| would I'ike nowto take appearances of other United
States Departnent of Agriculture enployees. |f you would come
to the podium please, and not only identify yourself, but at
this juncture | would Iike you to again state what your job is,
as well as what you'd normally say as where you fit in the US.
Department of Agriculture.

MS. MAY: Good norning, Laurel May, L-A-URE-L, MAY,

wth the U S. Departnment of Agriculture, Agricultural Mrketing
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Service, Dairy Program and ny job is a Marketing Speciali st
and all other duties as assigned.

MS. ELLIOIT: Good norning. Panela Elliott, E-L-L-1-OT-T,
| ama Marketing Specialist with the USDA, AMS Dairy Program

MR RICHVOND: Good norning, WIIliam R chnond,
RI-GCHMOND, also with the USDA, AMS Dairy Prograns, and |
am al so a Marketing Specialist.

MR. SCHAEFER: Henry Schaefer, HE-NRY, SCHAEFER
Agricul tural Economi st for the Upper Mdwest MIk Mrketing
Order, Federal Order 30, and I"'mon detail here for USDA Dairy
Prograns.

M5. BECKER  Good norning, Lauren Becker, B-E-CK-E-R |I'm
an attorney in the Ofice of the General Counsel.

MR HLL: | amBrian HIl, B-RI1-A-N HI-L-L, an attorney
for the Ofice of the General Counsel.

JUDGE CLI FTON:  And now we'l | take appearances for
proponents and/ or opponents.

MR, BESHORE: Good norning, Marvin Beshore, MA-RV-I-N,
BEESSHORE, Attorney representing the proponents of Proposal
1, a California Dairies, Inc., Dairy Farmers of America, Inc.,
and Land O Lakes, Inc.

MR, HOLLON:.  Good norning, I'mE vin Hollon, E-L-V-1-N,
HOL-L-ON and I'menployed by Dairy Farners of America in
support of Proposal Nunmber 1.

JUDGE CLIFTON:  And what's your job with Dairy Farmers of
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America?

MR HOLLON: | deal with sone day-to-day m |k marketing

activities, some type of price forecasting. | deal wth

novenment of m |k around our Cooperatives to our customners,

and

the bal ancing of those mlk supplies. And then | deal wth

regul atory issues such as these types of hearings.

JUDGE CLI FTON:  Thank you.

DR ERBA: (Good nmorning, Eric Erba, EER1-C, E-RB-A
with California Dairies, Inc., and ny job title is Senior

President and Chief Strategy Oficer.

' m

Vi ce

MR, SCHAD: Good norning, Dennis Schad, SGHA-D, |I'm

Drector of Mddle-Atlantic MIk Sourcing and Regul atory
Affairs for Land O Lakes.

MS. VULIN  Good norning, Ashley Wulin, A-S-HL-EY,
V-U-L-1-N, I'man attorney with Davis, Wight, Trenaine,
representing the Dairy Institute of California.

DR SCH EK: Good norning, WIIliam Schiek, that's

S-CHI-EK |I"mEconomst for Dairy Institute of California,

proponents of Proposal 2.

MR. BLAUFUSS: Good norning, Rob Blaufuss, B-L-A-UF-US-S,

I'mw th the Dean Foods Conpany.
JUDGE CLI FTON:  And your job?

MR, BLAUFUSS: Senior Manager of Dairy R sk Managenent and

Econom cs.

JUDGE CLI FTON:  Seni or Manager of what?
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MR. BLAUFUSS: Dairy Ri sk Managenment and Economi cs.

JUDGE CLI FTON: Dairy R sk Managenment and Economics. So
you know, when you testify, you are going to have to slow it
down.

MR. DeJONG Janes DeJong, D-e-J-ONG | amthe Dairy
Policy and Economic Analyst for Hi |l mar Cheese, dairy-farner
owned manufacturer of cheese, whey, and m |k powder.

MR. DRYER Good norning, |'mGeg Dryer, GRE-G
D-R-Y-E-R Senior Vice President, Industry and Gover nment
Rel ations for Saputo Cheese USA

MR, VETNE: John Vetne, V-E-T-N-E. |'ma representative
for H I mar Cheese.

MR ZQLIN. Good norning, Alan Zolin, A-L-AN, Z-OL-I-N, |
am a consultant here representing H | mar Cheese, | advise them
on dairy policy and dairy supply chain issues.

MS. HANCOCK: Nicol e Hancock with Stoel Rives,
HANGCOGCGK ST-OEL, RI-V-E-S, and | represent the
California Producer Handl ers Associ ation and Ponderosa Dairy.

MR. LAI: Good norning, ny nane is Victor, last nane is
L-A-1, 1I'"m General Counsel with Producers Dairy Foods, a nenber
of the California Producers Handl ers Associ ati on.

JUDGE CLI FTON: Now, well before | have others identify
thensel ves, | just want to mention that Chip English is
present. He had a 9:00 tel ephone conference in a case that had

sonme urgency and he could not avoid taking that call, but he's
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in the building and when he cones back, | would like himto put
in his appearance.

And now | would like to take the appearances of others
who may not be part of a proponents team but are
partici pating.

MS. REED: Good norning, Kristine Reed, KR 1-S-T-1-NE
RE-E-D, with the MItner law firm MI-L-T-N-E-R representing
Select M|k Producers.

MR. MLTNER Good norning, Ryan Mltner, also with MItner
law firm representing Select MIk

MR METZGER. Erick Metzger, E-R1-CK MET-Z-GER
General Manager of National All-Jersey, |ncorporated.

JUDGE CLI FTON: National what?

MR METZGER: Al l-Jersey.

JUDGE CLIFTON: National All-Jersey, Incorporated. Thank
you. |s there anyone who has not yet cone forward who woul d
like to testify today? Not yet. W' re welcom ng anyone at any
time to drop in. If you are a dairy farner, we would like to
schedul e you at your convenience to the extent possible, and
we'll interrupt other w tnesses to do that.

Now, | would like to take sone announcenents,
prelimnary issues, and the |ike.

MS. MAY: Good norning, Laurel May with USDA. Wl cone back
for our continuing hearing. 1t's good to see all of you this

norning. As you know, anyone that would like to is welcone to
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testify in this hearing, as the Judge just nentioned. And if
anybody would |ike to question any of the witnesses, they may
do so by approaching the podi um

We are continuing to broadcast this hearing via live
audio feed. The like for the feed is at:

W, ans. usda. gov/ | i ve.

The court reporter is continuing to record official
transcripts for us, and those are hopefully avail abl e
approxi mately two weeks after the end of each hearing week, and
you can access those transcripts at our AVS Dairy website.

We al so have a few copies of some past exhibits in the
back of the roomon those tables if you would Iike to pick sone
of those up.

We do have a few logistics to tal k about this norning.
As you know, as we discussed |ast week, we will be noving this
hearing on Thursday and Friday of this week to the Piccadilly
Inn at the Airport, which is down on Cinton and MKinley. So
plan to be there at 9:00 on Thursday norning.

We al so thought it would be appropriate to tell you
kind of where we stand as far as scheduling goes. At this
poi nt we had hoped, and have made plans to have this hearing
| ast through Novenber 6th, but just as a back up, we have
schedul ed the Piccadilly Inn again for the foll ow ng week, the
week of Novenber, | guess it would be the 16th -- 9th. R ght.

The 9th. And that week has a Federal holiday in the mddle on
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the 11th. W haven't actually schedul ed that roomat the
Piccadilly for the 11th, so we were interested in kind of
getting sone feedback fromyou about whether, if we were here

t hat week, whether you would want to continue to push

through -- M. Vetne is nodding yes -- on Wednesday. Any other
nods or -- Ashley is yes; Marvin is yes, keep going. So like |
said, we don't exactly have the roomyet, but we'll see if we
can get it and we'll let you know how t hat goes.

We were unable to find anything |local for the follow ng
week, the week of November 16th. So if we're not done by the
end of the week of the 9th, our next best back up is two weeks
in Decenber for which we were able to get this building again,
Decenber 7th week, and Decenber 14th week. So just sort of for
pl anni ng purposes you can see what we have been able to
schedule. |Is there anything else | need to say about that?

JUDGE CLIFTON: No, that's excellent. My | have a show of
hands of those of you who think we mght finish by Novenber
6th? That was just a mght | got -- okay. Thank you,

M. Vetne.

MR, HOLLON:  Whuld you read the Decenber dates again?

M5. MAY: |If we needed to, we have reserved this building
for the week of Decenber 7th and the week of Decenber 14th. It
would require a little bit of shuffling around that first week,
but we woul d be here.

Ckay. So at the end of Friday, | believe M. Hollon
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was finished with his cross-examnation on his third set of
testimony. And | believe that we're going to start with
M. Hollon again this norning on his next set.

JUDGE CLI FTON:  Thank you, Ms. May. | would like to say,
agai n, how much | have appreciated the quality of everything
about this hearing. The presentati ons have been out standi ng,
and the | ogistics what the Agricultural Marketing Service
arranged for us is has been splendid. |'mjust delighted and I
t hank you

Qt her prelimnary issues or scheduling issues? | see
no one wanting to do that now, so we will resume the testinony
of M. Hollon on a new topic.

We're distributing the exhibit. Let's see, the nunber
of this exhibit, Ms. Elliott, do you have that right at your
finger tips?

MS. ELLIOIT: Yes, ma'am

MR. BESHORE: We actually have, if | mght, sorry to
interrupt, but there are four separate docunments for this, or
exhibits, for this fourth and final appearance of M. Hollon.

The first one is Exhibit 20A which has al ready been
given a place holder as Exhibit 20A, which is the couple of
pages of corrections to Exhibit 20, where there were sone ms
downl oaded or some erroneous nunbers on a couple of the colums
of one. So that's 20A

JUDGE CLI FTON: (kay. Stop there for just a mnute. |If we
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| ook at 20A, we still also need to | ook at 20 for other things
that are not in 20A?

MR BESHORE: Yes.

JUDGE CLI FTON:  Ckay.

MR, BESHORE: 20A has a cover page, which identifies the
four pages behind it. And there are four pages of Exhibit 20
which required correction. The corrected areas are highlighted
in yellow on the pages, they are 1.B.4, 1.B.5, 1.C 4, 1.C 5,
but yes, they need to be read with the rest of 20.

JUDGE CLI FTON: Excellent. This is very professionally
done. | like this. Thank you.

All right. So that one will not need anot her exhibit
nunber, but we should note that we are now tal ki ng about 20A.
| mean, it will need that number, but it won't need anot her
number in the sequence.

(Thereafter, Exhibit 20A was marked

for identification.)

MR. BESHORE: Ckay. We then have three other separate
exhibits. The testinony of Elvin Hollon, Fourth Statenent,
whi ch is cover plus twelve pages, | would ask be nmarked as the
next consecutive nunber.

JUDGE CLIFTON: And Ms. Elliott, wll that be 75?

MS. ELLIOIT: That's correct.

JUDGE CLIFTON: That will be 75.

(Thereafter, Exhibit 75 was narked
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for identification.)

MR, BESHORE: Thank you. Then exhibit of Elvin Hollon

(Fourth Statement), which is cover plus five pages. | would

ask we mark this as Exhibit 76, that has table 8.1.
(Thereafter, Exhibit 76 was narked
for identification.)

MR, BESHORE: And finally, a short well, a four-page

docunent, title, Proposal 1 Provision for Paynments by a Handl er

Qperating a Partially Regulated Distributing Plant, which

relates to part 76 of Proposal 1, in uniformpart 1000. 76.

ask that that be marked as Exhibit 77.

JUDGE CLIFTON: And it shall be so.

(Thereafter, Exhibit 77 was narked
for identification.)

JUDGE CLIFTON: So 75 is the testinony, and at the bottom
of that page is already typed Cooperatives' Exhibit 8, that
wll be -- that is 75. And 76 is Table 8.1; and 77 is Proposa
1 Provision for Paynents.

M. Hollon, you remain sworn. Wuld you again state
and spell your nane?

MS. HANCOCK:  Your Honor, M. Hancock. Your Honor, we're
still getting them

MR, BESHORE: We're still distributing some of the
exhi bits, your Honor.

JUDGE CLI FTON:  Very good. We'll hold off a monent. About
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how many did you receive, Ms. Elliott?

MS. ELLIOIT: | only received 75 and 76.

JUDGE CLIFTON: And they weren't clipped to the others?

MS. ELLIOTIT: No.

JUDGE CLIFTON: It doesn't seemright not to have
Aifford Carman there. Are you going to save hima set? |
woul d i magi ne he woul d want the paper. Let's put a set in his
place. |If they don't need it, they will do sonmething else with
it. Sometimes it's good to | ook at paper even though you have
got an electronic version. W'Il just accumulate for Cifford
Carman in that enpty chair. Al right.

Now, just to be sure, Ms. Elliott, now that you have
them | want to make sure you are nmarking themthe sane as |
am So the one that is 75 has near the bottom Cooperatives'
Exhibit 8 on it.

MS. ELLIOIT: Yes.

JUDGE CLIFTON: And the one that is 76 has just one
exhibit, Table 8.1. And the one that is Exhibit 77 says at the
top, Proposal 1 Provision for Paynents, |'mnot reading the
entire title, just that much.

MS. ELLIOIT: Yes.

JUDGE CLIFTON: Al right. Good. Thank you.

M. Hollon, you may state and spell your nane.

MR HOLLON  Elvin, E-L-V-I-N, Hollon, HOL-L-ON.

JUDGE CLI FTON: M. Beshore, you may proceed.
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MR, BESHORE: Thank you, your Honor.
DI RECT EXAM NATI ON
BY MR BESHORE:

Q Let's turnto Exhibit 20A first, M. Hollon

A | have it.

Q Ckay. Could you just walk us through this exhibit,
whi ch provi des sone corrected pages for a couple of the tables
in Exhibit 20; is that correct?

A, That is correct. There are four pages in each case.
There is a set of corrected nunbers, and then that's one page;
and then the follow ng page is where those corrected nunbers
woul d have inpacted a sunmary average or statistic. So the
first page is Table 1.B.4. And on that table there were prices
for the dass | Southern California announced price by CDFA for
11 months in February, one month in January that were incorrect
on the original subm ssion and now have been changed.

Q Just to be clear, 11 nonths in 2012, beginning with
February?

A, Correct.

Q And one nonth in 20137

A. Correct.

Q Gkay. That's Colum H?

A, Colum H And that would have affected the
subtractions in Colums | and J. Colum K al so contained data

that was erroneous, that's been replaced, and that woul d affect
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the subtractions in Colums L, M and N
Turning to Table 1.B.5 --

Q So just to be clear, on Table 1.B. 4, the rest of the
nunbers that are not in the yellow highlighting, highlighted
area 1.B.4 are the same as on Oiginal Exhibit 20?

A. Correct.

Q Ckay. Go on to the next page then

A. Table 1.B.5 contains changes where those nunbers woul d
have i npacted an average or a nedian cal culation, and those are
incolums H I, J, K L M and N, and they would only inpact
numbers that had 2012, and one nonth in 2013 dat a.

Q Gkay. And again, the nunbers on this Exhibit 1.B.5
which are not highlighted, are the same as on Exhibit 207?

A, Correct.

Q Thank you. Ckay.

A. Table 1.C. 4 is the next page where there are
corrections, and these tables were used to conpare, to show
price conparisons for out-of-nmarket handlers with in-market
handl ers, and the sanme nunbers woul d be corrected. So in Table
1.C. 4, Colum T would pull over the prices that were corrected
earlier. Colum U, the subtraction calculation; Colum C would
pul | over the prices corrected earlier; colum that's |abeled Z
mnus Y woul d be the correction for the subtractions; colum AF
woul d pull over the prices corrected; and colum AG the

correction for the subtractions.
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Table 1.C. 5 displays where there m ght be some average
or medi an cal cul ation that woul d have been inpacted by those
changes.
Q And again, on 1.C. 4 and 1.C. 5, only nunbers in the

yel | ow hi ghlighted area have changed from Exhi bit 20, correct?
A. Correct.
Q Gkay. Thank you.

Now, your testinmony, Exhibit 19, describes sone of the
data in Exhibit 20, and are there a couple of nunbers that you
stated in Exhibit 19 which change with the changes in
Exhi bit 20A?

A, That would be correct.

Q And | would note, your Honor, M. Hollon is just going
to verify the nunbers that changed. W're just going to note
t hose and where they are, we haven't provided substitute pages.
I[t's just small changes in a couple of nunbers, and we note
down and they wll be in the record.

JUDGE CLIFTON: Al right. So do people need to get their
20 out to doit, or is it better if we just take notes?

MR. BESHORE: Either way. | nean, | think you can take
notes and go, but if you have 19, it would be, if you have 19
and you want to refer to it, you could make your notes right on
it.

JUDCGE CLI FTON:  And do you want, let's see, the record copy

Is probably already gone. W won't -- so we won't try to
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change it on the record copy.

MR. BESHORE: No, | wasn't, | propose that we not change
the themthey are pretty mnor.

JUDGE CLIFTON: Al right. Good. Then for nmy purpose, |'m
just going to take good notes right now.

MR. BESHORE: So do you have those to be noted, M. Hollon?

MR HOLLON: | do.

MR, BESHORE: (kay.

MR. HOLLON:  On page 14, the second line up fromthe
bottom currently reads, "August 2012 through July 2015, the
short fall is 37 and 27 cents per hundredweight."” |In that
sentence, the 37 should be changed to 36, and the 27 should be
changed to 26.

And all of the other changes are on page 15. So the
first full sentence on the top of page 15, currently reads:

And for the nonths since then, the Northern California
price has been below the FMMO grid each year, by a | ow of 2
cents per hundredwei ght ($1.60 zone) to $0.33 in the $1.80
zone. In that sentence, the 2 cents should be changed to 3
cents, and the 33 cents shows no change.

In the second full paragraph, the second to | ast
sentence, currently reads:

"When conparing the annual CSO Sout hern California
price with the announced FMMO price at Phoenix, the difference

averages mnus 61 cents.”
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MR, BESHORE: Currently reads.
MR HOLLON:  I'msorry, mnus 62 cents, and that shoul d be
changed to m nus 61 cents.
BY MR BESHORE:
Q Ckay.
A In the third full paragraph, the second to the |ast
sentence currently reads:

“However, conparing the Southern California announced
price wth the Las Vegas price results in a difference of mnus
27 per hundredwei ght average for the August 2012 to July of
2015 period."

In that sentence, mnus 26 cents shoul d be changed to
read -- I'msorry -- mnus 27 cents should be changed to read
m nus 26 cents.

Q Those are the only inpacts in the Exhibit 19 which are
t he changes in Exhibit --
A Yes.
Q Al right. Gay. Thank you
JUDCGE CLI FTON:  Your voice trailed off. So what you said,
M. Beshore, was inpact from 20A?
MR BESHORE: Yes.
JUDGE CLI FTON:  Ckay.
MR, BESHORE: Thank you.
BY MR BESHORE:

Q Let's turn then, M. Hollon, to Exhibit 75, your fourth
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statenent of testinony, and it concerns the proposal regarding
producer - handl ers.

JUDGE CLI FTON:  And, M. Beshore, you are going to have to
work hard not to let your voice trail off because you did it
just then, and the only way I know you said producer-handl ers
is it says that on the exhibit.

MR BESHORE: |'Ill work on that.

JUDGE CLI FTON:  Thank you.

BY MR HOLLON:
COOPERATI VES' PROPOSAL 1 REGARDI NG PRODUCER- HANDLERS
The Cooperatives propose that producer-handlers ("PH'")
be regulated in the sane manner as in the proposed California
Federal M|k Marketing Order (FMMO as they are in other
orders, for exanple, 7 CFR Section 1030.10 (Producer-handl er
definition in Oder 30.) As we understand their operations,
all of the menbers of the California Producer Handlers
Associ ation woul d becone fully-regul ated handl ers under our
proposal. W consider the question of the treatnment of exenpt
quota to be a separate issue and will discuss it separately.
My testinony opens with significant points fromthe
final decision fromthe 2009, ten-order -- that's a correction
inthe witten testinony -- eleven should be ten.
BY MR BESHORE:
Q Yeah, your editor can't count right.

A. Starting that sentence over again.
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My testinony opens with significant points fromthe
final decision fromthe 2009, ten-order producer-handl er
hearing, which sets the stage for our proposal regarding |arge
producer - handl ers.

Q O regulating?
A, Regul ating large producer-handl ers.

JUDGE CLIFTON: |I'msorry, go back if you will. | don't
understand the reference to 2009, ten-order hearing. Meaning
it affected ten Federal Orders?

MR HOLLON  Yes, nma' am

JUDGE CLIFTON: Ckay. Thank you.

MR, HOLLON: Next is a summary of those points and the
neasure of the inpact not regulating |arge producer-handlers.
Finally, we present the |anguage of our proposal regarding
pr oducer - handl ers.

A, The 2009 national hearing on producer handlers

The 2009 -- substitute ten for eleven -- Federal Order
deci si on on producer-handl ers established:

1. The Secretary has clear authority to fully regulate
producer - handl ers operating within FMMO s.

This is a quote:

Prior rul emakings consistently articul ated USDA' s
authority to subject producer-handlers to ful
regul ation. For exanple, in a final decision for
t he Puget Sound Order, a predecessor to the

Paci fic Northwest Oder, USDA found that

producer-handl ers should continue to be exenpt
frompooling and pricing provisions of the order
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subject to further regulation if justified by
prevailing market conditions. This position was
amplified in a subsequent producer Sound fi nal
deci sion --

JUDGE CLI FTON: Start that sentence again, would you?

MR, HOLLON:
This position was anplified in a subsequent Puget
Sound final decision where USDA found that a
hearing should be held to consider the regul ation
of producer-handlers in the marketing area was
susceptible --

JUDCGE CLIFTON. I'msorry, you got to do that one again, if

you will.
MR, HOLLON:
This position was anplified in a subsequent Puget
Sound final decision, wherein USDA found that in a
hearing should be -- that a hearing shoul d be held
to consider the regulation of producer-handlers if
the marketing area was susceptible to being
affected by producer-handlers or if
producer-handl er sales to disrupt or operate to
the detrinent of other producers in the narket.
Such policy decisions was also articulated in the
JUDGE CLIFTON: | knowit's a quote, so start that one
agai n.
MR, HOLLON:

Such policy was also articulated in another
deci si on concerni ng producer-handlers in Texas and
t he Sout hwest plains. That decision concluded
that it would be appropriate to obligate
producer-handl ers to the pooling and pricing
provisions of the order, if it could be shown that
producer - handl ers cause market disruption.

75 Fed. Reg. 10122, 10147, (2010) (footnotes
omtted.)
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2.

The Secretary should apply his conclusions regarding

producer-handlers to all FMMO s, including this proposed

California FMMO. The 2010 decision noted specifically that

establishing reasonable limts on the sales of fluid mlk

products from producer-handl ers nmeet the policy objectives the

Agriculture Marketing Agreement Act (AMA).

BY MR HOLLON:

Q
A
Q
A

Thank you.

The following is a quote:

The record supports concluding that a direct

rel ati onship exists between producer-handl er size
and the potential for disorder. Mire
specifically, the record supports the concl usion
that adoption of a limt on producer-handlers
total nmonthly Cass | route disposition and sal es
of packaged fluid mlk products to other plants
across all orders is necessary to maintain orderly
mar ket i ng conditions.

75 Fed. Reg. At 10151 (2010)

Establishing a reasonable limt on total C ass
route disposition and sal es of packaged fluid mlKk
products in all producer-handler definitions for
all Federal MIk Marketing Orders unifies the
policy objective of the AMAA to establish and

mai ntain orderly marketing conditions.

75 Fed. Reg. At 1015 (2010)

That is the end of that quote.

The AVAA provides for "paynment to all producers and

associ ations of producers delivering mlk to all handlers of

uniformprices for all mlk delivered, irrespective of the uses
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f undanent al

Producer-handlers are dairy farns that process --
|'msorry, this is a quote -- producer-handlers
are dairy farms that process their own mlk
production. These entities nust operate one or
more dairy farms as a pre-condition to operating
processi ng plants as producer-handl ers.

75 Fed. Reg. At 10122 (2010)

Producer-handl ers are persons who operate dairy
farms and generally process and sell only their
own mlk production. A pre-condition to operating
a processing plant as a producer-handler is the
operation of a dairy farm

75 Fed. Reg. At 10147 (2010)

Nevert hel ess, the common criteria of al
producer-handl er definitions for all orders is a
requi rement that the entire operation be under the
sole risk and enterprise of the producer-handler.
75 Fed. Reg. At 10146 (2010)

That's the end of this quote.

The establishment of uniformprices to producers is a

obj ective of FMMOS.

A new quot e:

The AVMAA requires the setting of uniformprices to
producers regardl ess of howthe mlk of any single
dairy farmer is used and uniformprices to
simlarly situated handlers (Section 608c(5)).
Handl ers who are simlarly situated pay at |east a
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Q Wuld

the orders for mlk. Producers are paid at |east
a mninmumuniform (blend) price that is determ ned
t hrough market-w de pooling. A market-w de pool,

t hrough t he nechani sm of a producer-handl er
settlement fund, equalizes the classified use

val ues of --

you start that sentence again, please?

A mar ket -w de pool, through the mechani smof a
producer-settlement fund, enphasize the classified
use values of mlk --

Q Excuse ne, maybe just slow down a tinch and you will

catch the words. Go ahead, starred that sentence again.

A

A mar ket -wi de pool, through the mechani smof a
producer-settlenment found, equalizes the
classified use values of mlk pooled on an order
among handlers and determ nes a uniforned price
paid to producers. Market-w de pooling allows for
equitabl e sharing of the cost of supplying and
bal ancing the Class | nmarket. These two key
features of mlk orders, classified pricing and
mar ket -wi de pooling, provide the basic foundation
for orderly marketing and address the AMAA's
primary objective of ensuing orderly marketing.
75 Fed. Reg. At 10145-46 (2010)

Conti nui ng the quot e:

Over the years, USDA has repeatedly concluded that
mar ket -wi de pooling for nost orderly marketing
conditions nore conpletely and is one of the nost
i mportant marketing tools used to insure
uniformty and prices to producers.

(Footnote omtted.)

75 Fed. Reg. At 10148 (2010)

End of this quote.

5. The operations of producer-handl ers can disrupt the

establ i shnment of uniformprices.
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O greater significance, the record of this
proceedi ng indicates that all producer-handlers
enj oy a conpetitive pricing advantage over fully
regul at ed handl ers because of their exenption from
pooling and pricing provisions. This is not
surprising, as the exenption of any handl er from
the regulatory plan results in non-uniformprices
to handlers and | ower prices than woul d ot herw se
be uniformto producers. It is clear fromthis
proceeding that as the Cass | marketing of a
producer-handl er increase, the handlers' ability
-- tothe order's ability --

Q Excuse ne. Thank you

A

-- to set prices that are uniformto handlers and
producers is eroded.

Dependi ng on the volume of Cass | disposition and
sal es of packaged fluid mlk products to other

pl ants, the exenption fromobligation to account
for mlk at mninmumclassified prices and the
exenption from paynment into the
producer-settlenent fund the difference between

t he producer-handl ers use-value of mlk and the

bl end price beconme critical factors that give rise
to disorderly marketing conditions. Large
producer-handl ers becone increasingly able to
market fluid mlk at prices below those that can
be offered by fully regul ated handl ers because the
classified prices set by the order are not

uniform The exenption for paynent to the
producer-settlement fund renders the order unable
to set uniformprices to producers.

This final decision enphasizes that when any
handl er is exenpted from pooling and pricing,
regul at ed handl ers and producers whose mlk is
pool ed on an order are affected by the by that
exenption. Regulated handlers are affected
because they are obligated to nmake pool paynents
whi | e producer-handl ers are not obligated.
Producers are al so affected because handl er
exenmption results in fewer dollars available in
the pool, thus making the uniformprice to
producers |ower. Market Adm nistrator data in the
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reveal s that exclusion of producer-handler revenue
affects the total pool value in any Federal O der
mar ki ng area, where producer-handlers are present.
Total pool values are hundreds of thousands of
dollars |l ess every nonth than they woul d be, which
directly translates into | ower uniformprices paid

to producers. In markets where producer-handl ers
are not present, no inpact on total pool value
occurs.

75 Fed. Reg. At 10146 (2010)

That's the end of this quote.

6. The nmeasure of the producer-handl er advantage is
calcul ated to be the difference between the Class | price and
the blend price. The ability of the producer-handler to retain
this value is detrimental to the objectives of all producers

receiving the mninmumprice fromthe order.

Quot e:

As a result of their exenption from pooling and
pricing, producer-handlers, as handlers, are not
required to pay the mninumclass prices
establ i shed under the orders, nor are they, as
producers, granted m nimum price protection for
di sposal of surplus mlk. Producer-handlers, in
their capacity as handlers, are not obligated to
equal i ze their use value of mlk through payment
of the difference between their use-value of mlk
and the respective order's blend price into the
producer-settlenent fund. As such,
producer-handlers retain the full value of mlKk
processed and di sposed of as fluid mlk products
by their operation within the narketing areas.
75 Fed. Reg. At 10124 (2010)

Wi | e opponents to the elimnation of the
producer-handl er definitions argue otherw se, this
definition agrees with proponent argunents --

Q Start that sentence again, please.

A
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Wi | e opponents to the elimnation of the
producer-handl er definitions argue otherw se, this
deci sion agrees with proponent argunents presented
by witnesses testifying in support of NMPF and

| DFA positions, that the difference between the
Cass | price and the blend price is a reasonabl e
estimate of the price advantage enjoyed by
producer-handlers, even if it is not possible to
determine the precise |level of the advantage for
any individual producer-handler. This price
advantage i s conpounded as a producer-handler's
Cass | utilization increases. |In addition,

al | owi ng producer-handlers to have unlimted Cl ass
| sales will result in a measurable inpact on the
bl end price received by pool ed producers.

75 Fed. Reg. At 10147 (2010)

That's the end of this quote.
7. The Decision concluded that the size of a

producer-handl er should be a controlling factor in determ ning

the regul atory status of a producer-handler. Quote:

Q Finish that sentence.

A, -- of a producer-handler plant.

Q Thank you.

A Quote:
The size of individual producer-handlers wll
i npact orderly marketing conditions of the Federa
Order marketing areas if left wthout --

JUDCGE CLIFTON: I'msorry, start that one again, please,

t hat quote.
MR HOLLON:

The size of individual producer-handlers wll

i npact orderly marketing conditions in any of the
Federal Order marketing areas if left wthout
[imt. Size of operation will have a direct
bearing on conpetitive equity between
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Producer-handl er size, as discussed above, wll
increasingly affect an order's ability to set
uniformprices to simlarly-situated handl ers and
to producers. Producer-handler size will
increasingly magnify disorderly marketing
conditions and practices where the burden of

bal anci ng and surplus disposal is effectively
transferred to the regul ated narket.

These exanpl es of the presence and anticipation of
di sorderly marketing conditions can be largely
mtigated by establishing a reasonable limt on
producer-handler's Class | route disposition and
sal es of packaged fluid mlk products to other

pl ants.

Establishing a reasonable limt on total C ass
route disposition and sal es of packaged fluid mlKk
products in all producer-handler definitions for
all Federal MIk Marketing Orders unifies the
policy objectives of the AMAA to establish and

mai ntain orderly marketing conditions.

75 Fed. Reg. At 10150 (2010).

End of this quote.

The Deci sion concluded that total route disposition and
sal es of packaged fluid mlk products to other plants of nore
than 3 mllion pounds during the nonth woul d cause a
producer-handler to be fully regulated and account to the poo
for their uses of mlk at the applicable m nimmclass prices
and pay the difference between their use value of mlk and the

bl end price of the order to that order's producer-settl|enment

Quot e:

| f current producer-handlers had total route

di sposition and sal es of packaged m |k products to
ot her plants of nore than 3 mllion pounds during
the nonth, such producer-handlers wll be
regul at ed under the pooling and pricing provisions
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handl ers. Such | arge producer-handlers wl|
account to the pool for their uses of mlk at the
applicable m ninum class prices and pay the

di fference between their use value of mlk and the
bl end price of that order to that order's
producer-settlenent fund.

JUDGE CLIFTON: Now, the last part of that, if you'd just
read that again, beginning with "the blend price."

MR, HOLLON:  "And the blend price of the order to that
order's producer-settlenent fund."

75 Fed. Reg. At 10122 (2010)

That's the end of that quote.

9. The Decision noted the change in regul atory status
woul d have econom ¢ cost and benefits to the producer-handl er
and benefits to producers in the formof increased blend
prices.

This is a quote:
Wiile this may cause an econom c inpact on those
entities with nore than 3 mllion pounds of tota
nonthly sales that are currently consi dered
producer - handl ers under the Federal O der system
the inmpact is offset by the benefit to other snall
busi nesses. Wth respect to dairy farns whose
mlk is pooled on Federal MIk Mrketing O ders,
such dairy farms who have not heretofore --

JUDGE CLIFTON: | know that what you read neans the sanme as
what is witten here, but because it is a quote, will you start
again with "with respect to dairy farns?"

MR HOLLON:

Wth respect to dairy farns whose mlk is pool ed
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have not heretofore shared in the additiona
revenue that accrues fromthe narket-w de pooling
of Class |I sales by producer-handlers, will share
in such revenue. All producer-handlers who

di spose of nore than 3 mllion pounds of fluid

m |k, including sales of packaged fluid mlKk
products, to other plants per nonth, wll account
to all market participants at the announced
Federal Order Class | price for such use.

To the extent that sone |arge producer-handlers
become subject to pooling and pricing provisions
of Federal M Ik Marketing Orders, such will be
determined in their capacity as handlers. Such
entities will no longer have restrictions
applicable to their business operations that were
conditions for producer-handl er status and
exenption fromthe pooling and pricing provisions
of the orders.

In general, this includes being able to buy or
acquire any quantity of mlk fromdairy farmers or
ot her handlers instead of being limted by the
current constraints of the orders. Additionally,
t he burden of balancing their mlk production is
relieved. MIk production in excess of what is
needed to satisfy their Cass | route disposition
and sal es of packaged fluid m |k products to other
pl ants may receive the mninumprice protection
establ i shed under the terns of the Federal MIKk
Marketing Orders. The burden of balancing mlk
supplies will be borne by all producers who are
pool ed and handl ers who are regul ated under the
ternms of the orders.

75 Fed. Reg. At 10122-23 (2010)

This is the end of that quote.

The foregoing clearly establishes that the Secretary of

Agriculture has the authority to define and regul ate

producer-handl ers who operate in any capacity. The Secretary

shoul d exercise that authority in pronulgating the California

FMMO and i npl ement regulations simlar to those in other orders

controlling the action of the |arge producer-handl ers.
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The establishnment of uniformprices for both producers and
handlers is a prine objective of FMMJ s and the operation of
| arge producer-handlers disrupts this objective. The neasure
of the disruption can be calculated as the difference between
the Orders' announced Class | price and blend price. Any
di fference between the two prices is evidence of disruption.
The size of a producer-handl er should be the controlling factor
for establishing regulation. For the purpose of establishing
whi ch producer-handl ers should be fully regul ated, the "bright
l'ine" of regulation has been determ ned to be producer-handl er
plants with 3 mllion pounds of total route disposition and
packaged sales of fluid mlk products to other plants during
the nonth. Those above that |ine become fully regul ated.
Those below that line will not be fully regulated. The
deci sion noted that there would be cost to the |arge
producer-handl er, but that those costs would be offset by
benefits to the producer-handl er and benefits to the renaining
pool ed producers.
B. Financial Inpact of producer-Handlers

Table 8.1, Estimated Producer Handl er Advantage 2000 -
Decenber 2014, denonstrates the inpact to the pool based on the
definition of producer-handler hearing fromthe -- start over.

Table 8.1, Estimated Producer Handl er Advantage, 2000 -
Decenber 2014, denonstrates the inpact to the pool based on the

definition fromthe producer-handl er hearing decision
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referenced above.
Financial Inmpact = Class | price mnus Blend Price
I'mgoing to stop here and go to the table and explain
what's in the table and then come back to the testinony.
So the table is Exhibit 76, there are four pages in the
t abl e.
BY MR BESHORE:
Q Four or are there five pages total counting the --
A.  Five, yeah, five pages in the table.
Q Thank you.
A. The table is entitled Cooperatives' Table 8.1
Esti mated Producer Handl er Advantage, 2000 - Decenber 2014.
The data used here stops in 2014 because that is the | ast CDFA
rel eased data in Colum I.

Colum A is nonths.

Colum B is Cass | nover.

Colum C the weighted differential.

Colum Dis the dass | price, B plus C, and these are
all using the same data and logic that we used in earlier
tables in our proposals.

Colum E is taken from Exhibit 64, Table 5.C, Colum I,
top line, Estimated FMMO Blend. And this is sinply the
appropriate Federal O der class or Federal Oder prices, tinmes
the utilizations as published by CDFA.

Colum F takes that top line wth no deductions at all,
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of any form and reduces it by the quota, transportation, and
adds back the RQA, and that is simlar inits concept as we did
in earlier presentation.

Colum Gis colums Dless G So if -- if every
producer-handl er were located in the highest differential zone,
that would be the Cass | advantage, Cass | price advantage
for that nonth.

Col um H does the sane type of cal culation and
subtraction, only this time using the |owest differential zone
of $1.60.

Colum | is taken from Exhibit 61, CDFA-D, and that is
producer-handl er exenpt C ass | product pounds. Since we
needed sone anpbunt of some volunme to give a reasonable
estimate, we used that volune for illustrative purposes. W
are aware that currently the way California regul ates
producer-handlers, they are fully accountable to the pool, and
that would be, and fromthat perspective it would be no
different than in the future.

Col um J takes those pounds and nultiplies themtimes
the advantage, if everyone was in the $2.10 zone.

Colum K takes those pounds and conputes the tota
dol I ar advantage if everyone were in the $1.60 zone.

We do not have any total pounds fromany, from CDFA for
all dass | sales. So thisis the --

Q Al Cass | sales of the --
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A -- of the --

Q Producer-handl er?

A.  Exenpt producer-handlers, that's correct. And again
this is anillustration and exanple. So all of those
cal culations run their way through, and the Table 8.1.5, then,
is a summary of all of those calculations for the entire
period. And also, as we have done with other tables, for a
nost recent period.

So using that explanation of the table and goi ng back

to the testinony.

JUDCGE CLI FTON: Now, pause just a nonent. M. Beshore, do
you want himto expand his testinony at this point on any part
of Exhibit 76, the table, before he goes back to his testinony?

MR. BESHORE: Not hi ng beyond what he's already done.

JUDCGE CLI FTON: Very good. Then going back to Exhibit 75,
page 8, is that correct, M. Hollon?

MR HOLLON:  Yes. So the, I'Il be starting at the second
ful | paragraph.

Since we do not have producer-handl er sal es vol urme
data, other than the pounds of exenpt Class | sales reported by
CDFA, we have used those vol unes which woul d be reflective of
certain market conditions but are primarily for illustrative
purposes here. Using those nunbers, estinmates can be nade of
the per hundredwei ght price inpact based on announced cl ass

prices and our estimated blend prices.
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Mul tiplying the per hundredwei ght difference times the
vol umes used, result in an estimated dollar inmpact. Based on
mar ket commentary from custoners in our own operations, we
understand that the California producer-handl ers have sal es
vol unes in excess of their known sales (based on exenpt
vol umes), thus these results would represent the | ower end of
any potential inpact fromthese producer-handl ers.

Colum 8 -- I'msorry -- in Table 8.1 (Colum E) we
used the nonthly blend prices fromExhibit 64, Table 5.C, which
we cal cul ated earlier, and reduced the cal culation by 43 cents
per hundredwei ght, which represents the estimted per
hundr edwei ght cost of the net quota prem um paynents and the
cost of the transportation credit paynent. (Colum F) This
gives us the two nunbers necessary to calculate a per
hundr edwei ght i npact if producer-handlers with nore than
3 mllion pounds of total route disposition and packaged sal es
of fluid mlk products to other plants during the nonth were
not regul at ed.

We cal cul ated inpacts as if the producer-handlers were
| ocated in either the $2.10 or $1.60 Class | differential zone.
(Colums G and H For exanple, if all of the producer-handlers
production volume was |ocated in the $2.10 differential zone,
the inpact in January 2000 woul d have been estimated to be
$2. 28 per hundredweight. And if all producer-handler mlk was

| ocate in the $1.60 zone, $1.78 per hundredwei ght. The average
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producer - handl er per hundredwei ght advantage for the entire
period of 2000 through Decenber 2014, would be $2.55 for the
$2.10 zone, and $2.05 for the $1.60 zone per hundredwei ght.
For a nore recent period, August 2012 through Decenber 2014,
the averages woul d be $2.60 and $2.10 for the $2.10 and $1.60
zones.

Miul tiplying the per hundredwei ght val ues by the
publ i shed pounds of exenpt Class | use (Colum 1) yields the
dollars listed in Colums J and K. These totals for the period
January 2000 through Decenber 2014, average $539, 742. 02 per
month for the $2.10 zone, and $433,795.82 for the $1.60 zone.
These translate into an average blend price inpact of $0.018
per hundredwei ght or one --

BY MR BESHORE:

Q Is that $0.018 per hundredwei ght?

A. Dol lars per hundredwei ght.

Q Thank you.

A, And $0.014 per hundredwei ght for the January 2000 to
Decenber 2014 period for the $2.10 and $1.60 zones,
respectively. For the August 2012 through Decenber '14 period,
the inmpact is $0.016 and $0.013 for the two zones respectively.

Al t hough the data for this analysis is limted, the
denonstrated inpact neets the standard set out in the final
2010 -- no, start over.

Al though the data available for analysis is limted,
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the denonstrated inpact neets the standard set out in the 2010

final decision.

Quot e:

Wi | e opponents to the elimnation of
producer-handl er definitions argue otherw se, this
definition agrees with proponent argunents --

JUDGE CLI FTON: Start again, please.
MR HOLLON:

Wi | e opponents to the elimnation of the
producer-handl er definitions argue otherw se, this
deci sion agrees with proponent argunents,
presented by w tnesses testifying in support of
NVPF and | DFA positions, that the difference
between the Class | price and the blend price is a
reasonabl e estimate of the price advantage enjoyed
by producer-handlers even if it is not possible to
determ ne the precise | evel of advantage for any

i ndi vi dual producer-handler. This price advantage
i's conpounded as a producer-handler's dass |
utilization increases. |In addition, allow ng
producer-handlers to have unlimted Cass | sales
wll result in a neasurable inpact on the blend
price received by pool ed producers.

75 Fed. Reg. At 10147 (2010) (enphasis added)

And that's the end of that quote.

The resulting conclusion is that |arge size
producer-handlers in the proposed California FMMO shoul d be
regul ated in the same manner as they are in other FMMJ s. CQur
proposal woul d not require any producer-handler with | ess than
3 mllion pounds of total route disposition and packaged fluid
m |k products to other --

BY MR BESHORE:

Q Start that sentence again
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A, Qur proposal would not require any producer-handl er
wth less than 3 mllion pounds of total route disposition in
packaged sales of fluid mlk products to other plants during
the nonth, to account to the pool for mlk used at class
prices, provided they neet all the requirenments. A
producer-handler with nore than 3 mllion pounds of total route
di sposition and packaged sales of fluid m |k products to ot her
pl ants during the nonth, would have to neet all the
requi rements of any regul ated handl er
C. The Cooperatives' proposa
The regul atory | anguage for our proposal is as follows:
Section 1051.10 Producer-handl er.
Producer - handl er neans a person who:
(a) Operates a dairy farmand a distributing plant from
whi ch there is route disposition in the marketing area,
and fromwhich total route disposition in packaged sal es of
fluid mlk products to other plants during the nonth does
not exceed 3 mllion pounds;
(b) Receives fluid mlk fromown farm production or mlk
that is fully subject to the pricing and pooling provisions
of the order in this part or in any other Federal Order;
(c) Receives at its plant or acquires for route
di sposition, no nore than 150,000 pounds of fluid mlk
products fromhandlers fully regul ated under any Federal

Oder. This limtation shall not apply if the
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producer-handler's own farm production is |less than

150, 000 pounds during the nonth;

(d) Disposes of no other source mlk as Class | except by
Increasing the nonfat mlk solids content of the fluid mlk
product s;

JUDGE CLI FTON: Pl ease read (d) again.

MR HOLLON

(d) Disposes of no other source mlk as Class | mlk except
by increasing the nonfat mlk solids content of the fluid
m | k products;

(e) Provides proof satisfactory to the Market

Adm ni strator that the care and nmanagenent of the dairy

ani mal s and other resources necessary to produce all

Gass | mlk handl ed (excluding receipts from handl ers
fully regul ated under any Federal Order) and the processing
and packagi ng operations are the producer-handl ers own
enterprise and at its own risk; and

(f) Any producer-handler with Class | route dispositions
and/ or transfers of packaged fluid mlk products in the

mar keting area described in Section 1131.2 of this chapter,
shal | be subject to paynents into the Oder 1131
producer-settlenment fund, on such dispositions pursuant to
Section 1000.76(a) and paynents into the Oder 1131

adm ni strative fund provided such dispositions are |ess

than 3 mllion pounds in the current nmonth and such
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producer-handl er had total Cass | route dispositions

and/ or transfers of packaged fluid ml|k products from own

farm production of 3 mllion pounds or nmore in the previous

month. |f the producer-handler has Class | route

di spositions and slash/or transfers a package fluid mlk

products into the marketing area described in Section

1131.2 of this chapter of 3 mllion pounds or nore during

the current nmonth, such producer-handl er shall be subject

to the provisions described in Section 1131.7 of this

chapter Section 1000. 76(a) .
D. Exenpt Quota

As stated above, the Cooperatives' Proposal 1 will regulate
the current California 'producer-handlers,' whose operations
will not conply with the definition of producer-handler as we
proposed it. Such regul ation, however, does not expressly
address the status of exenpt quota owned by these entities.
Wth respect to exenpt quota, we note:

1. Under California |law, exenpt quota can be sold and
continue to have all the entitlements of "regular" quota,
including the $1.70 per hundredwei ght prem um

2. California handlers can own farns and own quota
|'i ke any other producer, and at |east some of the
producer - handl ers who own exenpt quota, also own "regul ar"”
quota which they supply to their own distributing plants.

The inpact of the pool --
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Q Nunber 3?

A, Nunmber 3. The inpact to the pool of exenpt quota at a
distributing plant is greater than the inpact of other quota,
but significantly |ess than the inpact of fully unregul ated
suppl i es.

4. Transportation credits under Proposal 1, could, and
l'ikely would, apply to sonme deliveries of farmmlk presently
covered by exenpt quota, if that quota was converted to regul ar
quota (al though exenpt quota is not entitled to transportation
al  onances under current California | aw.)

The cooperatives are still evaluating these factors with
respect to the treatnent of exenpt quota, which we recognize
reflects an investnment by its owers. W wll continue to
eval uate our position on this issue, in |light of evidence
presented further at this hearing.

Q Could you stop there and go back to number 3, under
exenpt quota. And for clarification, when you reference in the
final clause, "fully unregul ated supplies," do you nean
basi cal |y non, supplies of non-quota m|k?

A I'msorry, repeat that.

Q Gkay. Nunber 3 says, "The inpact to the pool of exenpt
quota at a distributing plant is greater than the inpact of
ot her quota, but significantly |ess than inpact of non-quota
supplies.”

I's that what fully unregul ated nmeans there?
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A Yes.

Q Gkay. Thank you. Now, | would propose that we go
ahead, M. Hollon, and read the, you know, the opening
par agraph on Exhibit 77.

JUDCGE CLIFTON: | woul d propose we take a break

MR. BESHORE: That's conpletely acceptable, your Honor

JUDGE CLIFTON:. This is a lot to digest. It will give
everybody a chance to digest what's in 75. But before we
break, | would like to take the appearance of both M. Carnan
and M. English. Both were here for very nuch of M. Hollon's
testinony thus far, but | just want themto identify
t hensel ves.

MR. CARMAN.  Good norning, your Honor. Cifford Carnan
CARMAN Assistant to the Deputy Administrator, Dairy
Prograns.

JUDGE CLI FTON:  Thank you.

MR. ENGLI SH: Good norning. Thank you, your Honor. Chip
English, CGHI-P, EENGL-1-SH on behalf of the Dairy
Institute of California. And | apologize that | was, for the
first tine in four weeks, unavoi dably detai ned on anot her
matter when we started.

JUDGE CLI FTON: No apol ogy necessary. | think it's been
amazi ng how peopl e have been able to juggle their regular job
with the demands of this hearing.

All right. Let us take a 15-mnute break, and I would
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i ke you to be back and ready to go, at 10:35. 10:35.

(Wher eupon, a break was taken.)

JUDGE CLI FTON: Back on record at 10:36. M. Beshore?

MR. BESHORE: Thank you, your Honor. Marvin Beshore.
BY MR BESHORE:

Q Ckay. M. Hollon, before we go to the paragraph on
page 77, Exhibit 77, at the break we noted that a few
i naccuracies crept into the colum references on Exhibit 76,
Table 8.1. So can you identify those so we can correct them
now before cross-exam nation?

A On Table 8.1, Colum G should read D m nus F.

Q And that's the, sort of the function performed in each
cell in each rowin that colum?

A. Correct. Colum H should read, G minus $0.50.

Q Rather than H m nus 507?

A. Correct. Colum J should read Gtinmes |, divided by
100. And Colum H should be --

Q K?

A I'msorry, Colum K should be Htines I, divided by
100, with the parentheses in the appropriate spots, that
woul dn' t change.

Q Ckay. So those are just corrections to the function at
the top of each of those colums, G?

A, That's correct.

Q H J, and K, and that woul d apply on each page, 1
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t hrough - -

A 5.

Q 5, of Table 8.1, Exhibit 76.
A, That's correct.
Q

Ckay. Thank you. Now, would you read the --

JUDGE CLI FTON: Now, before he goes there. That's tiny,

and Ms. Elliott, | would |like you to nake the changes on the

record copy of Exhibit 76, and | just suggest you use the

space, the wi de space above those col um headi ngs, because

ot herwi se you are not going to have roomto wite. So do
need M. Hollon to identify those again?

MS. ELLIOTT: No, | wote them down.

you

JUDGE CLIFTON: Al right. Excellent. |If you have any

hesitancy at all about it, you may show that to M. Hollon at a

break, show hi mwhat you have done and confirmthat it captured

what he intended. Al right? Thank you, M. Beshore, now you

may redirect us.
BY MR BESHORE:

Q Ckay. Let's goto 77, and read the first full
paragraph at the top of the first page.

A.  PROPCSAL 1 PROVI SI ON FOR PAYMENTS BY A HANDLER
OPERATI NG A PARTI ALLY REGULATED DI STRI BUTI NG PLANT

The Cooperatives propose that the California M|k

Marketing O der adopt the uniformlanguage, Section 1000.76, as

part of 1051.76, to determ ne paynents --
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JUDCGE CLIFTON: I'msorry, is that "as part" or is it "as
part of ?"

MR, HOLLON. As part -- | understand. Let's start over
agai n.

The Cooperatives propose that the California M|k
Marketing O der adopt the uniformlanguage of Section 1000. 76
as part 1051.76 to determ ne paynents to be nade to the pool by
partially regulated distributing plants. Those plants which
have route disposition in the marketing area in quantities |ess
than 25 percent of their total route disposition.

JUDGE CLI FTON: Now, when you read that, you didn't tell us
what kind of plants.

MR. HOLLON: Those Cass | plants which have route
di sposition in the marketing area in quantities |ess than 25
percent of their total route disposition. M. Wse earlier
testified as to how this | anguage operates. W support and
endorse that testinony and request that the uniformlanguage
which follows in full below, and is in operation in all Federa
Orders, be adopted for the California Oder.
MR BESHORE

Q Gkay. Now, M. Hollon, we're not going to ask you to
read Section 1000.76 --

A, That is wonderful.

Q ~-- which is part of Exhibit 77, but we, it is part of

that exhibit for convenient reference with your testinony and
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for any questions anyone mght have with respect to that.

Wth that, your Honor, | would nove for the adm ssion
of Exhibits 20A, 75, 76, and 77. And M. Hollon is available
for questions by other parties.

JUDGE CLIFTON: | like the way you handl ed that.

Excellent. |1s there any objection to the adm ssion into
evidence of Exhibit 20A? There is none. Exhibit 20Ais
admtted into evidence.

(Thereafter, Exhibit 20A was

received into evidence.)

JUDGE CLIFTON: Is there any objection to the adm ssion
into evidence of Exhibit 75? There is none. Exhibit 75 1is
admtted into evidence.

(Thereafter, Exhibit 75 was
received into evidence.)

JUDGE CLIFTON:. Wth regard to 76, | just comrent that the
corrections that will be made to the record copies will need to
be made on each page of the table. So, snall item | think
everybody knew what he neant even before he rel abel ed them but
we do need to nake those corrections.

I's there any objection to the adm ssion into evidence
of Exhibit 76?7 There are none. Exhibit 76 is admtted into
evi dence.

(Thereafter, Exhibit 76 was

received into evidence.)

3500

BARKLEY

TRANSCRIPT OF PROCEEDINGS-VOL. XVIII Court Reporters



© o0 ~N oo o b~ w DN P

NN NN R R R R R R R R R
g A W N P O © O N O O M W N B O

JUDGE CLIFTON: Is there any objection to the adm ssion
into evidence of Exhibit 77? There are none. Exhibit 77 is
admtted into evidence.

(Thereafter, Exhibit 77 was
received into evidence.)
JUDGE CLI FTON: Who first will question M. Hollon?
M. English?
CRCSS- EXAM NATI ON
BY MR ENGLI SH.
Q Good morning, M. Hollon. Chip English.
A, Good norning, M. English.

Q Solet me start inlittle bit reverse order and | ook at

Exhi bit 77.
A Ckay.
Q And this is, | have to assure you, is curiosity, partly
curiosity, I"'mtrying to understand how it works.
So -- and I"'mgoing to focus on the Wchita option,

whi ch is Paragraph B, correct? On 76 -- Section 767?

A, That's correct.

Q Wchita option? So if a plant |ocated, obviously
outside of the state because of the way you defined plants, has
route disposition | ess than 25 percent into California, so that
it is partially regulated, correct?

A, Correct.

Q kay. How, if at all, does California's, or your
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proposed California Federal MIk Order quota systeminpact that
partially regulated plant's obligation, calcul ated under the
Wchita option?

A, You woul d have the, whatever the plant pays, the
out side-the-area plant pays its mlk supply, conpared to the
class, let's see, the plant blend calculation, if you will, of
the handler. And conpare those two values, and if the handler
el ects that option, it would pay that into the pool

Q Well, now, | remenber under B you don't pay under in
t he pool .

A. You are correct.

Q Under B what you are doing is proving to the Market
Adm ni strator that your plant blend price would be equal or
greater than what your obligation would be if you were a fully
regul ated plant.

A.  You are correct.

Q Gkay. So, and again, | think the answer may very well
be the quota programdoesn't inplicate it, but | think, you
know, in a way we're witing legislative history and what your
intentions are, and so | amjust trying to nake sure that ny
assunption is correct. That --

A. | don't see a spot where in those two cal cul ati ons what
they pay, what the plant paid for, toits mlk supply and what
the plant blend was on a quota conponent.

Q Gkay. So you agree with me that you don't intend
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par agraph 76(b), to, for the quota programto inpact that
cal cul ati on?

A As it's currently witten in our proposal, no.

Q Wit a mnute, was that a yes you agree with ne, or no
it's not included? | think you may have answered no, but ny
question was intended to elicit a yes if you agree with ne.

JUDGE CLI FTON: Ask your question again, M. English,
artfully.

MR, ENG.ISH | thought it was artful the first tinme, your
Honor

JUDGE CLIFTON: It may well have been. It nay well have
been.
BY MR ENGLI SH.

Q Do you agree with me that as witten, the inpact of
quota in a California Federal O-der programwoul d not affect
the cal cul ati on under 76(b)?

A Yes.

Q Al right. Now, one nore piece of that. In
calculating the obligation for a partially regul ated plant,
woul d the allowance for fortification figure into the
cal culation for what that plant woul d have, since that plant
selling in California is going to have to neet the fluid mlk
standards in California?

A W haven't fully considered that as a possibility yet.

So it may or it may not, we don't have a position on that as of
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yet.

Q Gkay. Do you have a view as to how the | anguage is
drafted presently, assum ng you never have a view about the
hearing, what it neans in respect to the fortification
al | owance issue?

A | would say currently that the partially regul ated
plant not |ocated in the state woul d not receive a
fortification all owance.

Q Al right. So going to Exhibit 76, which is your
cal cul ations, and you indicated that CDFA did not provide
information, certainly nonthly information, beyond Decenber
2014 in order to make this calculation, correct?

A. Correct.

Q Nonetheless, if we do have information -- so Exhibit 61
i ntroduced by CDFA, table AC, that was the very |ast page of
Exhibit 61, and it was the Cass | Pool Uilization MIk Fat
SNF, Qther Pool Statistics for August 2015 and Annual 2014, if
that information lists the information that you are mssing in
Colum I, just a nmonth of August 2015, you could do that same
calculation fromthe materials in the record, correct?

A, Yes, so there's nore, if there's pounds available to
extend Colum |, then | think everything else is in the record.

Q kay. Thank you. So now discussing your testinony on
Exhibit 75 and your discussion about producer-handlers. | only

have a few questi ons.
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First, have you -- | think this may go back to, | think
| asked you, but it may have been another w tness -- you know
that the | anguage that the Cooperatives propose in Proposal 1
is different fromthe Dairy Institute of California's |anguage,
correct? For this provision, producer-handler?

A Yes, | think that's correct.

Q You, in essence, as | recall, took the |anguage from
Order 30, The Upper M dwest?

A, Correct.

Q You're aware of language in Orders 124 of the Pacific
Nort hwest and 131, Arizona, that is different, correct?

A Yes.

Q Gkay. Wuld you agree with ne that that |anguage that
appears in Orders 124 and 131 were devel oped after years of
experience Wi th producer-handl ers out West that were unique
mar keting conditions wth respect to the size of
producer-handl ers out West?

A. | don't have any information to agree with you or
di sagree with you on that.

Q Do you know that those provisions are designed to
insure that with large -- smaller than 3 mllion pounds,
obviously, in this case -- but with |arger producer-handlers,
there can be or has been in those orders, circunmstances where
cows have been noved and other kinds of transactions engaged in

in order to maintain the producer-handl er status that woul d be
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al  oned under Order 30, but not under 124 and 1317
A | don't recall if that were the case or not, either
way, sorry.
Q Guven the history of producer-handlers Wst of the
Rocki es, have you consi dered, as opposed to the Oder 30
| anguage, the | anguage that the Dairy Institute of California
proposes, which is nore simlar to 124 than 1317
A. W have not.
Q kay. |Is that sonmething that you m ght consider and
have nore of a different, or an additional opinion, or with
respect to that after you hear the Dairy Institute proposal ?
A. W remai n open-m nded.
Q Gkay. So going to page 11, and | know that M. Beshore
asked you a question about paragraph 3, and even after he asked
the question, | admt that | still amnot sure | understand
what you are trying to say in paragraph 3.
JUDGE CLI FTON: Wat page again, M. English?
MR. ENGLISH: |'mon page 11 of Exhibit 75.
JUDGE CLI FTON: Thank you.

BY MR English:

Q And I'mlooking at D, exenpt quota, and the paragraph 3
whi ch says, "the inpact of the pool of exenmpt quota at a
distributing plant is greater than the inpact of other quota,
but significantly different than the inpact of fully

unregul at ed supplies.”
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And I'mnerely trying to understand what that statenent
neans, and if he wants to expand it?

A. | think the only inference there is that on a per unit
basis, those values are different. Quota carries $1.70 per
hundr edwei ght as a val ue, and as our calculations here just as
an exanpl e, in January of 2000, the Colum G was $2.28 per
hundr edwei ght, and Columm H, $1.78. So there are differing
val ues that are part of the overall consideration, nothing nore
than that.

Q And | thank you, and | just didn't tie that together
and that hel ps me. Thank you.

So you are tying page 11 together, that paragraph 3, to
the analysis you did in Exhibit 76, and then your discussion on
the top of page 9?

A. Attenpting to do that, correct.

Q Thank you. Now, you participated, you, yourself
participated in the National Hearing on Producer-handl ers?

A | did.

Q And you support what the Departnment did as a result of
t hat proceeding, correct?

A. Correct.

Q So do you recall that part of that proceeding was a
proposal submitted as an alternative proposal, which would, for
want of a better phrase, allow a soft cap? That is to say, for

producer-handlers nore than 3 mllion pounds, they would be
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regul ated only on the pounds nore than 3 mllion and woul d be
exenpt on the volumes 3 mllion or |ower?

A. | do recall that.

Q And your organi zation opposed that solution, correct?

A. Correct.

Q Is there a functional difference other than the vol une,
bet ween that proposal in the National Hearing and exenpt quota?

A. | don't think there is.

Q So on pages 11 and 12 you indicate that you stil
haven't devel oped an opinion, or a final opinion, with respect
to the treatnent of exenpt quota; is that correct?

A. That is still true.

Q So what information do you still need now to reach a
conclusion as to that?

A W're waiting to hear the testinmony of, on those
proposals that's yet to cone.

Q And I'mnow done with 75 and 76

You might want to go to 20A. And conparing it to
Exhibit 20, do you have Exhibit 20 with you as well?

A No, | don't, | just have 20A.

Q Gkay. If he can have Exhibit 20.

JUDGE CLIFTON: Is anybody still looking for their
Exhibit 20 or are you ready to go forward? Looks like
everybody's caught up, so you may proceed.

111
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BY MR ENGLI SH.

Q So |l want to look at Table 1.B.4 of Exhibit 20 and
1.B. 4 of Exhibit 20A.

A Ckay.

Q Ckay. Andit's a bit of a picky point, but you have
i ndi cated that you highlighted where there was changes,
correct?

A Yes.

Q On Exhibit 20A? So | think we actually discussed, and
indeed | think you have changed the data for June 2013, which
is on that same page, 1.B.4. And | think the data for O ass |
Southern California is different on 20A than 20.

A Yes.

Q So to the extent that you, just the extent the record
says you highlighted changes, that particular |ine was probably
i nadvertently not highlighted, correct? Because that changes,
fromColum H, in original Exhibit 20 is $20.40, and on 20A it
is $21.12, correct?

A, I'msorry, do that again

Q I'mlooking at June 2013, conparing Exhibit 20, Table
1.B.4 to Exhibit 20A, Table 1.B.4, and I'm | ooking at Columm H,
which is the dass | for Southern California, which it is
listed as $20.40 in Exhibit 20, but you have corrected -- and |
agree with your nunmber -- $21.12 in 20A?

A You are correct.
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Q And then simlarly, for Colums | and J, which are
based off of Columm H, those nunbers have gone from negative 63
cents, to positive 9 cents; and fromnegative 53 cents to
positive 19 cents, correct?

A. You are correct.

Q kay. So all | was trying to clarify for the record
was, to the extent sonmebody |ater |ooks at this and says, okay
all | have to do is |ook at the highlighting, that you
i nadvertently did not highlight June 2013, correct?

A. That is correct.

Q But regardless, that nunber woul d have fl owed through
to your |ater calculations?

A It would.

Q Yes. That's all | have, M. Hollon, thank you very
much.

A.  You are very wel cone.

CRCOSS- EXAM NATI ON
BY MS. HANCOCK:

Q N col e Hancock.

M. Hollon, can you turn to Exhibit 76? This is your
tabl e, Estimated Producer-handl er Advantage.

A Yes.

Q Helpme -- 1 guess I"'mstill not clear on exactly what
nunbers you are cal culating here. Are you using the Option 66,

exenpt producer-handlers fromthe California State O der --
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You nean --
-- progranf

Whatever is in Colum 1I.

o > O P

In Colum |. Thank you.

A.  Those were nunbers that were published by CDFA as
exenmpt handl er pounds. | don't recall if their colum heading
had an option |abel on it.

Q What is your understanding of what you are cal cul ating
her e?

A. That this is the dass | pounds of producer-handlers
wi th exenpt quota.

Q So would that include both the exenpt quota hol ders
under Option 70 and the exenpt?

A I'mnot certain, | would have to go back and ask CDFA
what they put in their colum. | thought it was just the
producer-handlers with exenpt quota, but that's in Exhibit 61,
the table | abel ed CDFA-D.

Q ay. I'mgoing to have to go back and take a | ook and
see.

Did you conduct any kind of analysis or calculations
W th respect to the valuation of the exenpt quota that's held
by the producer-handlers, the Option 70 exenpt quota?

A. | think all of those, all of those that were part of
our testinmony were conducted by M. Hatanuya, whatever he woul d

have said would be what we did in that |ight.
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Q Ckay. So just so the record' s clear on that,
M. Hatanmuya, in the expert calculations that he conducted and
the valuations that he testified to, you still naintain that
those are the positions of the Cooperatives?

A, \Watever his testinmny was woul d be the position of the
group, yes.

Q Gkay. So nothing that you are saying in here is a

departure fromwhat he's saying, according to your testinony?

A, No.

Q Ckay. No it's not a departure?

A No, it's a departure.

Q | think | asked a doubl e negative?

A, W're not abandoning M. Hatanmuya, how s that?
Q kay. That's better. Thank you.

Wul d you agree with ne that quota is a statutory

entitlenent?

MR, ENGLI SH: (bjection, she's asking for a | egal
concl usi on.

JUDCGE CLI FTON: The objection is noted, but that was
M. English, his objection to that |egal conclusion is noted.
The wi tness may answer the question.

MR, HOLLON: | think quota is a construct of California
| aws.
BY MS. HANCOCK

Q Soit's a benefit that's afforded to quota hol ders
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because of the statutory |anguage?

A, Yes, | think that was all covered in earlier testinony.

MR. ENGLI SH. Chip English, same objection.

JUDGE CLIFTON: Yes. And the objection is noted, and a
cautionary tone now sounds.

M5. HANCOCK: | didn't hear that, your Honor.

JUDGE CLIFTON: | said a cautionary tone now sounds. |'m
using M. English's objection to the witness' statenment as a
caution to the Agricultural Mrketing Service.

M5. HANCOCK: G ve ne just one second, your Honor.

BY MS. HANCOCK:

Q | want to turn to Exhibit 75, page 7.

A Ckay.

Q And you were tal king about the ruling on the
producer - handl er hearing from 2010, and the concl usi ons nade by
the Secretary of Agriculture in the last full paragraph on
Page 7, second sentence, you say, "the neasure of disruption
can be calcul ated as the difference between the Order's
announced G ass | price and blend price. Any difference
between the two prices is evidence of disruption.”

Do you see that?

A | do.

Q ay. The sanme would be true, not the same woul d be
true -- let ne say that differently.

What that's saying is that the anmount that's not in the
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pool because of the exenption treatnment, is the amount that's
quantified for purposes of determ ning the disruption?

A, | think that's the -- try that one nore tine.

Q Soit's the anmobunt that the pool has been reduced as a
whol e because the producer-handl ers have an exenption fromthe

pool that is used to calculate what is valued as the disruption

or the anmount that was determned to be a disruption. |s that
fair?
A | think the, if you back up one or tw of the

paragraphs in the testinmony, the Secretary said the difference
between the Cass | price and the blend is a reasonable way to
say what that, say that what difference is. And so if sone
Cass | value doesn't get in the pool, then there would be a
bi gger difference.

Q Ckay. So because I'mjust trying to nake sure that
understand how that, what the effect is. So, in essence, it is
a, it's an anmpunt that the pool has been reduced by because the
O ass | payments haven't been cal cul ated through the pool; is
that right?

A Al the Cass |I value doesn't nake it to the poo
because of the exenption

Q Gkay. So the net effect is that the pool is then

reduced by those anounts?

A The pool doesn't get those amounts. If it got it, it
woul d be higher. If it doesn't, in this case, in this exanple
3514
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or this definition, it doesn't get it, soit's |ower.
Q Ckay. Thank you.

And under the proposal for preservation of the quota
system the sane would be true, then, that anmounts that are
paid out for quota prem uns has the net effect of reducing the
rest of the blend price for the pool?

A It would.

Q Gkay. And but the proposal the Cooperatives have is to
reserve the treatnent for that exenpt quota because of the
| anguage that's come out of the FarmBill, which, and the
Secretary's direction, to preserve at |east the value of the

guota system That's the Cooperatives position, right?

A | was waiting to see is M. English was going to
obj ect.
Q I'masking about your position, not about an

interpretation.

MR ENGLISH. Well, if you are |looking for me to object, |
will.

MR, HOLLON: | was just giving you an opportunity.

MR. ENGLISH | object, it calls for a |legal conclusion.

JUDGE CLI FTON: Thank you, M. English, your objection is
not ed.

Ms. Hancock, can you do your question again, please?
M5. HANCOCK: | don't know, your Honor, | got distracted.

| tried to craft it inaway that it didn't ask for a | egal
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concl usi on.
BY MS. HANCOCK

Q Wiat I'mjust asking is for clarification that there
are sonme reasons why the Cooperative believes that it would be
acceptabl e, the Cooperatives as a whole, the Proposal Nunber
1-- let me start the whole thing over again.

JUDGE CLIFTON: Now, let ne just say two things. You can
always ask this witness's opinion, as you were you starting to
do. You can also ask his opinion on natters that call for a
| egal concl usion because |I'mallow ng himto answer that.

l"mnoting M. English's objection, but it doesn't
change the fact that the wtness may respond to your question.
So you don't have to word your question with the objection, to
avoi d the objection, you are welcome to word it however you
want .

M5. HANCOCK: Thank you, | appreciate that. I'mtrying to
make a really clean question. | |ike clean questions and
answers, but it has to build in so nuch to it, so | appreciate
t hat .

BY Ms. HANCOCK

Q M questionto you is, is it's the Cooperatives
position that in Proposal Nunmber 1, that there are, even though
preserving the quota systemwould result in a reduced blend
price for other producers, that there is a justification for

that that would warrant its preservation?
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A, Qur proposal preserves the value of quota. Proposal
Nunber 1 does that.

Q Wiich has the net effect of reducing the blend price
for other producers?

A It does.

Q Ckay. And but that's justified because of the
historical treatnent for the quota and the quota systeny is
that right?

A, Earlier witnesses provided several justifications, that
was one. | don't remenber all the ones they provided, but that
was one.

Q You understand under the current California State O der
systemthat the Option 70 producer-handlers that | represent,
are regul ated handl ers, correct?

A | do.

Q And they actually do report to the pool for their
entire production and processing vol unes?

A I'mnot sure if | understand it the way you said it,
but I think | understand the way that you nmeant it.

Q \Well, help me restate it so that it is clear on the
record.

A.  That they do report, and the amount that is exenpted is
not included in their total.

Q As the final calculation it's not included in their

total.
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A, Correct.

Q But they report those volunes to the pool and then
those anounts are deducted back out.

A. That's the way | understand the operation. |'m not
entitled to see it, but that's the way | think the operation
wor ks.

Q Gkay. So different than the producer-handlers that
were being addressed in the producer-handler hearing, which in
those instances they didn't report to the pool at all.

A.  You are correct.

Q kay. But inthis instance, it's a fully transparent
process where they are fully, they are fully regul ated, but
then there's exenptions that allow themto deduct certain
vol umes fromtheir pool calculations.

A Yes.

Q | want to turn to page 11 of Exhibit 75, and in there
you have a statenment under the first full paragraph under
Section D, Exenpt Quota. The second to the |ast sentence in
that first paragraph says, "such regul ation, however, does not
expressly address the status of exenpt quota owned by these
entities.”" And | just want to clarify what you nean there.
Wien you say such regulation, you are referring back to the
producer - handl er regul ations that were adopted in 2010; is that
right?

A Yes.
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Q Ckay. So you're distinguishing, you are making a
di stinction here that the producer-handl er exenption that you
tal ked about in the preceding ten pages of Exhibit 75, were
tal ki ng about the producer-handler definitions that are
proposed by the Cooperatives and not tal king about exenpt quota
at that point.

A. Correct.

Q And | just want to clarify, too, with the status under
the California State Order systemas it sits today, the
proposal that the Cooperatives' making for producer-handl er
definition would actually expand the nunber of
producer-handlers that would qualify for the exenption
treatment under your definition. |s that your understandi ng?

A Yes.

Q So whereas sone producer-handlers in California are not
recei ving an exenption, under the Cooperatives' proposal, they
woul d then qualify?

A, Correct.

Q Have you conducted an anal ysis or cal cul ated the inpact
that that would cause on the pool by exenpting out those
producer - handl er s?

A. | have not. | don't have any data.

Q And that's because it's proprietary information, right?
W don't have access fromthe CDFA as to who would qualify, who

woul d not ?
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A. There's no, as far as | know, there's not published
data on those pounds.

Q But you would agree that under the Cooperatives
proposal, that it would reduce the volunes of mlk that woul d
be cal cul ated in the pool because there woul d be exenptions
al  owed under, for the producer-handlers that qualified for the
3 mllion pounds per nonth or |ess?

A Yes.

Q Ckay. So separate fromthat qualification, | want to
now turn back to page 11 on Exhibit 75, which is the exenpt
quot a treatnment.

Under your first paragraph there on page 11, nunber 1
states, "under California | aw, exenpt quota can be sold and
continue to have all of the entitlement of "regular" quota,
including the $1.70 per hundredwei ght prem um”

Do you see that?

A Yes, | do.

Q Are you referring there to if quota is preserved, or
let me say that differently. Are you referring there that if,
for exanple, the producer-handlers who have exenpt quota were
to transfer it or sell that quota, it would then be converted
to regular quota, right?

A, That's the way | understand it.

Q Andif it was treated as regular quota, it would have

that $1.70 per hundredwei ght premium Is that what you are
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tal ki ng about there? |If that, for whatever reason exenpt quota
was converted to regular quota, it would then be subject to the
same prem um pricing?

A Yes.

Q Ckay. But that statenent there that you have under
Section 1, does not recognize the val ue above and beyond the
treatment of regular quota that exenpt quota receives, right?

A, Try that again.

Q Wll, Dr. Erba and M. Hatanuya both testified that
exenpt quota has a val ue above and beyond that of regul ar
quota. Do you recall that?

A Yes.

Q But there's, that there's value for trading regular
quota, there's value for the premumpricing for regular quota,
but then above and beyond those two val uations, exenpt quota
has an additional econom c value, right?

A Yes.

Q So what, I'mjust trying to clarify is that under
nunber 1, when you say that exenpt quota could be sold and
continue to have the regular quota values, this doesn't
recogni ze that there is an exenpt val ue above and beyond t hat
of regular quota?

A, That's true

Q Ckay. And | want to talk about paragraph 3, and not to

beat it to death, but because | just want to clarify the |line
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that we're drawi ng here. The sentence says, "the inpact to the
pool of exenpt quota at a distributing plant, is greater than
the inpact of other quota, but significantly |less than the
i npact of fully unregul ated supplies.”

Do you see that?

A | do.

Q Is fully unregul ated supplies, would that be like an
Option 66 producer-handler or a fully exenpt producer-handl er?

A Yes, it could be.

Q Is that, so you are saying it, it mght be nore than
it would have a greater inpact than regular quota, but not as
great of an inpact as a fully exenpt producer-handler's
treat ment ?

A, That could be true. And it also refers to, in answer
to M. English of per unit conparison

Q Gkay. But you haven't done any kind of conparison
bet ween the regul ar quota inpact and the exenpt quota i npact
di fference, have you?

A, No.

Q And under paragraph 4 it tal ks about the transportation
credits under Proposal 1. And | think you have clarified in
here, but | just want to nmake sure that the record' s clear

So exenpt quota hol ders do not qualify for any kind of
transportation credits or allowances for that volune of mlk

is that right?
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Under the California systenf

Under the California system

> O >

Yes, that's correct.

Q And then, have you, if, for exanple, the Cooperatives
proposal were adopted, and the exenpt quota hol ders quota were
treated as regular quota, would they then qualify for
transportation credits or allowances?

A.  Under the Cooperatives' proposal it would, under the
Federal Order rules.

Q And have you conducted an analysis with respect to the
net effect on the pool by then bringing in the exenpt quota,
but then paying back out transportation credits or all owances?

A. | don't have any nunmbers on that.

Q Has your teamevaluated the inpact on the pool ?

A. W have done sone calculations to try to figure out
what our position is, but we haven't, we haven't conpleted
those or even determned if we captured all the val ues, yet.

Q And you have, in your discussions, or in your
cal cul ations that you have nade, what is it that you know, or
what do you understand to be the effect on the pool, though?

A. Those are things that will fall into page 12, the | ast
par agraph, that we continue to evaluate our position. So |
don't have anything to share for the record at this tine.

Q So assuming that the Cooperatives' proposal, or

assumng that the California Producer Handl ers proposal to
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preserve exenpt quota as part the preservation of the overall
guota systemwere to be grafted in a way that didn't have any
ot her inpacts on, any other unintended inpacts on any other
areas other than to just preserve the exenpt quota, the
Cooperatives remain open and willing to eval uating that
| anguage and the adoption proposed by the Producer Handlers
Associ ation?

AL At this point, we are waiting to hear future
testinonies and will decide what to do at that point.

Q M. English asked you if there was a functiona
di fference between the soft cap that was proposed in the
producer-handl er hearing and the exenpt quota, and you said you
didn't know if there was.

Do you recall that?

A | do.

Q But there is a difference, right? Because the exenpt
quota is part of the quota system right?

A It is.

Q And in the soft cap proposal, there was no quota system
that was addressed in the producer-handlers hearing, right?

A, You want to describe your definition of the soft cap
proposal so | can make sure | understand it?

Q Well, I'mjust using the | anguage that M. English
used. In the producer-handler, in the producer-handl er hearing

that was decided in 2010 and you di scussed in your testinony,
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there was a proposal for a soft cap that woul d al | ow exenpti ons
up to the 3 mllion pounds per nonth threshold, and then have
the regular fully regulated treatnment for anything beyond that,
right?

A | think there were -- there were certain pounds that
were exenpted, that was the definition of soft cap. It didn't
apply to all pounds.

Q Gkay. And in that -- in that producer-handl er hearing,
nobody ever tal ked about quota in that instance, right?
Because there was no quota at issue in any of those Federal
Orders?

A Well, | don't recall all, but I think the decision
per haps even nentions the conparison of California soft caps
and quota. | think that if you go back and read that deci sion,
there is sone | anguage there. But ny response to M. English
was in terms of a financial calculation, and no other. And so
the financial way you would | ook at a soft cap, that there's
sonme val ue captured and sone value not. And the idea that, as
we tal ked a few mnutes ago, about how California today creates
that, that there is sone val ue captured and sone val ue not.
That was ny answer to him That in terns of that financial
calculation and limts, | don't see that there's a difference.
There's sone val ue captured and there's sone value not. To
expand it to does it include quota or does it include

California law, that wasn't my intent. That wasn't what |
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t hought he was asking and that wasn't what | was answeri ng.
Q Okay. So to be clear, you were -- you were not trying

to say that exenpt quota is one in the same with the soft cap

treatment in the producer-handl er hearing, you were talking

about the financial calculations or for the treatnent of the

two?
A.  Yes.
Q That's all | have, thank you.

JUDCGE CLI FTON:  Wo has questions for M. Hollon?
CROSS- EXAM NATI ON
BY MR R CHMOND:
Q Bill Richnond, USDA.

Thank you, M. Hollon for your testinony. | think
we're pretty clear in regards to what your proposal is seeking
to do, although we are very interested in hearing your position
on what to do with exenpt quota as we proceed. That's all we
have. Thank you.

A |1 think Ms. May indicated there would be sone tine to
do that.
Q W appreciate that.
JUDGE CLIFTON: Are there any other questions for
M. Hollon at this tine?
M. Beshore, would you come back to the podiunf? 1Is
this the last of M. Hollon's testinony during your

case-in-chief?
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MR, BESHORE: This is the last of M. Hollon's testinmony
during our case-in-chief.

JUDGE CLIFTON: Now, with that in mnd, fol ks, does anyone
have any questions for hin? No one.

M. Beshore, do you have any redirect?

MR. BESHORE: | do not.

JUDGE CLIFTON: M. Hollon, you may step down.

MR, HOLLON:  Thank you.

JUDGE CLI FTON:  You're wel cone.

MR. BESHORE: And that concludes our case-in-chief.

JUDGE CLIFTON: Well done, M. Beshore, well done. Your
expertise in these matters is extrenely hel pful.

Well, M. English, are you ready to go? Please cone to
t he podi um

MR. ENGLI SH:  Well, your Honor, actually before we are
ready to go, we have, in the formof a notion, this has to do
wth not limted to, but certainly beginning with, the
Cooper atives' study conducted by Professors Stephenson and
Ni chol son, and it's a motion to draw a negative inference of a
failure to introduce rel evant evidence.

So let me nake a predicate, and then I'mgoing to read
this in the record, but I'Il pass it out and propose to make it
an exhibit.

So, your Honor, under the Adm nistrative Procedure Act

5 U S C Section 556, proponents of a change, or in this case,
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the creation of a regulation, have the burden of proof and the
burden of going forward. In light of that, when we, on our
side of the aisle -- we are all sitting on the sanme side of the
aisle -- but we, those who are opponents of Proposal 1, |earned
of the existence of the study that the Cooperatives requested
of Dr. Stephenson and N chol son, M. Vetne requested, by
e-mail, a copy of that study from M. Beshore, by e-nmail dated
June 17, 2015. And M. Beshore pronmptly responded no.

On Septenber 15th of this year, in a joint letter on ny
letterhead to M. Beshore, we again requested the report and
indicated that if it was not nade available, we mght seek to
invoke, at this hearing, an evidentiary presunption wth
respect to refusal to provide that study. And we did, in short
form provide some case law in that communication to
M. Beshore. Oher than, of course, in this proceeding where
t hat study has not been nmade avail able, we have not heard back
fromthe Cooperatives wth respect to that issue.

So at this time, we formally nove for a negative
inference of failure to introduce rel evant evidence, and | have
a nenorandumto that effect. And | think it should be marked
as an exhibit, even as the stipulation was marked as an
exhi bit.

JUDCGE CLIFTON: | agree, that will be a good way to keep
track of it. This document will be Exhibit 78.

(Thereafter, Exhibit 78 was narked
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for identification.)

MR, ENGLI SH:  What nunber did you give it, your Honor?

JUDGE CLI FTON: Exhibit 78.

MR ENGISH So if everyone has one, |I'mready to proceed.

JUDGE CLI FTON:  You may proceed, M. English.

MR ENGISH So this is entitled, this has got the caption
of this proceeding, and then Clovis, California, Cctober 19,
2015.

Menor andum on Negative Inference of Failure to
I ntroduce Rel evant Evi dence

"When a party has relevant evidence in its control
which it fails to produce, that failure gives rise to an
i nference that the evidence is unfavorable to him"

That is fromliInt'l Union, United Autonobile, Aerospace
and Agric. Inplement Workers of Am (U A W) v NL.RB.

459 F. 2d 1320, 1336 (1972) citing 2 J. Wgnore, Evidence
Section 285 (3d ed.1940)); c.f. Elvis Mg. Co. v. F.T.C,

287 F.2d 831, 847 (9th Gr. 1961) ("An unfavorable inference
may result fromthe unexplained failure of a party to produce
docunentary or other real evidence.").

"Unquestionably the failure of a defendant in a civil
case to testify or offer other evidence within his ability to
produce and which woul d explain or rebut a case nade by the
ot her side, may, in a proper case, be considered as a

ci rcunstance against himand nmay raise a presunption that the
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evi dence woul d not be favorable to his position.” U S wv.
Roberson, 233 F.2d 517, 519 (5th Gr. 1956); see al so Paudl er
v. Paudler, at 185 F.2d 901, 903 (5th Cr. 1950), cert. denied,
341 U.'S. 920, 71 S.Ct. 742, 95 L.Ed. 1354 (1951) ("Respondent's
unexpl ai ned failure to support and substantiate its econom c
justification for the layoffs by the production of probative
and nmaterial documentary records within the power of the
Respondent to produce, renders the purported reasons dubious
and al so warrants drawi ng an inference that if such [records]
had been produced, they could not have been favorable to the
Respondent. This failure to produce such evidence 'not only
strengthens the probative force' of its absence, 'but of itself
is clothed with a certain probative force."); citing Col dberger
Foods, Inc. v. U S, 23 Clainms Court 295, 308 (1991), affirned
960 F.2d 155 (Fed. Cir. 1992) (holding in a case against the
USDA that plaintiff's failure to furnish any of its prinmary
records on raw beef prices warranted a "strong adverse

i nference" that such records woul d have a negative inmpact on
its case involving a m staken bid).

The failure to produce relevant docunents can warrant a
negati ve i nference even when there i s no subpoena conpelling
production. Int'l Union, United Auto Wrkers, Aerospace &
Agreenents |nplenent Wrkers of Am (UAW v. N.L.RB., 459 F. 2d
1329, 1338 (District of Columbia Grcuit 1972) ("If evidence

wthin the party's control would, in fact, strengthen his case,
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he can be expected to introduce it, even if it is not
subpoenaed. Conversely, if such evidence is not introduced, it
may be inferred that the evidence is unfavorable to the party
suppressing it.")

"Il insert here that the Cooperatives, of course, are
free not to produce the docunment. That is their right. But
their can be, and shoul d be, consequences for doing so.

Returning to Exhibit 78. "That an inference -- that an
adverse inference may arise fromthe fact of m ssing evidence
is a generally accepted principle of law" Smth v. United
States, 128 F. Supp.2d 1227, 1232 (Eastern District of Arkansas
2000) (holding that the failure of a party to create standard
nmedi cal records for a patient's surgery warranted the
application of the negative inference).

As stated by Professor Wgnore, "The failure to bring
before the tribunal sone circunstance, docunent or wtness,
when either the party hinself or his opponent clains the fact
woul d t hereby be el ucidated, serves to indicate, as the nost
natural inference, that the party fears to do so, and this fear
is some evidence of the circunstance or document or wtness if
brought, woul d have exposed facts unfavorable to the party.”

2 J. Wgnore Evidence Section 285 (3d ed. 1940).

Thus, USDA can and should find that the study

proponents refused to disclose woul d have been adverse to their

affirmative clains. Interstate Crcuit v. United States, 306
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U S. 208, 226 (1939); Stagner v. United States, 197 F.2d 992,
994 (5th Gr. 1952); and Local 167 v. United States, 291 U S
293 (1934); 29 Am Jur. 2nd Evidence Section 178.

So I'Il insert again, so this is not a new principle.
W' re | ooking at a principle that goes way back in American
Juri sprudence.

Back to the exhibit.

This evidentiary rule is applicable in admnistrative
as well as judicial proceedings. Singh v. Gonzales, 491 F. 3d
1019, 1024-25, (9th Grcuit 2007); In re DeGaff Dairies,

41 Agric.Dec. 388, 402-403 (1982). In hearings under The

Adm ni strative Procedure Act Section 556, agencies ny clearly
“draw such inferences or presunptions as the courts customarily
enpl oy, such as the failure to explain by a party in exclusive
possession of the facts..."

The Attorney Ceneral's Manual on the Adm nistrative Procedures
Act (1947), at page 76.

The USDA has utilized such inferences before. The
Tenth Grcuit has affirmed a United States Department of
Agriculture Adm nistrative Law Judge's use of an adverse
inference regarding a party's failure to introduce testinony
evidence. See Reed v. USDA, 39 F.3d 1192, 2* (10th Cr. Nov.
1, 1994) (affirmng a United States Departnment of Agriculture
Agriculture Law Judge's use of the inference in a cattle

shi ppi ng case).
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JUDGE CLI FTON: That's Admi nistrative Law Judge.

MR ENGLISH |I'msorry, did | not say Admnistrative Law
Judge?

JUDGE CLI FTON:  No, you said Agriculture Law Judge, but |
like it.

MR. ENGLI SH But thank you for the correction
Adm ni strative Law Judge.

I n anot her case appeal ed fromthe USDA, the Second
Grcuit ordered the lower court to conduct further fact finding
on the claims involving defective potatoes in the case, an
assessnent which it noted "may take into account any negative
i nferences that may be drawn from &&T's failure to keep resal e,
sorting, and dunping records.” G&T Term nal Packagi ng Co.
Inc. V. Joe Phillips, Inc., 798 F.2d 579, 581 (2nd Cir. 1986).
None of the limtations that apply to negative

i nferences exist here. For exanple, a party may not seek to
empl oy the inference for evidence it failed to request during
the discovery period. See Faucette v. National Hockey League,
2006 West Law 213857 (M ddle District of Florida, cited January
27th, 2006). No such discovery requirenents apply to this
proceedi ng, and, regardless -- |I'lIl insert here -- we nmade
constant requests. So even if discovery were sort of inplied,
it's not like we're surprising anybody, we have nade this
request consistently.

Additionally, this inference cannot be applied agai nst
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a defendant who asserts his Fifth Anendnent rights when the
government seeks to prove its crimnal charge based on an
inference that the defendant did not testify. Stone v. US.
390 U S. 204 (1968). Again, a circunmstance that does not apply
here.
Exhi bit 53, introduced during Eric Erba's testinony is
a transcript froma hearing before the CDFA dated May 20,
2013 -- was it 2013 or later? Actually, I'Il stop there.
The subject of the hearing was: "Consolidated Public

Hearing to Consider Tenporary Market Amendnents to the
Stabilization and Marketing Plans for Market M1k for the
Northern and Southern California Marketing Areas.” On page 55,
M. Erba says the follow ng about the study that Proponent
Cooper ati ves have otherwi se failed to introduce:

"I will make one final point in support of

California Dairies' proposal. Recently,

California Dairies received the results of a study

that reviewed the potential inpacts of a Federa

MIk Marketing Order in California. W, along

wth the -- | think the transcript says "D ary" --

so [Dairy] Farners of Anerica and Land O Lakes

co-funded the study conducted by Drs. Mark
St ephenson and Chuck Nichol son. The study

identified the large Cass 4b-Class IIl, price
spread as being problematic and suggested that a
manufacturing differential on the Cass Il price

coul d resolve the problemof higher mlk prices
whi | e sinmul taneously encouragi ng poo
participation by cheese plants. The |evel of the
differential is about $.70 cents per
hundredwei ght. I n other words, the study
suggested that the California price for mlk used
for cheese ought to be $.70 cents |less than the
Federal price. That $.70 cent differential is
approxi mately the sane as what was represented in
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hundr edwei ght increase in the dass 4b price that
we are proposing today."

This one statenent by itself reveals that the
undi scl osed study contains econom c analysis of price surface
i ssues that contradict sone of w tnesses assertions that mlk
used to produce manufactured products does not have | ocation
value. One or nore Cooperative w tnesses denied know edge of
any nodel regarding price surface issues that is nore current
than that used in FMMO reform-- they did acknow edge the
exi stence of the study, of course -- | inserted that. |If
Proponents still refuse to produce the study, the negative
i nference that should be drawn is the remai nder of the study
under m nes Proposal 1.

| think M. Vetne was going to supplement? O not?

JUDGE CLIFTON: Let's find out. Do you, M. English, have
anything to add?

MR ENGLISH Not at this tine.

JUDGE CLIFTON. Al right. And, of course, | want to hear
fromall of you about this extraordinary nmotion, extraordinary
in that nost of the citations don't have anything to do with
what we're doing here, but | don't know in what order you want
to proceed.

MR. ENGLISH:  Well, may | respond to that, your Honor?

JUDCGE CLIFTON: Not yet. 1'Il go last and then you may

respond to all of it. So in what order do you want to proceed,
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and do you want to do it now? M. Vetne does. M. Vetne, you
may proceed

MR BESHORE: May 1?

JUDGE CLIFTON: M. Beshore?

MR, BESHORE: Before M. Vetne proceeds, | would object to
any non-attorneys arguing |legal notions.

JUDGE CLIFTON:  No, no, no, well, your objection is noted.
M. Vetne may no |onger be legally an attorney because he's
retired, he's a representative. But |I'll certainly hear any
contribution he has with regard to the law. | respect his
opi nion highly and | have already accepted his opinion on |ega
matters throughout this proceeding and found themquite
hel pful .

So, M. Vetne, you may cone forward. W're al
struggling with the law here. W're all trying to deal with
it, lawers and non-lawers alike.

MR. VETNE: John Vetne for H | mar Cheese.

| just wanted to expand on this slightly. As
M. English noted, and as | have been using for about 40 years,
we conme to this hearing because it's a formal proceeding
covered by Section 556 and 557 of the APA

556 says that the proponent of a rule has a burden of
proof, and the decision will be based on the substantial record
evidence. That's a starting point. And then we get to the

Agricul tural Mrketing Agreement Act. And you know, here are
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the he elenents to consider, here's our policy fromthe past,
and so forth. So that's the starting point. But we have heard
fromthe very beginning of this proceeding that the problem
here in California, why we want a Federal Order, is the cheese
is underpriced. The value of mlk used to produce cheese is
underpriced in California and it ought to be higher. And in a
Federal Order Reform Decision, USDA said, the inportance of a
surplus mlk price that is market clear and cannot be
understated, that's alnost a direct quote, but 1'mdoing it by
menory. And that is a price that is for mlk charged to the
manuf acturer that receives mlk, billed in a margin of what it
costs to make and market, that's the make all owance, and
account for the difference.

If either the price that can be obtained fromsale of
the coomodity or the margin make all owance are erroneous, then
there is no margin, there is no return on investnent, there is
no ability to nmake cheese.

So one thing that | had expected and hoped to find from
Proponents during the presentation of their case is sone
evidence on the price that the Cooperative Proponents have,
over the years, been able to receive for the products they nake
and nmarket nationally so that USDA can be assured that if we
fix a price that's essentially set elsewhere, that they wll
receive a return on investnent. That is the process that for

probably a century has been applied in every kind of rate
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maki ng proceeding. The average utility cost a couple of years
ago was twelve cents per kilowatt hour, and if regulators were
to take the average and apply it to the individual circunstance
where the power generator could not recover a return on
investment at twelve cents, it would be unreasonable. It would
be confiscatory. And that is really the focus of the issue in
this proceedi ng.

So | agree with the negative inference that on a
substantial record evidence basis, the absence of any product
price revenue, product price received, product price ability to
gain fromthe market as a starting point upon which to build
make all owances. |If this were a court proceeding, this would
be the time when | used to make a notion for directed verdict.

Plaintiffs have not proven their case. W conme to this
point. Proponent's are done, it hasn't been made, our
proceeding is that we go forward and proponents m ght have a
chance to come back. But | think the inference goes broader
than just the Stephenson-N chol son study. Thank you.

JUDGE CLIFTON: Well, don't |eave yet, | have a couple of
questions for you. |Is there a nationwi de market for
manuf act ured products?

MR. VETNE: Yes, there is.

JUDGE CLIFTON: Al right. Then let ne ask you, is that
based on a return on investnent or is there some other standard

for it?
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MR. VETNE: For the cheese narket?

JUDGE CLI FTON: For manufactured products.

MR. VETNE: The cheese clears nationally. There is a price
each nonth that's determned nationally, and that price is the
conbi nati on of transactions from cheese nmakers to that market.
The question is not whether the cheese nmarket clears
nationally, it is whether the mlk market can clear locally. A
national clearing price for cheese is not the sane as a | oca
clearing price for mlk. That's the issue.

JUDGE CLI FTON: Thank you.

MR, VETNE: Thank you.

JUDGE CLIFTON:. M. Beshore, do you want to tal k now or do
you want to take a break?

MR BESHORE: | would like to talk now.

JUDGE CLI FTON:  You nay.

MR, BESHORE: And Marvin Beshore -- and | wll just talk
briefly. | would reserve the -- we'll brief this. W'IIl brief
this legal issue, and | would like to reserve the right to read
ny brief into the record sonetine later in this hearing if we
choose to do that, of course we may just brief it at
post - heari ng.

JUDGE CLIFTON: Well, wait a mnute, | got to decide,
don't 17?

MR, BESHORE: When -- at some point. You don't have to

deci de this.

3539

BARKLEY
TRANSCRIPT OF PROCEEDINGS-VOL. XVIII Court Reporters



© o0 ~N oo o b~ w DN P

NN NN R R R R R R R R R
g A W N P O © O N O O M W N B O

JUDCGE CLIFTON: So you believe this notion is not for me to
weigh inon at all, but strictly for the Agricultural Marketing
Service to take under consideration.

MR. BESHORE: Absolutely, | just heard them argue -- argue
their case, on the, you know, what the evidence shows, and what
it doesn't show, and what it should show, and what it shoul dn't
show. This is the weighing.

JUDGE CLIFTON:  You don't think that |I'm supposed to weigh
inon this prior to the end of the hearing so that you have a
second chance to decide whether to produce the study?

MR BESHORE: Well, | think, you know, we can choose to
produce the study any day from you know, fromnow to the rest
of the hearing if we choose to.

JUDGE CLIFTON: | know that.

MR. BESHORE: So that -- but | don't -- in terms of, is
this something that under the rules of practice calls for a
ruling fromyour Honor as the presiding Admnistrative Law
Judge in this hearing?

JUDGE CLIFTON: That's a very good question.

MR. BESHORE: Ckay. So | don't think it does. Because
it -- it's just -- it's directed to the decision-naking
process. Wiich as you've noted at the begi nning of everyday of
the hearing, is not vested in your chair, but in other chairs.
And that's -- this is all just, you know, addressed to the

deci si on- maki ng process, and what, you know, what inferences
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shoul d be involved in that process. So | would request, |
woul d suggest, | would request that, you know, if we decide to
brief, to submt a brief on this issue as an exhibit in this
hearing, that, you know, | nmay request the right to read it
into the record and present it at that time, as has been done
by M. English and nost of the argunents by M. Vetne.

Wth that said, | have got just a couple of comments at
this point that | would like to make. Ckay.

First of all, as your Honor has noted, there are
treatises and treatises on the Rules of Evidence that are not
applicable to these proceedi ngs, Rules of Legal Evidence. They
are applicable in district courts, and jury trials, etcetera,
etcetera, that are applicable to this proceeding. | nean, this
is just one, you know, one part of those W gnore-Horn books and
treatises on evidence. Federal Rules of Evidence, as has been
said earlier, do not apply to these proceedings and |ots of
common law, | venture, the presunptions do not apply.

None of these cases is a Rule 556 rul e maki ng hearing.
Ckay? MNone of them W haven't found any. The Attorney
CGeneral, closest thing there is the Attorney General's '47
menor andum on what the Adm nistrative Procedure Act, when it
was just passed, there was a nenorandum and there's an
observation in there. You know, that nay or may not relate to
this particular inference. |In any event, there aren't any rule

maki ng cases for this principal that's ever been applied. And
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the closest case actually is this, which isn't really close
exactly, but the DeGaff Dairies case, of course involved the
regulated mlk order in a 1580 proceeding. In a 1508
proceedi ngs, not a rule making proceeding. Wich is an
adj udi catory proceedi ng where facts specifically related to
i ndi vidual parties are what determne the case. This is rule
making. It is general rules to all parties.

And | would just make two other quick coments. One,
if M. Vetne has the courage of his convictions, and that woul d
apply to M. English, too, that there hasn't been enough
evi dence presented to support the rule, I think they should
rest and not present any evidence in this proceeding. W'l
see if they have the courage of their convictions.

And beyond that, | would, you know, | would only say
that if this negative inference were to apply to the
St ephenson- Ni chol son report, then | would al so suggest that it
wll apply to every Pand L, internal profitability analysis,
etcetera, of every nmenber of the Dairy Institute and every
other party that will object and oppose Proposal 1. If they
don't produce all of those records, then the inference should
be that those records would all "that a negative inference
should be drawn with respect to their position on Proposal 1."
So if we don't see internal profitability studies with respect
to all of the California plants involved in opposing this, and

H | mar, etcetera, etcetera, then the negative inference wll be
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that those financial records would not support their opposition
to Proposal 1. Thank you.

JUDGE CLIFTON: M. English, would you cone back to the
podiunf | |ike best of all M. Beshore's suggestion that |

need not rule. Do you agree with hin®

MR ENG&ISH | -- let me say yes and maybe.
And | mean, | think obviously the issue needs to be
briefed. | would stress that it's not |ike we cane here with a

surprise. And M. Beshore could have, and | believe should
have, been prepared for our doing exactly what we're doing. W
warned himin advance, cautioned him W gave himsome of our
| egal anal ysis back over a nonth ago. And | think your Honor
could rule. But | think that it could also take his time. |'m
not saying that you shouldn't rule on it at the conclusion of
the hearing because of the way notions work on part 900 and our
ability then to appeal the Secretary. So I think actually
there's a question of whether you need to rule at sone tineg,
but 1"mnot going to insist that you rule now

| do take issue with the idea that somehow this is
different. This is a proceeding unlike any other kind of rule
maki ng, given the nature of this being taken under oath with
your Honor as the Law Judge, and | think that that under
5 U S C 556, and this distinguishes us, they are the
proponents, they have to prove the need for an order. W don't

have to prove anything.
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And it's also different in that we have seen pieces of
the study made public, and then pieces of it kept confidential.
That's different fromthe P and L's that the attorney for CDFA
recogni zed woul d be subject to trade secret infornation, which
is the different concept.

And, finally, you know, it's one thing to talk about
courage of conviction, it is another thing to talk about mcro
mal practice laws with respect to whether or not | can sit down.
M. Vetne suggested, and we seriously considered, nmaking a nuch
nore | engthy presentation today that is in the formof a notion
to close this proceeding. That would be, | recognize, a waste
of tinme. So we're going to go forward, but we do think that
this is an inportant notion, and it does need to be exam ned,
and it is of critical inportance that this particul ar study,
whi ch the Cooperatives relied on for asking for the hearing,
not be wi thheld fromthe record

JUDGE CLIFTON: Don't |leave yet. Had you cone to a
st oppi ng poi nt?

MR. ENGISH Yes, | have cone to a stopping point and
needed water.

JUDGE CLIFTON: Al right. | won't rule today. | probably
won't rule the rest of the this hearing. 1'Il probably |eave
it to the Agricultural Marketing Service to rule. But | have a
question for you, M. English, the nmethod of producing evidence

at a hearing is to have a witness, a live witness cone to
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testify and be available for cross-exam nation. Are you
suggesting sone sort of a stipulation by which the study woul d
be nmade available in this hearing w thout any supporting
identification and cross-exam nation available for by the

aut hor s?

MR, ENG.I SH.  Your Honor, may | get mny | aptop?

JUDGE CLI FTON:  Yes.

MR. ENGLI SH: The short answer is, you don't need that. W
have had on the stand, economi c experts, who, pursuant to the
Federal Rules of Evidence, which are nore strict than the ones
here, this goes back to M. Vetne's point, that the real point
of qualifying a person as an expert isn't so they can be given
greater weight, but they can opine on other |earned treatises
or studies. W do not need Professor Stephenson or Professor
Ni chol son to appear in order for the co-ops to say yes, we
received this, this is the study, and this is what it shows,
and ny professional opinion is X and then Dr. Schiek can say ny
prof essional opinion is Y. That is the point, going back to
M. Vetne's point two weeks ago, of why we actually qualify
experts. It is so they can, under the Federal Rules of
Evi dence 80318, actually opine, and therefore, the study is not
hearsay. W have had plenty of that.

JUDGE CLIFTON: It's true. | agree with you. | hadn't
thought of it, but |I agree with you. Do you want to add

anyt hi ng nore?
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MR, ENGISH Not at this tine, your Honor.

JUDGE CLIFTON: Al right. So M. Beshore, it's in your
court as to how you want to handle it. |If you want to wait to
brief this when you have gone back to your office after all of
the evidence has been taken, | think that's fine. Because |
believe this should be decided, not by ne, but by the decider
of fact, which is the Agricultural Mrketing Service. So they
have good | awyers and they can deci de whether any negative
i nference should be drawn. So | guess | have said what | need
to say. Anything further on this issue, M. English?

MR. ENGLI SH:  No, your Honor. Thank you.

JUDGE CLI FTON: And does anyone el se want to be heard on
this issue or to ask questions right now of any of the three
who have tal ked about it? You don't have to ask questions.

MR, ENG.I SH  Li ke appellate judges? Appellate judge
panel ?

JUDGE CLIFTON: No, just inquisitive mnds want to know.
All right. Not at this time. Now, that does not mean that
shouldn't be asked and could be asked | ater.

MR ENGISH [I'Il be here for a few weeks, your Honor
JUDGE CLIFTON: Al right. That having been said, we'll
move on. W have identified Exhibit 78, because it's a notion,
we won't be putting it into evidence, but it will be part of

those exhibits that are identified.

Now, what woul d you like to do next, M. English?
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MR ENGISH Well, | guess | would like to consult with
Dr. Schiek. Dr. Schiek suggests lunch, but | do have maybe A
housekeepi ng thing we can do before | unch.

And | caution that this is subject to sone revision,
but M. Richnond asked the question of the Cooperatives after
M. Hollon was done, of basically a roadmap.

And while | have a nunber of noving pieces, | would
like to provide a roadmap, and | need ny conputer because
need to bring up the Departnent of Agriculture's suggested
topics so | get themcorrectly.

And given the fact that obviously we're now, | guess,
technically finishing week four, because we started on Tuesday,
but I would call this week five.

JUDGE CLIFTON: No, | agree with you. W'll keep track of

days and we'll keep track of weeks. Today begins week five.

In light of that, mne is not going to flow as M. Beshore's
did, frompoint to point. W are going to have, as | think
suggested | ast week, sone witnesses coming in this week who
wouldn't fit in this natural order. But nonetheless, |'m going
to give the natural order, and then we'll have to deviate from
It as W tnesses are avail able.

Going to the issue of opening statenents,
justification, scope and purpose, which is topic one on USDA s
suggested topics. We will obviously have Dr. Schiek this

af t er noon.
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After Dr. Schiek, but again, probably interrupted by
some things we'll talk about in a nonent, | expect at |east
five other wtnesses, two of whomwould be fluid mlKk
processor, will be considered distributing plants, and three
that are cheese makers.

Going to Issue 2, Definition and Pooling Standards.

Now | note, as | did in ny opening statenent, that there are a
nunber of areas where we're not going to have di sagreenent, so
not all of these issues will be discussed, and |I'll take sone
of these out of order. So for instance, quota and
producer-handler will be taken | ater, but otherw se,
definitions and pooling standards we expect, |eaving out the
producer-handl er and quota issues, approximately four to five
W t nesses.

Turning to Issues 3 and 4, which | think we really have
very little disagreement with the Cooperatives, | think we
m ght have one w tness and maybe some others will touch on sone
of the issues, but one witness on 3 and 4 and it may be very
short.

JUDGE CLIFTON: Tell us again what 3 and 4 are.

MR ENGISH |I'msorry, | apologize. That's why | brought
ny conputer up. Nunber 3 was the Rules of Practice and
Procedures Governing Market Admi nistrators and O der
Provi sions; and nunber 4 was Rules of Practice and Procedure

Governing Handlers. So handler's responsibility for records
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and facilities and term nation of obligations and ot her
reports. And | think we're looking primarily at producer
report kind of issues and reports for receipts of utilization.
JUDGE CLI FTON: Reports of what?
MR. ENGLISH:  Utilization -- receipts and utilization

Turning to Issue 5, Cassification of MIk. | think
that primarily issue we will face there is the treatnent of
shrinkage on extended shelf life processing lines. And for
that, | believe we have four to five witnesses, and those woul d
be starting probably tonmorrow afternoon. |'mnot sure which of
these two is going to come first. Cbviously, they relate to
each other, but when you get to Issue 6, Class Prices, we would
expect six to eight witnesses wth respect to Cass Prices.

Pi cki ng up on Nunmber 2, Quota, which I said will not be
taken in that order, that woul d be taken probably after pricing
or during pricing in some way. W expect six to eight
W tnesses with respect to quota.

As to Market-Wde Surface Paynments, Nunmber 7, we would
expect two to three w tnesses.

| think Producer Prices and Payments for MIk will
probably woul d be merged wth class prices, Nunber 6, and quota
I ssues. That's nunber 8, by the way.

JUDGE CLIFTON: If you don't mnd, what |I'mgoing to ask
you to do is, each norning I'mgoing to ask you again to give

me the portion of the roadmap that we are going to be entering
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in the near future, but this is extrenmely hel pful to have this.
MR. ENGLI SH: Thank you.
JUDGE CLIFTON:. And | amglad to have it.
MR ENGISH And | wll do ny best each norning to have it

accurate. As | say, | think there are sone novi ng pieces here,
people coming in, but yes, I will try to do that, your Honor,
we'll do that during the prelimnary section.

Wth respect to Nunber 9, Adm nistrative Assessmnent
Mar ket i ng Servi ce Deduction and M scel | aneous Provi sions, |
expect one, naybe two, w tnesses. Then having taken
producer-handler in Section 76 out of order, | expect two to
three wtnesses.

And then finally, even though there's going to be
W t nesses who come in, who are say a small cheese pl ant
operator or sonething, so | would call them general witnesses,
and | think we have sonething north of five of those.

JUDGE CLIFTON:. And | would like soneone fromAgricultura
Marketing Service to nake sure that the court reporter takes
hone a copy of that proposed agenda. It will be easier to type
what M. English just identified with a copy of the of those
wor ds.

MR. ENGISH. Could | have a copy, too.

JUDGE CLIFTON:. D d we run out?

MR ENGISH Oh, I"'msorry, this is the topic list. |

t hought you neant what | just said. | would love to see it.
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But that's what | think we have. | think this week we'll spend
nost of the tinme on that item one, opening statenents, and the
ESL sheet.

JUDGE CLI FTON:  Wo has questions for M. English about the
roadmap? M. Mltner?

MR MLTNER Ryan MItner.

My question is, as | count 35 to 45 w tnesses or so,
and ny curiosity is, are those each individuals or does that
i ncl ude people who may appear nultiple tinmes?

MR, ENGISH It includes people who will appear multiple
times. Dr. Schiek will likely testify four or five times, he's
greatly appreciative of that.

| think it's safe to say that especially the people who
are appearing in itemone, will likely be heard fromagain
But those are clearly overlap. | think also, it is safe to say
that some of these will be very short. And by the way, these
do not include M. Vetne's witnesses that he tal ked about | ast
Friday. This is, these are strictly Dairy Institute of
California w tnesses.

JUDGE CLIFTON: M. Beshore?

MR, BESHORE: Did | understand this week you figure, are
the wi tnesses on topic one plus ESL?

MR ENGLI SH:  Yes.

MR, BESHORE: Thank you.

MR. ENGLISH. That is our intent. | cannot prom se
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someone's not going to show up on Wednesday that | wasn't
expecting.

JUDGE CLIFTON:. M. English, if you would go back to the
podi um

MR ENGLI SH:  Yes, your Honor.

JUDGE CLIFTON: | believe you are not only a proponent, but
you al so represent opposition to Proposal Nunmber 1; is that
correct?

MR, ENGISH | have thought about every norning when we
are introduci ng ourselves, to say that we are opponents of
Proposal Number 1, and if there's to be an Order, then we're
proponents of Proposal 2. But yes, we are, these w tnesses
wll be testifying in opposition to Proposal 1.

JUDGE CLIFTON: And that will be all fused together?

MR. ENGLISH: Yes. W're not going to have, after |'m done
wth that, our opposition to 1 is done, our support of 2 1is
done, it's an alternative to 1, and we wll have discussed
exenpt quota to the extent we intend to address exenpt quot a.

JUDCGE CLI FTON: Does anyone el se have any further questions
of --

MR ENGLISH Wth one caveat. Since we haven't seen the
| anguage that's proposed, we may have to come back after the
| anguage is proposed, if it has not yet been proposed by the
time we are done.

JUDGE CLI FTON: Does anyone el se have any questions of
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M. English? O course, you can -- you can ask questions each

norni ng when he identifies the segnent that we're about to go

into. Al right. Thank you, M. English

MR, ENGLI SH: Thank you, your Honor. | propose |unch

JUDCGE CLIFTON: Very good. | agree with you, this is a

good time to break. It is now 12:15. Please be back and ready

to go at 1:30.

(Wher eupon,

the lunch recess was taken.)

---000- - -
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MONDAY, OCTOBER 19, 2015 - - AFTERNOON SESSI ON

JUDGE CLIFTON: We're back on record at 1:34. |Is there
anything prelimnary to our taking testinmony of Dr. Schiek? It
appears not. W do have sone exhibits to distribute.

MR, ENGI SH  Yes, your Honor. | have already given to
USDA, Pamis got three copies of each, there's the testinony of
Dr. WIlliam Schiek, Part 1, and Exhibits, figures and tables
for the testinony of Dr. WIliam Schiek. And | also provided
your Honor a copy and the court reporter a copy.

JUDGE CLI FTON: Excellent. So would you like the testinony
to be the first number?

MR ENGLISH Yes, | would like testimony | believe to be
Exhibit 79.

JUDGE CLI FTON: Yes, that will be good. And then the
figures and tables will be 80.

(Thereafter, Exhibit 79 and Exhibit 80 were
mar ked for identification.)

JUDGE CLIFTON: If you did not yet get a copy of Exhibit 79
and 80 and want one, would you pl ease raise your hand. Raise
your hands again so Ms. Vulin can see them She's going to
make copies and bring themto you.

All right. Then, shall we go forward, M. English?

MR ENGLI SH:  Yes, your Honor.

JUDCGE CLIFTON: Al right. Then, Dr. Schiek you nay be

seated in the witness stand. Dr. Schiek | knowthis is Wek 5,
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is this the first time you have testified in this proceedi ng?
DR SCH EK It is.
JUDGE CLI FTON: Would you raise your right hand, please?
Do you solemly answer or affirmunder penalty of perjury
that the evidence you will present will be the truth?
DR SCH EK: | do.
JUDGE CLI FTON: Pl ease state and spell your nane.
DR SCHEK M nane is Wlliam WI-L-L-1-A-M Schiek
SCGHI-EK
JUDGE CLI FTON: Thank you. M. English, you nay proceed.
MR, ENG.lI SH: Thank you.

Your Honor, as we begin with Exhibits 79 and 80, | want
to note four or five things.

First, instead of footnotes we have endnotes that
appear on page 40. They are all strictly pure references, as
opposed to text that would be attritional footnote. And
woul d ask that rather than having themread into the record,
they sinply appear in the transcript as stated in Exhibit 79,
and that the witness not have to note where they appear. The
court reporter can take care of that as going along. But
rather than interrupt the flowwth footnotes that are
genuinely citations to materials upon which the Dr. Schiek
relies, that they be treated as if read, to prevent tedi um of
readi ng those in.

JUDGE CLIFTON: Al right. | would like to address an
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i ssue now about that. | think testinony does not have to
conformidentically to the exhibit. And | don't want to put
added burden on the court reporter. So | want to go off record
and determ ne whether this kind of thing does, in fact, present
added burden. W know we're not going to use tables. | think
normal Iy just typing text is a whole different thing, but when
it is formatted as footnotes that doesn't line up with the way
the transcript lines go, which | think is like 25 |ines per
page, so | want to go off record, and if this is going to
present any burden in the preparation of the transcript, |
don't want us to do it that way because --

MR. ENGLI SH: | understand, your Honor, | get that. |If,
you know what, the exhibit is going to be admtted presumably
and therefore, references will be there.

JUDGE CLIFTON: Is it fine with you?

MR ENGI SH  Yes.

JUDGE CLI FTON: Bless you. Thank you. W wll not even
have to go off record. Thank you, M. English, | really
appreci ate that.

MR. ENGLI SH That's point 1.

JUDGE CLI FTON: Ckay.

MR ENG.ISH  Point 2, Dr. Schiek and | --

JUDGE CLIFTON:  No vol une.

MR- ENGISH Dr. Schiek and | have a slightly different

version which is for readability purposes of the document for
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readability purposes. So if at some point there is a
correction, which | know we'll be making, | will have the
version you have so | can, and he does, too, so we can make
sure we are looking in the same place. And that also is for
cross-exam nation when sonebody says | ook at page 12, he needs
to have that version in front of him

Third, related to that, periodically I wll actually be
asking Dr. Schiek to stop and I'mgoing to ask himsevera
questions, and then pick back up in the testinony and obviously
I will make it clear where we are as we go forward

Next, because part one is prinmarily about history of
California, unless Dr. Schiek says otherw se, all class nunbers
w |l be Arabic rather than Roman. So rather than having the
W tness have to say "Arabic 4" unless he says "Roman" then it
is taken as Arabic.

And finally, M. Beshore will be pleased to know t hat
some of his Gemins have mgrated over to us, and we know we
have some fixes. W were working on his testinony early this
morning, late last night, and then we wanted to copy it and
have it ready to go. So we're aware there's going to be sone
things to be fixed as we go forward.

And with that, Dr. Schiek, could you begin with your
statenment, which is Exhibit 79, identified as Exhibit 79?

JUDCGE CLI FTON: Before you do that, you, again, have been

very skinpy on your --
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MR. ENGLISH: We're going to take care of that, your Honor.
That was one of my periodic interruptions. You are ahead of
me.

JUDGE CLI FTON: Good. Thank you. Then you nmay begin

DR SCH EK: Thank you, your Honor.

DI RECT EXAM NATI ON
BY DR SCHI EK
| NTRODUCTI ON
My name is WIliam Schiek, SSGHI-E K For the past
18 years | have been Econom st for Dairy Institute of
California, a trade association representing fluid mlKk
processors and dairy product manufacturers with the plants in
California. Dairy Institute's offices are located at 1127 1lth
Street, Suite 718, in Sacranento, California. Qur organization
has been representing California mlk processors since 1939.
Today, Dairy Institute represents 25 dairy conpanies

whi ch process approxi mately 65 percent of the state's fluid
m | k and manufacture about 90 percent of the state's cheese,
and 75 percent of its cultured dairy products and ice cream
Dairy Institute's nenbers operate in both state marketing areas
in California. Dairy Institute provides nmenber conpanies wth
mar ket and regul atory information services, and advi ses them on
regul atory and | egislative issues inpacting their business
operations. W also serve as our nmenbers' primary advocate on

dairy legislative and regulatory matters.
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BY MR ENGLI SH.

Q Thank you. So this is where | was going to do sone

addi tional discussion of who Dr. Schiek is, your Honor
So prior to your joining Dairy Institute staff, what
wer e you doi ng?

A. | was Assistant Professor of Agricultural Econom cs at
Purdue University in Wst Lafayette, |Indiana, and that was from
1991 through 1997.

Q And what were your responsibilities when you were at
Pur due?

A, Yeah, at Purdue | had the responsibility for teaching
courses in Agricultural Marketing and Food Busi ness Managenent.
| conducted research on a variety of food and agricultura
mar keting topics, including dairy marketing topics.

Q So before that, what did you do?

A. Before that, | was enployed by the New York-New Jersey
M1k Market Admnistrator's O fice, that was old Federal Order
Nunmber 2. Those of you who know Eric Rasmussen, he was the guy
who hired me. And | did that right out of college. | was
wor ki ng there as a Cooperative Relations Specialist from 1982
to 1984, and then as an Econom st from 1985 to 1989.

Q So you nentioned college, so what was your
under graduat e degree in?

A. M undergraduate degree was a Bachel or of Science in

1982 that | got at Cornell University in Ithaca, New York.
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Wile | was there, actually, that was sort of ny start in the
whol e great world of dairy marketing. Dr. Erba knows this
history. | started working on a study of mlk hauling costs in
New York as a sumer job, working with ny major professor, and
that sort of introduced ne to a |ot of the players in the
industry in New York, as well as the Market Adm nistrator. So
a coupl e years |ater they hired ne.

Q And what was your Bachelor of Science in from Cornell?

A, Yeah, the title of the degree was Applied Econom cs and
Busi ness Managenent, which is actually kind of a business,
under graduat e busi ness degree. And | believe that departnent
still offers that degree, they kind of actually specialize in
that now. But, you know, | took a |ot of agriculture marketing
policy courses and food marketing courses as part of that
degr ee.

Q And then what did you do next for your education?

A, So while | was still working for the Market
Adm nistrator, | began a graduate program at the University of
Florida in Gainesville, Florida -- and you have got a few al uns
here of that fine institution. So | began to pursue a Master's
of Science degree, and working with my major professor,
Dr. Emerson Babb, who sone of you are famliar with, who spent
a lot of years working on Dairy Mrketing topics and published
quite a bit in that area. And so | worked for nmy Master's

program the topic of ny thesis had to do wth the inpact of
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reverse osnosis concentrations of fluid mlk on mlk markets in
Fl orida and the Southeast .

Q So when did you get your Master's of Science?

A.  So, yes, | conpleted that degree in 1988.

Q And since --

JUDGE CLIFTON: May | interrupt? Do you where you are?

MR ENGI SH  Yes, | do.

JUDGE CLI FTON: kay. Dr. Emerson who?

DR SCH EK: B-a-b-b.

JUDGE CLI FTON: And Erik Rasmussen's nane is spelled how?

DR. SCH EK: Ckay. |Is anybody in the Dairy Division want
to give ne a hand wth that?

JUDGE CLIFTON: | know himand | know his nane, | don't
know how to spell it.

DR. SCH EK: M. Vetne, you nust be able.

MR RICHVOND: Bill Richnond, USDA. | believe it is
RA-SMUSS-E-N

JUDGE CLI FTON:  And Erik?

MR RICHVOND: Erik with a "K".

MR, ENGISH Unlike Dr. Erba, who | incorrectly in the
menmorandum cal led Eric with a "K" it was, and Dr. Erba is Eric
with a C

JUDGE CLIFTON: Al right. And Erik Rasnussen with a K
Thank you all .

DR SCH EK: And please don't tell himthat |I couldn't
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remenber how to spell his nane.

JUDGE CLI FTON: \Well, he probably knew.

MR. ENGLISH. He's already |istening.

JUDGE CLIFTON: M. English, you may pick up where you
wer e.

MR ENG.I SH. Thank you very nuch, your Honor, and I
appreci ate your assistance on that.
BY MR ENGLI SH.

Q So after you got your Master's of Science, what did you
do next for your education?

A kay. So still at the University of Florida,
continued on and pursued a Ph.D., again, working on a dairy
marketing topic. The title of ny dissertation was the -- what
was it? Factors Affecting the Regional Structure of U.S. MIKk
Production. And fortunately, that work was selected by the
American Association of Agricultural Econom cs for Honorable
Mention in their dissertation contest.

Q And you got your Ph.D. in what year?

A, That would have been 1991

Q Anything else you would like to add, well, actually,
l et me ask nore questions, | apol ogize.

A, Sure.

Q And in your time, you said 18 years at the Dairy
Institute of California, have you testified at any CDFA

heari ngs?
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A, Many.
Q Have you | ost count?
A. | have lost count.

Q | remenber you testified at | east at one Federal O der
Hearing, correct?

A Yes. Actually. | believe |l testified at two. There
was one in the spring of 2000, that was mandated hearing, |
bel i eve on manufacturing costs and the dass Ill and IV
f or mul as.

Q So you testified first at that hearing and then you
later testified -- | wasn't aware, | had forgotten, so |
apol ogi ze -- so you testified at that hearing in 2000, and then
you testified at the National Producer-Handler Hearing in 20097

A '09, yes, | did.

Q Ckay.

JUDGE CLIFTON: So contrary to earlier instructions, those
were Roman nunerals, Cass Il and |V?

MR. ENGLI SH: That was straying fromthe original
st at ement .

DR SCH EK: W're off the text here, but yeah, Ronman
numeral Class |11, Roman nuneral dass |V.

MR. ENGLI SH  Your Honor, | would nmove Dr. Schiek be
accepted as an expert in agricultural economcs and airy
mar keti ng and policy.

JUDGE CLI FTON:  Woul d anyone |ike to ask questions of
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Dr. Schiek before determ ning whether you have any objection?
There is no one. |s there any objection to nmy accepting
Dr. Schiek as an expert in agricultural economcs and dairy
mar keting and policy? There are no objections. | do accept
Dr. Schiek as an expert in agricultural econom cs and dairy
mar keti ng and policy.
BY MR ENGLI SH.

Q Dr. Schiek, would you then continue with your statenent
wi th the headi ng Roman nuneral 17?

A |. CALIFORNI A HAS MANAGED | TS DAl RY PROGRAMS TO KEEP
MARKETI NG CONDI TI ONS ORDERLY.

The Dairy Institute concludes that there are no
significant disorderly marketing conditions that would warrant
the pronul gation of the California Federal M|k Mrketing
Order. ("FMMO'). In the letter acconpanying the subm ssion of
their proposal, (Proposal 1) --

Q | think you can dispense wth the parens?

A Ckay.

Q Per earlier

A.  The three cooperatives, Dairy Farmers of Anerica,
(DFA), Land O Lakes, Inc's, or (LOL), and California Dairies,
Inc., or (CDI), argue that the nmere existence of differences
bet ween regul ated m nimum prices under California State O der
and those in Federal M|k Marketing Orders (FMMOs) is prim

facie evidence of disorderly marketing. In their letter
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justifying the need for an FMMO in California, they offered no
description of existing marketing conditions in the state that
were disorderly, only the unsubstantiated presunption that
different regul ated price |evels nean that marketing conditions
nmust be disorderly.

What is perhaps unusual, is that this proceedi ng does
not involve promulgating a Marketing Order in an area that is
presently devoid of mlk pricing regulations, but in an area
that has a functioning and effective State M|k Marketing
Order. Furthernore, it is a State Order with both classified
pricing and market-w de pooling, two key features of Federal
Orders that are acknow edged to be the foundation of the policy
tool kit used by USDA to bring about orderly marking in FMMO s.
Beyond that, California's State Order is one with a | ong
hi story of promoting orderly narketing and of adapting
regul ation to changing market conditions to insure that orderly
marketing of mlk is maintained. Indeed, California statutes
require orderly marketing of mlk as a fundanmental goal and
purpose of state mlk price regulation

Q If you can stop there for a nonent. Wth respect to
that | ast paragraph, there's been other testinmony in this
heari ng about what happened in North and South Carolina that
led to a promul gation of orders in those areas where there was
state regul ation. What can you say about what happened in the

Carol i nas?
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A Wll, I don't have a whole | ot of experience in the
Carolinas, but ny understanding of the situation there was that
despite having the state marketing orders, there were, there
was a | ot of packaged mlk and bulk mlk entering the area and
undermining the integrity of those state prograns.

Q Thank you. So returning to your statenent.

A. Division 21, Part 3, Chapter 2, Section 61802(e) of the
California Food and Agricultural Code states:

And | quote:

"It is the policy of this state to pronote, foster, and
encourage the intelligent production and orderly marketing of
commodi ties necessary to its citizens, including market mlk
and to elimnate econom c waste, destructive trade practices,
and i nproper accounting for market m |k purchased from
producers. "

In Section 61802(h), the inportance of orderly
marketing is enphasi zed again. And | quote:

"...It is further recognized by the Legislature that in
order to acconplish the purposes of this chapter and to pronote
the public health and welfare, it is essential to establish
m ni mum producer prices at fair and reasonable levels so as to
generate reasonabl e producer incomes that will pronote the
intelligent production and orderly marketing of market mlk in
the various classes.”

111
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H story of State Efforts to Ensure Oderly MIk Marketing in
California
California' s dairy statutes and regul ations that were

desi gned to address orderly marketing, ironically, had their
genesis in a failure of Federal regulations to address the
marketing problems in the state. Under the 1933 Agricultura
Adj ustment Act, narketing agreenents were set up in severa
urban market urban fluid mlk markets during -- in the state --
should say in the state. (See end note (i) on page 40 of
Exhibit 79.)

Q That's one of the little Genlins.

JUDGE CLIFTON: Al right. So I'mjust going to say now,

on Page 3, of Exhibit 79, | would like the record copy to

change the word in the fourth line down from"during" to "in",
is that correct; Dr. Schiek?

DR. SCHEK It is.

JUDGE CLI FTON:  Thank you.

DR SCH EK: \Wen the U S Supreme Court held that these
original marketing agreenments were invalid, California was |eft
wi t hout any regul atory progranms to address the state dairy
industry's problens at the time. Before the U S. Governnent
resol ved the problens identified by the court with a 1935 Act
and the 1937 Agricultural Marketing Agreements Act or (AMAA),

Cali fornia had begun working on its own solution authorized

under state governmental authority. "Producer price regulation
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was contained in the Young Act of 1935. The |egislation
designated a third party, the Director of Agriculture, to
establish mnimumprices to be paid for fluid mlk and creamto
producers by distributors...A classified pricing systemwth
Cass 1 mlk for beverage use was the foundation of the m ninmm
price." (See end note (ii) on page 40 of Exhibit 79.

BY MR ENGLI SH.

Q So if you could stop there. So unlike, say, the
Nort heast, where after various pieces of litigation you had
m | k moving across the borders from Vernmont to New York, or
vice versa, did California have any distinctions as opposed to
t hose kinds of novenents that |ed to Federal Orders being
i ntroduced very quickly in that area?

A Wll, Californiais a big place, first of all, and it's
surrounded by a lot of nountains and deserts. And it is
somewhat, at |east at the tinme, geographically isolated, and
there weren't significant quantities of producer mlk crossing
state lines. So interstate mlk marketing did not create any
significant pressures on the state's industry that would |ead
to disorderly conditions at that tine.

Thi s geographic isolation and the fact that.
Washington DCis a lot farther away fromwhere dairy farners
live in California than Sacranmento, | think was a big factor in
folks wanting to pursue the state-run system as opposed to a

Federal Order. And they kind of held to that even after the
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option to join a Federal Oder cane in with the 1937 Act, and
basically decided to nmove forward with the state system

Q So returning to your statenent.

A. Regulatory programs in other states were established
during the m d-1930's, but when Federal Orders becane an option
after the passage of the AMAA, many of those states abandoned
their mlk price regulatory prograns. (See end note (iii) on
page 40 of Exhibit 79.) 1In California, the Young Act did not
i nclude provisions for nmarket-w de pooling of mlk. Individua
handl er pools were felt sufficient to address the industry's
needs and to encourage orderly marketing because the
utilization of the Gade Amlk supply in fluid mlk products
was in excess of 80 percent.

Nurer ous adj ustments have been nade by California State
M1k Marketing Orders over the years to keep up with changes in
t he marketplace and maintain orderly marketing. Some of these
have been instigated by state legislation (with conformng
regul atory changes followi ng), while others have been purely
regul atory in nature. These included several features and
adj ustnents that are described in the foll ow ng pages.
Wiol esal e and retail pricing. To preserve revenue
opportunities for dairy farnmers and for mlk industry
stability, the |egislature passed the Desnond Act in 1937.
After the legislation passed, the Director of Agriculture began

to establish mnimumwhol esale and retail (collectively
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referred to as resale) prices. The establishment of m ninmum
resal e prices discouraged retailers frompressuring processors
to provide packaged mlk at |ower prices, driving down margins
in the industry in a manner that woul d reduce the nunber of
buyers of Cass 1 mlk in the narketplace and limting
conpetition for dairy farmer's mlk. The Agriculture
Departnent Director set mninumresale prices to as to cover
al | reasonabl e costs, including a reasonable return on
investment for reasonably efficient distributors of the various
types, and to protect consumers by not requiring themto pay
mlk prices that were higher than those needed for the

mai nt enance of adequate and efficient distribution facilities.
(See end note (iv) on page 40 of Exhibit 79.) The Desnond Act
was repealed in 1978 in the face of court actions and an

evol ving industry where prelimresale prices were no | onger
deenmed necessary.

Unl awf ul Practices and Prohibition of Sales Bel ow Cost.

In 1947, the California |legislature passed the Dairy
Products Unfair Practices Act. After passage of the Act, the
Director of Agriculture regulated certain practices such as
sal es bel ow cost, offering secret rebates, making | oans to
custoners, engaging in false advertising, and offering specia
pricing to select custoners. Also, the new Act addressed the
issue of the entities that did not market fluid mlk, but

instead, marketed only manufactured dairy products. These
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firms had an advantage over full line distributors who were
subject to the Desnmond Act. Preventing large or well-funded
dairy product marketers fromusing the | ow cost sales or

prohi bited nmarketing practices to drive conpetitors out of

busi ness was an area of concern. The prevailing view at the
time was that such practices could reduce the nunber of buyers
of dairy farmer's mlk in the state, reducing conpetition, and
t hereby underm ni ng the bargai ni ng power of producers with
respect to their interactions with mlk buyers.

Q So how did that get inplenented by CDFA?

A Well, it led, really to the abandoni ng of severa
practices, such as putting mlk on special sale for alimted
period, or couponing, either directly, cents off on fluid mlKk,
or as part of a cross-pronotion |like we used to see, buy a box
of cereal get a coupon for reduced price on mlk, so those
ki nds of practices were banned, primarily because it was
t hought that that would lead to a bel ow cost sale.

Q Returning to your statenent, please.

A, The Unfair Practices Act was anended in 2000 to all ow
processors to engage in conmon marketing practices, but the
prohi bition of sales bel ow cost was retained. Revised
regul ations under the authority of the Dairy Marketing Branch
that specified how "cost" is determ ned when eval uati ng whet her
couponi ng or other various pronotion prograns are in conpliance

wth the Act were established in 2005.
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Conmponent Pricing and Fornula Prices. Wth the introduction of
California's lowfat mlk standard in 1962, conponent pricing
was established for Aass 1 mlk. The lowfat mlk standard
required that mlk sold as |owfat or (2 percent) mlk, be
required to have 10 percent nonfat mlk solids, which required
fortification. The basis for establishing how Cass 1 prices
were paid by handl ers was changed to a conponent basis that
required paynent for mlkfat, or (butterfat), nonfat mlk
solids (solids not fat or SNF) and fluid carrier which is the
portion of mlk that is neither mlk fat nor nonfat mlk
solids. This change was put in place to recognize that the
degree of fortification required to meet the new [owfat mlk
standard woul d vary by processor depending on the average test
of its incomng mlk.

Fluid mlk processors receiving mlk with a high
percentage of SNF would be required to fortify less than would
processors receiving mlk wth a | ow SNF percentage. This
difference could lead, in turn, to unequal raw product costs
for conpeting handlers in the marketing area. By adopting a
t hree- conponent Class 1 price system the California State
Marketing Order effectively nodified its pricing to equalize
raw product cost. This equalization was nade possi bl e because
t he SNF conponent was being explicitly priced and now had a
regul ated cost both to processors who obtained SNF as part of

their producer mlk, and to those who purchased it in the form
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of nonfat dry m |k (NFDM) or condensed skim

Q So what is the concern over unequal raw product cost?

A Well, the concern was that if processors had different
raw product cost based on where they sourced their mlKk,
handl ers woul d have an incentive to gauge, to engage in efforts
to try to lower their costs by going after that high-test mlk
high SNF value mlk. So that could lead to disorderly, or
inefficient you could say, novenents of m |k where you have
sort of high-test mlk |eapfrogging closer-end mlk to the
fluid plant in order to get that raw product cost advantage.
And it was also viewed that people were going to want to buy
certain producer's mlk because it had higher test as opposed
to other producer's mlk, and that woul d create conpetitive
pressures on folks that didn't have high-test mlk and probably
lead to a sort of lower prices in the marketplace.

Q In response to that question, you said disorderly
mar keting and then you said or inefficient novenents of mlk
What is your connection between inefficient nmovenents of mlk
and disorderly marketing?

A \Vell, inefficient novenents of mlk is one of the
practices or things that go on in the narketplace that woul d
often times be considered disorderly. That is, it's an
econom ¢ waste because you are spending dollars on
transportation to move in distant mlk, when there's closer

m | k avail abl e that woul d serve the purpose.

3573

BARKLEY
TRANSCRIPT OF PROCEEDINGS-VOL. XVIII Court Reporters




© o0 ~N oo o b~ w DN P

NN NN R R R R R R R R R
g A W N P O © O N O O M W N B O

Q Returning to your statenent, please.
A Ckay.
In 1965, classified pricing based on finished product
prices for butter and nonfat -- should say nonfat dry mlKk.
Q So insert the word "dry" between "nonfat" and "m|k"?
JUDGE CLIFTON: Al right. Now !l was still witing that
| ast thought, so I know we're on page 6 and | know we're in the
first full paragraph.
MR ENGISH W're in the second paragraph, your Honor,
and it was the first |ine.
JUDGE CLIFTON:  First line.
MR ENGISH And it's at the end of the line he said
correctly it should be "nonfat dry mlk" at the end of that
first line, inserting the word "dry".
JUDGE CLIFTON: Al right. So I would instruct that
change. M. Elliott, do you know exactly where we were?
MS. ELLIOIT: Yes.
JUDGE CLI FTON: Thank you.
BY MR ENGLI SH.

Q So why don't you start the sentence again and include
the word dry, Dr. Schi ek.

A, In 1965, classified pricing based on finished product
prices for butter and nonfat dry mlk began to be used to price
m |k used in manufactured products. Prior to this tine, prices

for market (Gade A) mlk used to nmake manufactured -- used to
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make manufactured dairy products, had been established based on
the price of manufacturing grade (Grade B) m| k. Because of
the di mnishing quantity of manufacturing G ade A m |k being
produced in California, the state adapted to the changing
mar ket pl ace by introducing a fornmula price based on end product
prices, a concept that was eventually fully adopted by the
FMMO s in 2000.

Formula pricing of Class 1 mlk did not begin until
1978. The industry recognized that: 1) inflation was |eading
to the need to adjust Cass 1 prices on a frequent basis,
2) the calling of frequent hearings was inefficient, and
3) resulting price changes were often "behind the curve"
because by the tine changes resulting fromthe hearing were
i mpl ement ed, market conditions had changed again. An automatic
formula that changed the Cass 1 price on a binmonthly basis was
adopted in August 1978 to replace the nethod of establishing
fixed price values through hearings. The new dass 1 fornula,
was a wei ghted average of three factors: an index of
California per hundredwei ght m |k production costs given a 43
percent weight, a dairy comodity reference price, weighted 42
percent, and the real average weekly earnings of nanufacturing
wor kers wei ghted 15 percent. This three-factor fornula val ue
was then conpared to a previously established per hundredwei ght
O ass 1 base val ue, and the change was apportioned to each of

t he conponents: fat, solids not fat, and fluid carrier, on a
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proportional basis (40 percent, 40 percent, and 20 percent)
respectively.

In 1993, the production cost index and manufacturing
wage were dropped fromthe fornula and only the comodity
reference price was used to adjust Cass 1 conponent val ues.

In 1999, the nethod of apportioning formula changes relative to
the Cass 1 "base value" anong the Cass 1 conponents was
abandoned. The Class 1 price going forward was established
directly using a conmmodity reference price that was based on
the CMVE prices for cheddar cheese 40-pound bl ocks and G ade AA
butter and a mlk fat conponent price fornula based on the

Chi cago Mercantile Exchange (CME) Grade AA butter price. After
Federal Order Reformin 2000, the California comodity
reference price was changed to reflect the higher of a butter
powder value or a cheese value so that the formula would track
nore closely with Class | prices in the FMMO s.

Gonsal ves M1k Pooling Act. (See end note (vi) on page 40 of
Exhibit 79.) The Young Act of 1935 provided for regul ated

m ni mum prices to be paid by fluid mlk handl ers to producers
for the mlk they purchased for fluid use. Wile the bulk of
fluid grade mlk used in the state was for fluid purposes,
there was always sone m |k that was being used for
manuf act uri ng purposes. An anendnment to the Young Act in 1937
provi ded for regulated m nimumprices to be applied to fluid

G ade A mlk used for manufacturing purposes.
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After World War 11, the growh of the state's

popul ation, coupled with growth in the supply of fluid grade
mlk, led to a situation where mlk utilization could differ
substantially across handlers. Gven the systemof fluid mlKk
contracts and individual handler pools -- and insert effective
at the tine.

JUDGE CLIFTON:. Ms. Elliott, this change will be nade to
the record copies on page 8, first line. Are you there?

M5. ELLIOIT: Yes.

JUDGE CLI FTON: Thank you.
BY MR ENGLI SH.

Q So why don't you start the sentence again, Dr. Schiek?

A. Gven the systemof fluid mlk contracts and indivi dua
handl er pools effective at the tine, the blended prices
received by dairy farners supplying different handl ers coul d
|'i kew se vary substantially. Because of this, contracts to
supply handlers with high fluid mlk (Class 1) utilization were
especially prized. This put Class 1 handlers in a strong
bargai ning position with producers and led to practices by sone
handl ers, particularly in Southern California, that eroded
producer revenues. |In addition, nore Cass 1 processors were
acquiring mlk cows and dairy farm ng operations, which further
reduced the Class 1 mlk revenues available to be shared anong
producers. Wakness of producers' cooperatives in this period

prevented them from bargai ning effectively on behalf of their

3577

BARKLEY

TRANSCRIPT OF PROCEEDINGS-VOL. XVIII Court Reporters



© o0 ~N oo o b~ w DN P

NN NN R R R R R R R R R
g A W N P O © O N O O M W N B O

dairy farmers with Class 1 processors.

Q So given those circunstances, one m ght have thought
that that would be a time when California producers woul d seek
a Federal M1k Marketing Order. \Wat happened or what's your
coment ary?

A Yeah, | think that woul d have been an ideal tine to
start finally thinking about addressing the problemwth
i ndi vi dual handl er pools. They m ght have considered joining a
Federal Order. But keep in mnd, we have been operating under
state regulation for a long period of tine, so | think the
producer |eadership at the tine really felt |ike pursuing some
sort of state solution wthin California, that m m cked sonme of
the features of Federal M|k Marketing O der pools, narket-w de
pool s, was the answer.

Q So did they pursue sone formof |egislative action?

A.  Yeah, they did. There were a couple of attenpts nade
inthe early 1960's to get a MIk Pooling bill going, but those
ran into opposition in the legislature and weren't successful
in moving forward. So a little bit later, in the md-'60"s,
producer representatives and handl ers got together and began to
work together to design a solution to the marketing situation.
And they, again, firmy believed that sone type of nmarket-w de
pool i ng mechanismwas the way to go, simlar to the one
enpl oyed in Federal M|k Marketing Orders, and they felt that

hel d the potential to inprove marketing conditions in the
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state.

Q So returning to your statemnent.

A.  Several conprom ses were made in order to reach the
political accord necessary to pass pooling legislation. Dairy
farmers in Southern California were unwilling to accept
mar ket -wi de pooling as typically constructed in FMMO s.
Southern California farmers had hi gher share of contracts with
high Cass 1 usage handlers. For them market-w de pooling
seemed to be too large a transfer of revenue from South to
North. Quota was borne out of this concern as a way for
Southern California dairy farners to preserve sone of their
historical dass 1 earnings. Wthout their support, quota
| egi slation could not have passed.

Under the quota plan adopted, each producer was

al | ocated production base equal to his or her m |k narketings
on an average daily basis during July through Decenber of 1966,
or the cal endar year 1967, and quota allocations to dairy
farmers were cal culated as 110 percent of their historica
sales to Cass 1 uses during this period. Any mlk marketed in
excess of a producer's -- here insert "quota" and "base" and
then the word "al |l ocations.”

JUDGE CLIFTON: Al right. M. Elliott, |I know you are
right wwth it. W're on page 8, did you catch what Dr. Schiek
sai d?

MS. ELLIOIT: Yes, just to clarify. |It's going to read, "a
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producer's quota and allocation, I'msorry, quota and base
al I ocation.

DR SCH EK: Correct.

JUDGE CLI FTON: Good. And would you begin that sentence
again, Dr. Schiek?

DR. SCH EK: Certainly.

Any m |k marketed in excess of a producer's quota and
base al |l ocations was terned overbase m|k. Revenues from
Cass 1 (fluid mlk) mandatory Class 2 (creamand cul tured
products) uses were allocated to producers based on their quota
hol di ngs. So quota revenues and the amount of quota producers
received were explicitly linked to the dass 1 narket.

JUDGE CLIFTON: If | could interrupt, | don't understand
the use of mandatory in that sentence.

DR SCH EK: Mandatory means that they are products of
mandatory Cass 2 use is mlk used in products that nust be
made from nmarket grade m k.

JUDGE CLIFTON: (n.

DR. SCH EK: W have, | think M. Shippel houte discussed
that when he was here. | believe the only Oass 2 product that
isn't required to be nade from market grade mlk is eggnog.

JUDGE CLIFTON:  And is market grade synonynmous wth
G ade A?

DR, SCH EK: W use theminterchangeably. W have had sone

di scussions about that, that we think that all market mlk
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woul d be Grade A, but not all Gade A mlk would necessarily be
mar ket m | k.

JUDGE CLI FTON: Do you renenber where you were before |
interrupted you?

DR. SCH EK: Yes. Well, | was in the mddle of a sentence,
revenues from Cl ass 1.
BY MR ENGLI SH.

Q So why don't you start with the sentence again.

A, Okay. Revenues fromCass 1 fluid mlk and mandatory
Cass 2 -- let me start again.

Revenues fromCdass 1 (fluid mlk) and mandatory

Cass 2 (creamand cultured products) uses were allocated to
producers based on their quota hol dings, so quota revenues and
the anount of quota producers received were explicitly |inked
to the dass 1 market. This systemwas approved by producers
in a referendum hel d on Septenber 10, 1968, and the plan becane
effective in July, 1969. Base and overbase received | ower
class allocations. As the state's Cass 1 sales grew, it was
anticipated that new quota allocations woul d be given to
producers with | ower quota holdings, up to the point where
guota was equal to 95 percent of each producer's base
mar ketings or production base.

JUDGE CLI FTON:  Shoul d we add that?

DR. SCH EK: | think so.

JUDGE CLIFTON: Al right. Let us add that on page 9, at
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the top, the last line of that first part paragraph, after the
word, the phrase, producer's base marketings, we add what?

DR SCH EK: O production base.

JUDGE CLIFTON: O production base.

DR SCH EK: (kay.

JUDGE CLI FTON: Thank you.

DR SCH EK: At such point, the producers were said to be
equal i zed.
BY MR ENGLI SH

Q So why don't you stop there for a second. | just want
to tie this together with the equalized that was di scussed
earlier.

Do you have any other commentary or just want to
descri be what that equalized means because we have seen
exhi bits where that phrase is used.

A.  Yes. The notion of equalization, and | think we'll
probably, I'Il probably get into this nore in ny testinony, but
it was basically to design or to set a target |level that, where
producers woul d essentially all have simlar holdings of quota,
that 95 percent of production base. So the idea was that if
new quota was available, it would be given to | ow quota hol ders
first, or at least with a larger share, and that would all ow
themto kind of catch up to those folks in, say, Southern
California who initially got higher quota allocations.

Q Gkay. Wy don't you continue with your statenent on
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page 9.

A, At the tine of pooling was instituted in California,
the state's popul ation was growing rapidly, as was the fluid
m | k demand. The producer | eadership who were instrunental in
desi gning this system of pooling, believed that eventually al
producers woul d be equalized and the quota system becone
unnecessary. But at the beginning, the prevailing view anong
industry | eaders was that w thout the quota system denand
growth for fluid mlk would outstrip production group.

JUDGE CLI FTON:  Qut what?

DR. SCH EK:  Production growth, thank you.

Consequently, quota was -- | have no idea where the "A"
went .

JUDCGE CLI FTON: kay. Page 9, the very mddle of the page
we're going to make the Wspace S, was.

MR ENGISH | mssed it five tinmes, too.

JUDGE CLIFTON: Dr. Schiek, when you are ready to resune,
if you would read that sentence again beginning with
consequently.

DR. SCH EK: Consequently, quota was viewed at the tine as
a necessary nmeans of ensuring that there woul d be adequate
supplies of fluid grade mlk and fluid products for consuners.
I'n such an environnent, it was expected that new producers
could be easily accommpdated with additional quota. As it

turned out, production outstripped fluid mlk demand in the
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state, and fluid mlk utilization in the market declined
sharply over tine, exactly the opposite of what had been
expected. So even though the foundational basis and econom c
rational e of the quota system evaporated, the institution of
quot a endured.

As the pooling prograns being discussed in the late
1960' s, there was al so concern about the grow ng nunber and
volume of fluid mlk bottling operations that also had dairy
farm ng operations. These entities produced a portion, or in
sone cases, the entire amount of the milk they processed. The
prospect of market-w de pooling concerned the |arger operations
anmong these entities, because sone of advantages they had under
the prevailing systemof individual handler pools (such as the
income benefit they gained fromtheir farms' direct dass 1
sales to their plants) would be relinquished.

To head of f producer-handl er opposition to pooling,
political concessions were nade regarding the regul atory
treatment. Smaller producer-handlers were exenpted entirely
from pooling and received no quota allocation, while |arger
entities were given the option of foregoing quota draw fromthe
pool that they were entitled to as dairy farners, and instead,
were al lowed to exenpt or (deduct) these pounds fromtheir
processing operations Class 1 obligation to the pool. So while
such exenption was contrary to the central notion of pooling,

that is, the sharing of Cass 1 revenues anong all dairy
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farmers in the market -- and here | have got a change. It
was -- it was incorporated in the proposed pooling |aw for
political expediency.

JUDGE CLI FTON: "But made part of" sounds great. Wy do
you want to nmake this change? That's okay, you don't have to
explain. Al right. So tell ne again, beginning with "it was"
how t hat should read, and Ms. Elliott and | will capture it at
the same time on page 10.

DR. SCH EK: Strike "nade part of the state" and then add
inits place "incorporated in the proposed.”

JUDGE CLIFTON: | see now the reason for the change. Al
right. We will nake that change, striking "nade part of the
state" and inserting instead "incorporated in the proposed” and
woul d you read that sentence again, Dr. Schiek?

DR SCH EK: (kay.

So whil e such exenption was contrary to the central
notion of pooling, that is, the sharing of dass 1 revenues
anong all dairy farmers in the market, it was incorporated in
the proposed pooling law for political expediency.

The possibility of market-w de pooling also created
concerns for Class 1 processors. |In the discussions |eading up
to the drafting of pooling |egislation, processors voiced the
concern that they would not be able to continue drawing mlk
supplies as they had done under the system of individua

handl er pools. The handl er pools created a direct incentive
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for producers to supply the Cass 1 narket because of the
hi gher price that handlers with high dass 1 usage were able to
offer dairy farners. Class 1 processors believed that pooling
woul d essentially make producers indifferent as to where they
shi pped their mlk, and as a result, they would have to pay
addi tional prem uns above the already higher Class 1 price in
order to attract a sufficient mlk supply.

In order to secure mlk bottler support for pooling
|l egislation, or at least to elimnate their opposition, the
producer | eadership prom sed that enough m |k woul d be
available to satisfy the Class 1 narket. (See end note (vii)
on page 40 of Exhibit 79.) To help ensure that this promse to
serve the Cass 1 market woul d be kept, the original California
M1k Pooling Plan established |ocation differentials to provide
dairy farmers with econom c signals that woul d encourage them
to ship mlk to designated deficit counties. These |ocation
differentials were added to, or deducted from quota paynents
to dairy farners based on the plant of first receipt. Later,
as overbase m |k production began to increase and to represent
a large share of the mlk produced in the state, |ocation
differentials that applied solely to quota m |k becane |ess
effective at nmaking sure mlk was available to Cass 1 plants.
M|k Mvement Incentives. [In 1979, m |k nmovenent requirenents,
al so known as "call provisions" were established as part of the

mlk stabilization and marketing plans, also referred to as
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"stab. plans.” Call provisions required that manufacturing
plants that participate in the pool, make specified percentage
of the quota mlk they receive available to plants processing
Cass 1 products, if requested. Thus, if producers do not have
a direct economc incentive |arge enough to encourage themto
ship mlk to Gass 1 plants, the call provisions allow for the
plants to request the mlk and it nust be made avail abl e.
Unfortunately, these are not perfect mechanisns for noving mlKk
to the dass 1 markets. Manufacturing plants are sometines
| oathe to give up m |k when requested because of the
inefficiencies they incur in their plants when throughput mlk
volumes are | ess than planned. The call provisions do not
specify a maxi num charge on m |k surrendered for Cass 1 use,
so the possibility of high "give up" charges exists. Still
they do provide for supplies to be made available for Cass 1
uses, if requested.
A systemof transportation credits was established in

1981.
BY MR ENGLI SH

Q So what do those credits do that were established in
198172

A. Credits are, transportation credits are nonies that
apply to plant-to-plant novenents of mlk to provide an
incentive for shipping that mlk to offset the cost of hauling

mlk froma, sort of a plant or supply plant in a surplus
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| ocation to a Class 1 plant in a deficit county.

Q And what do they apply to?

A. So they apply to those kinds of shipnents, shipnents to
Cass 1 plants only, and between desi gnated supply counties and
desi gnated deficit counties.

Q And what products do they apply to?

A, Just Cass 1. |It's not any other. So fluid mlk
products.

Q How about crean

A. It would not be cream

Q Ckay. Continue, please.

A Ckay.

Transportation credits, oh, sorry. The need for
transportation credits arose fromthe consolidation of
marketing areas in the state and the insufficiency of area
differentials (difference in Class 1 prices in the various
mar keting areas) to cover the cost of the mlk novenments. The
principle that had been used historically for setting
transportation credit rates, has been the cost of noving mlKk,
| ess any area differential between the plants. Usually there
I's some shortfall in the credit rate, and the shortfalls
typically increased with distance to encourage closer mlk to
nove first. The credits provided a way to encourage
pl ant-to-plant nmovenents of milk, but did nothing to encourage

dairy farmers to nmove mlk to fluid bottling plants.
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Q So let nme go back to the previous sentence, about the
idea of the shortfall and the rate did not typically increase
for distance. Wuld that be a concept when you are trying to
encourage closer mlk to nmove first, of trying to encourage
efficient novenent of mlKk?

A.  Yeah, that's what the idea is, that by providing nore
sort of full reinmbursenent on the closer end mlk, that mlk
wll likely, has an econom c incentive to nove before nore
distant m |k would nove to serve those needs.

Q Wiy don't you continue now, the next paragraph

A, Transportation all owances were instituted in 1983 as a
repl acement for location differentials as a neans of
encouraging mlk nmovenent to Class 1 plants in deficit markets.
The al | owances applied to all California Gade A m |k noving
fromfarns to plants |ocated in qualifying areas that process
nore than 50 percent of the mlk they receive into Cass 1, 2,
or 3 uses. Also, farmmlk shipnents to cooperative plants
| ocated in designated deficit areas are eligible for
transportation allowances if the plant supplies at |east 40
percent of the mlk it receives for Cass 1 uses. These
al | onances provi de sone conpensation to producers for the cost
of hauling fromthe dairy farmto the deficit area plant.

The principle for establishing transportation all owance
rates begins with a difference between the cost of the |ocal

haul in surplus mlk production zones, and the cost of the hau
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fromthe production |ocation to the deficit area. For mlKk
| ocated nearer to the deficit area, the allowance rates were
set equal, or nearly equal, to the haul cost difference just
described. For nore distant m |k, the conpensation for the
haul cost difference is shorted with the goal of encouraging
more efficient mlk novenents.

Q Just to be clear, | think on page 12, | think you have
corrected it, you said "for nmore distant mlk" and the text
ri ght now says "for nore distance mlk." | think you read it
the way you intended it, for nore distant mlk. |I'msorry, on
the version you are |ooking at, it's on page 14. The paragraph
you were just reading, for the sentence, for nore distant mlKk
t he conpensation for the haul cost. Do you see that?

Are you in the right place? Let ne cone help.

A, Wat paragraph. D stant.

JUDGE CLIFTON: Al right. | would like, Ms. Elliott, to
make that correction on the record copies. W're on page 12,
moving up fromthe bottom it's the last full paragraph, next
tothe last line, and that line will read "nore distant mlKk,"
BY MR ENGLI SH

Q Al right. Wy don't you start with the next
par agr aph?
A Ckay.
Both transportation allowances and credits have been

adj usted many tines since they were instituted in the early
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1980's. The ability to keep these m |k nmovenent incentives

updated and reflective of current costs and nmarketing

conditions has hel ped greatly, has been hel ped greatly by

bi annual haul i ng cost surveys conducted by CDFA. Anobng ot her

things, they provide information on the hauling costs that are

key to setting transportation allowance and credit rates.

JUDGE CLIFTON: If | mght ask, Dr. Schiek, does biannual

nmean twice a year or every other year?

DR. SCH EK: Every other year. No, it does nean every

ot her year, so that's a good catch, those should say
sem - annual .

JUDGE CLIFTON:  Well, that, actually, no, sem -annual
twce a year. Wich do you want?

DR SCH EK: It is twice a year.

JUDGE CLIFTON: COnh, it is twice a year?

DR SCH EK:  Uh- huh.

JUDGE CLI FTON: See, | think biannual can nean either

nmeans

one,

you just have to know. But you think sem -annual will make it

clear that it's twice a year?

DR SCHEK: | think it will make it clear that it's tw ce

a year.

JUDGE CLI FTON: Good. So on the record copy, page 12,
third line up, last word, I'mgoing to ask Ms. Elliott to
stri ke biannual and insert instead sem -annual.

M5. ELLIOIT: kay.
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JUDCGE CLIFTON: And if you don't mind, Dr. Schiek, please
read the sentence that contains that again.

DR SCH EK: The ability to keep these m |k novenent
i ncentives updated and reflective of current costs and
mar keting conditions has been hel ped greatly by sem -annual
haul i ng cost surveys conducted by CDFA. Anong ot her things,
they provide information on the hauling costs that are key to
setting the transportation allowance and credit rates. They
al so contain information about how nuch mlk is noving to each
of the various supply area from-- that should be from each of
the various supply areas -- to each of the deficit areas, so
changes in supply patterns can be identified and changes nmade
to the structure of allowances and credits as needed.

JUDGE CLIFTON: M. Elliott, with regard to page 13, the
very top line, | would like you to insert the word "front after
the word "nmoving". And Dr. Schiek, if you would just read
again, beginning with the words "contain information about how
much".

DR. SCH EK: Contain infornmation about how much mlk is
novi ng fromeach of the various supply areas to each of the
deficit areas, so changes in supply patterns can be identified
and changes made to the structure of allowances and credits as
needed.

Historically, the goal of the allowances and credits

has been to provide only such transportati on assistance as is
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needed to get the mlk to nove. Oiginally, the systens' goa
and intent was not to equalize hauling rates anong producers,
but to provide only the assistance necessary to ensure that
Cass 1 plants had a m |k supply available to them at something
close to order prices. Dairy farnmers whose best or only market
alternative (lowest cost to market) is a fluid mlk pant

usual ly did not receive any transportation allowance, because
they would ship their mlk to a Cass 1 plant w thout the
incentive. In recent years, there have been some exceptions
made to this principle to address market changes in specific
regions. Likew se, mlk shipnents to fluid mlk plants |ocated
in the San Joaquin Valley were not eligible for all owances or
credits because they are surrounded by nore than sufficient

m |k supplies for their needs, and are not di sadvantaged
relative to | ocal manufacturing plants when it cones to
attracting mlk to their plants.

Producer's Security Trust Fund. There was a mmj or bankruptcy
of the state's largest mlk buyer, (Knudsen-Forenmost) in the

m d-1980's. As a result of the bankruptcy, nmany producers were
left unpaid for the mlk they had shipped. In 1987, the
California Legislature passed a | aw establishing the M1k
Producers Security Trust Fund. This fund was designed to have
enough nmoney to cover a default of the state's |argest
proprietary mlk purchaser. It was created through assessnents

on Class 1, 2, and 3 processors. Once the Fund bal ance reaches
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its target |level of 110 percent of the value of nonthly mlk
purchases of the state's |argest processor, assessnents stop.
Beneficial interest prohibitions exclude producers from
collecting fromthe Fund.

BY MR ENGLI SH

Q So what's the inplication of that?

A, So if producers have an ownership interest in the
entity that defaults, they are not eligible to collect on the
Fund.

Q Soif the entity is a cooperative?

A, So cooperatives are not covered for their nmenber mlKk
in the event that they default.

Q What about paying into the Fund?

A Cooperatives aren't required to pay into the Fund
either on their menmber mlk. Now, they can, producers can
collect in the event of a cooperative default if they are
non- menber producers, if they didn't have an ownership in the
cooperative. And cooperatives do pay into the fund on their
non-menber mlk, if they receive non-menber mlKk.

Q Now, there's been some discussion in this record about
consolidation in the dairy industry, consolidation in the dairy
industry in California, were there any inplications for the
Producer Security Trust Fund?

A Yeah, there have been, and there's actually two big

inplications. One, consolidation resulted in rmuch |arger
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purchasers. | mean, the 1980's, Knudsen-Forenost was thought
to be a very big processor. It would not be that big by
today's definition. So there have been nmuch |arger processors
t hrough consol i dation, much | arger conpani es buying | arger

vol umes of mlKk.

And the other thing that's happened, of course, is with
the volatility that we have had in the gl obalization of narket.
MIk prices are much higher than they, at times are nuch higher
than they have been historically, and that creates an issue
because the value of the largest purchaser of mlk's nonthly
purchase rises with that value. So if we go froman average
price or price of mlk that the processor has to pay of $14 a
hundr edwei ght up to $22 a hundredwei ght, that nmakes a
difference in ternms of what the Fund requirement is.

Q Has the California Legislature made any changes to the
Fund?

A.  Yeah, in 2006 there were changes nmade to the funding
structure in terms of how that targeted anobunt of coverage is
attained, and | was going to discuss those in ny testinony.

Q Ckay. So continue, then.

A. Ckay. Because the state --

JUDGE CLIFTON: Let ne ask if this is a good stopping
poi nt.
MR ENG.ISH It is for ne, your Honor. | believe it for

the wtness as well.
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JUDCGE CLI FTON: kay. Good. So were you about to read,
Dr. Schiek, the first line on page 14?

MR. ENGLI SH. Page 14 of your version, yes, your Honor.

DR SCH EK:  Yes, | was.

JUDCGE CLI FTON: kay. Let us stop there. M. English, do
you want about 10 minutes or about 157?

MR. ENGLI SH: The witness?

DR. SCH EK: 10 woul d be fine.

JUDCGE CLI FTON: kay. Good. So it is 2:48. Please be
ready to go at 3:00.

(Wher eupon, a break was taken.)

JUDGE CLIFTON: We're back on record at 3:03. W're in
Exhibit 79, at the top of page 14. M. English
BY MR ENGLI SH

Q Dr. Schiek, please continue.

A. Because the state's |argest proprietary mlk purchasers
were now cheese conpanies rather than fluid mlk bottling
conpanies, it seemed inequitable to continue requiring handlers
of dass 1, 2, and 3 products to be the only ones contributing
to the Fund bal ance. By the m d-2000"s, the nmonthly purchases
of several of the state's largest proprietary mlk processing
conpani es exceeded the Fund bal ance by mllions of dollars.
Two changes were then made to the funding. Rather than
continuing to assess processors in order to bring the Fund up

toits target level, follow ng | egislation passed in 2006, the
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| argest conpanies were able to post financial instrunents to
cover the gap between the Trust Fund bal ance and 110 percent of
the value of their nonthly, average nonthly m |k purchases.
(See end note (viii) on page 40 of Exhibit 79.) |If, however,
the Fund is depleted and assessnents are needed to rebuild it
toits target level -- and then strike "at the tine the new
fundi ng nechani snms were inplenmented. "

JUDGE CLI FTON: Let us do that now. W are on page 14 in
the mddle, so just after the words "target level" we wll
strike "at the time the new fundi ng mechani sns were
i npl emented,” is that correct, Dr. Schiek?

DR. SCH EK: That's correct.

JUDGE CLIFTON: Al right. So that change will be made on
the record copi es.

DR SCH EK: Ckay. 1'll start with that sentence again, if
that's okay.

If, however, the Fund is depleted and assessnents are
needed to rebuild it to its target |level, assessnents would be
required on proprietary handlers of Casses 1, 2, 3, 4a, and
4b. This was another exanple of an instance where California
had successfully managed to update its dairy regulatory system
to adapt to changes in the structure of the marketpl ace.

O ass 4a and dass 4b pricing. In 1980, the Cass 1
utilization in California fell below 50 percent for the first

time. (See end note (ix) on page 40 of Exhibit 79. The 1980's
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were a period of trenmendous growth in he dairy product
manufacturing if California, particularly for butter/powder and
cheese. Prior to 1982, storable manufactured products such as
butter, ml|k powders, and cheese were all grouped together as
Cass 4. As | have already noted, beginning in 1965, C ass 4
prices were cal cul ated based on the market prices for butter
and nonfat dry mlk. 1In 1982, the Class 4 price was split into
C ass 4a (butter and m |k powders) and O ass 4b (cheeses ot her
than cottage cheese), but both of these class prices continued
to be calculated frombutter and nonfat dry mlk prices.
Implied mlk use values for Cass 4a and C ass 4b tracked
closely in the early 1980's, because dairy comodity prices
were often at CCC intervention levels. So at the tine, cheese
makers in California were able to tolerate their mlk cost
bei ng based on the price of products they did not nmake. The
cheese industry continued to grow, and in 1986, cheese
production exceeded butter and nonfat dry mlk production on an
annual basis for the first tine.

However, by the late 1980's, the inplied value of mlk
based on nonfat dry mlk and butter prices, began to rise
significantly, while the cheese use mlk value did not keep
pace. The result was that cheese nmakers in the state who were
buying their mlk priced off a butter-powder market, were not
able to profitability market their product. The butter/ NFDM

based mlk price was sinply too high. So in 1989, a new C ass
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4b formul a was established based on prices for cheese and

Gade B butter (to represent the value of whey cream). No

val ue for the skimportion of the whey was incorporated into
the dass 4b formula at its inception. However, by adding a
new cl ass fornula that addressed the probl em cheese nakers were
experiencing, CDFA was making it possible that market outlets
for California dairy farmers' growmng mlk supplies would be
avai |l abl e.

BY MR ENGLI SH

Q So let me stop you there. As | was reading that in the
| ast several days, | was struck by the parallelism but the
mrror image, wth respect to Class Illa which, would you agree
that in the Federal Orders that what had happened was you had
the MWprice, which was based |argely on cheese production --

A It was.

Q ~-- and dass Illa came about because nonfat dry mlk
production entities in the Federal Order system actually after
1989, couldn't make that fornula work for them is that
correct?

A.  That's ny understanding, yes.

Q Al right. Thanks. You may conti nue.

A. Quota Reform By the early 1990's, the quota program
was experiencing pressure as a result of the rapid growh in
m | k production and the growi ng number of dairy farmers whose

income was derived largely, or even entirely, fromthe overbase
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price. These were producers who owned little (as a share of
their total production) or no quota. Before 1994, quota
revenues were derived fromdCass 1, 2, and 3 prices. Overbase
prices were derived fromC ass 4a and 4b prices. As a result,
the difference between quota and overbase prices could vary

wi dely by nonth. As the amount of overbase production grew,
producers with little or no quota were dissatisfied with the
fact that they had no access to the higher Cass 1 revenues in
the market. Quota holders, on the other hand, were happy with
the status quo. After considerable industry discussion, a
quota reformbill was passed in 1993 and becane effective in
1994. The new bill established the quota price at 19 and a
hal f cents per pound of quota SNF above the overbase SNF price,
an amount equal to $1.70 per hundredwei ght for nmilk at
standardi zed test(3.5 percent mlk fat and 8.7 percent solids
not fat.)

JUDGE CLIFTON: Now, | want to make clear that when you
said an amount equal to, what you were referring to is a dollar
anount. So could you take that sentence fromthe top |ine of
page 16, begin with the phrase "an anount equal to" and read
the rest?

DR. SCH EK: So an anount equal to the $1.70 per
hundr edwei ght for m |k at standardized test (3.5 percent mlk
fat, 8.7 percent solids not fat.) |In establishing the quota

premum | evel at $1.70 per hundredwei ght, the historic val ue of
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quota in comparison to overbase was explicitly considered.
Consequently, the notion that quota derives its value fromthe
Cass 1 and other higher-val ued uses, remains an inportant
concept. The fact that the "call provisions" mentioned earlier
require dairy product manufactures to make quota mlk avail able
for dass 1 usage, is another such linkage. As was noted
earlier, an additional change made at the tinme of quota reform
was to abandon the historic three-factor fornula that used a
wei ght ed average of the commodity reference price, cost of
production index, and manufacturing wage index, and replaced it
with a formula that woul d make changes to the O ass 1 base
val ues using only the dairy commodity reference price factor.
Cass 1 Price Adjustnents. Class 1 price adjustnents have been
a frequent subject of California mlk --

JUDCGE CLIFTON: | need to stop you. Page 16 in the m ddle,
where you are now, in the heading, is that Cass 1 an Arabic 17?

DR. SCH EK: That should be an Arabic 1.

JUDCGE CLI FTON: kay. It looks |ike a Roman nuneral .
These are hard to see. But |'mjust going to ask Ms. Elliott
to make it clear in the heading, the mddle of page 16, that
that's an Arabic 1, Gass 1, so | would strike what's there and
just do the best you can to wite an Arabic 1.

MR, ENG.I SH Like we said, the presunption was an Arabic
1, but it looks like the presunption is overcone. Your

correction is appreciat ed.
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JUDGE CLI FTON: Thank you.

DR SCH EK: They look a lot alike, the distinction is hard
to see sonetines.

JUDGE CLI FTON: Exactly. So if you would begin again with
the heading, Dr. Schiek

DR SCHEK: dass 1 price adjustnents. Cass 1 price
adj ust ments have been a frequent subject of California mlk
pricing hearings. Before a Cass 1 fornula was adopted,
Cass 1 prices were set at a particular level by the Secretary
through a hearing decision, and the only way the price could be
changed was through another hearing. After adoption of the
pricing fornula in the late 1970's, Cass 1 prices adjusted
automatically, but the three-factor fornmula resulted in price
| evel s that were noticeably ower than Class | prices in
FMMOs. Initially, the conmbination of low California mlKk
production costs, relatively high Class 1 utilization, and
sparse production in surrounding states, neant that this |arge
price disparity did not have any adverse consequences and was
appropriate for the state's industry. Supplies were adequate
to neet Cass 1 and mandatory C ass 2 needs, plus a reserve.
M Ik nmoving between California and surrounding states was a
smal | portion of the total Class 1 use, and such shipnents were
fairly consistent and based on established business
rel ationships

BY MR ENG.I SH:
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Q Now, you earlier testified though, that as time went
on, the plan of quota didn't quite work out because production
went up and Cass 1 use did not follow. So what happened at
t hat point?

A, The main issue, and probably the divining feature of
the California dairy industry over the last 30 or 40 years has
been one of a pretty dramatic growth trend. And supplies,
actually in beginning in the 1980's and '90's the growth rate
accelerated. We were growing at over 4 percent per year mlk
production, that's conmpounding every year. There was just a
| ot of supplies entering the narket. Producer inconmes, because
t hey had been used to higher Class 1 utilizations, producer
i ncomes were under pressure fromthe fact that nore mlk was
goi ng into nmanufacturing uses and nore producers were receiVving
a larger percentage of their price as an overbase price,
opposed to quota price.

Q So effectively the percentage of Class 1 was actually
decl i ni ng?

A.  The percentage of Cass 1 was declining because mlKk
production was growi ng faster than Cass 1 sales.

Q And that added to the incone pressure for dairy
farnmers?

A It did, and kind of resulted in a sort of blending down
of the price so that it began, you know, the weighted price

bet ween a producer's quota price that they received, nore and
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nmore there was production received an overbase price that was
| onered, that |owered their weighted average price, sort of
i ndi vidual blend, if you want to think about it that way.

Q How about the margin price?

A, Their marginal price was at the overbase price.

Q So it was going down, too?

A. It was going down because -- | don't know that it was
going down. The marginal price was at the overbase price. |
Whet her it was going down or not was really nore dependent on
what the national |evel price was.

Q But nore and nore of it was in the narginal price?

A. Mre and nore of it was in the marginal price, that's
correct.

Q Al right. Continue then on the top of page 17.

A, Producers began to look to Class 1 price increases as a
way to increase their revenues. Initial adjustnents took the
formof changes to the base values of m |k conmponents in the
Cass 1 formulas. As Class 1 prices increased, alignment
i ssues with surrounding markets took on increased economc
significance because of growing mlk production in surrounding
states. California dairy farmers who were dissatisfied wth
California Class 1 prices -- who were dissatisfied that
California Class 1 prices were |lower than those in nearby
states, were successful in amending the California Food and

Agricul tural Code (Section 62062.1):
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And | quote the section:
"Any designation of a Class 1 price by any nethod or formula
that is used to develop Cass 1 prices paid to producers in the
various marketing areas, shall provide on a cal endar year
basis, a statew de wei ghted average mnimumoprice level for a
hundr edwei ght of mlk testing 3.5 fat and 8.7 solids not fat,
that is in reasonable relationship with mnimumdass 1 mlk
prices paid to producers in contiguous states. |If the
statew de wei ghted average Cass 1 prices paid to producers are
not in a reasonable relationship with the Cass 1 prices paid
to producers in contiguous states, the Secretary shal
i nmedi ately hold a hearing to consider adjustnents to the
Cass 1 prices.”

Now, nmy interpretation is that while this provision did
not, and still does not require that prices be equal to those
in surrounding states, it did provide inpetus for dairy farmer
efforts to increase Cass 1 prices through the hearing process.
One change made in the md-1990's resulted in the adoption of a
Cass 1 pricing formula that conmputed the commodity reference
price (CRP) as the "higher of" a butter-powder value or a
cheese-whey creamval ue, also known as whey fat value. Wen
prices diverged in a manner where butter-powder val ues were
hi gher than those derived fromcheese and whey fat, California
O ass 1 prices noved higher than those in contiguous states,

whi ch were cal cul ated using an FMMO basic formula price (BFP)
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that was linked to a M nnesota-Wsconsin (MW price series for
Gade Bmlk. The MWseries tended to reflect a cheese mlk
val ue because cheese making was nore dom nant in the Upper

M dwest than butter-powder manufacturing.

When California Class 1 prices rose to |levels
sufficiently above mlk prices in contiguous states, mlKk
novenments into California for Class 1 use began to increase.
Qut-of-state m |k supplies began to displace mlk supplies in
California for Class 1 uses, and m |k noverments were becom ng
uneconom ¢ as nearby m |k was displaced by mlk hauled from
further distances outside the state. Hearing decisions in the
m d-1990's resulted in a couple of key changes. dass 1
conponent val ues were reduced --

JUDGE CLIFTON: Read it again.

DR SCH EK: Excuse me, should be Class 1 conponent base
val ues, not based -- base val ues.

JUDGE CLIFTON: Do we have to strike a D?

DR. SCH EK: Strike a D

JUDCGE CLI FTON: kay. So on page 18, down fromthe top six
lines, that line will read "1 conponent base values" and we're
just striking the D, Ms. Elliott.

M5. ELLIOIT: kay.

JUDGE CLI FTON: Thank you.

DR. SCH EK: dass 1 conponent base val ues were reduced and

the "higher of" CRP was replaced by one based solely on the
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"cheese-whey fat" value so that prices would track better with
prices in FMMO markets. Also, the Pooling Plan was anmended to
allow a portion of the revenue from d ass 1 sales nmade by
out-of -state producers to be pool ed, thereby reducing the
attractiveness of the California market to out-of-state
producers. The Pooling Plan anendment was successfully
chal l enged in court. Despite the state's lack of ability to
maintain its Pooling Plan changes, the reduction in Cass 1
prices resulted in a better relationship to prices in
surroundi ng states and was sufficient to di scourage continued
growh in shipnents by out-of-state mlk suppliers into the
market. As a result, the anmount of bulk mlk entering the
state returned to nore historically normal |evels.

BY MR ENGLI SH

Q Solet me interrupt you there. Wen you talk about the
Pool ing Plan was successfully challenged in court, is that what
is known as the Hillside Dairy case that was had been discussed
earlier in this proceeding?

A It is.

Q And in your, the last two sentences reflect that your
view of the anmount of bulk mlk in the state has returned to
nore historically normal levels, was that reflected on
Exhibit 61 that the state put in that showed sort of a nunbers
going up into the late '90's early 2000 period, and then com ng

back down?
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A It is partially reflected, if that table had gone back,
because we're tal king about the 1990's here, if that table had
gone back into the early '90's it would have been clearer, but
yeah, that's what happened. And that was, | believe, Table
CDFA-X, if I'mremenbering.

Q Geat. So continue.

A. In the late sumer of 1999, CDFA called a hearing on
its own notion to consider changes to the Class | pricing
formula. As a result of this hearing, the frequency of pricing
changes was changed frombinonthly to nonthly. Al so, the |ast
ties to the 1970's price formula, the base val ue concept, was
elimnated and Cass 1 prices were calculated directly using
the CRP. At this time, the fornula took the basic structure,
that renains today.

Continued "Fine Tuning" of Cass 1, 2, and 3 Price Fornul as.
Since 2000, there have been several hearings to update the
Cass 1 fornula. The "higher of" CRP was put in place in early
2000 to account for the fact that the "higher of" concept was
enpl oyed got FMMO Class | fornmula. An inportant change occurs
in 2006 when a dry whey factor was added to the Class 1 CRP to
make it track better with FMMO Cass 1 -- should say Roman
Nuneral | -- price novenents.

JUDGE CLI FTON: Good. Let's make that change. W're at
the top of page 19, the second line. The Arabic 1 will now

become a Roman nuneral 1. Thank you, Ms. Elliott.
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DR. SCH EK: In 2008, the dass 1, Cdass 2 and Class 3
prices were reduced to restore their alignment with conparable
FMMO prices when the FMMO price |evels were reduced to account
for increases in the manufacturing all owances used in the
Cass Il and Class IV formulas. In that hearing, the
California dairy cooperatives trade association (The Alliance
of Western MIk Producers) had asked for a $1.00 per
hundr edwei ght increase in the regulated price for Casses 1, 2,
and 3. The proposed changes woul d have resulted in regul ated
prices that were higher than those for corresponding mlk
classes in the FMMOs. During ny tine at Dairy Institute, |
have observed that the California cooperatives' reliance on the
“national dairy pricing grid" has generally been [imted to
t hose situations where adopting an FMMO regul ated price |evel
woul d have resulted in a higher price than under the California
State Order. The cooperatives have had little interest in
advocating for price reductions, except as it pertains to
prices for classes of products that they produce in their own
pl ants.

At various tinmes, there have an tenporary increases in
the dass 1 and other class prices when dairy farm margins
ti ghtened due to high feed costs or lower dairy comodity
prices. The pattern has been that CDFA has made adjustnents
whenever necessary to deal w th changi ng market conditions and

changing dairy price policies in the rest of the country so
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that mlk narketing in California will renmain orderly and so
that the prices are set at |levels that account for, and are
responsive to, market forces originating both inside and
outside the state.

Updates to Manufacturing Cass Formulas. Hearings were held
frequently throughout the 1980's, 1990's, and 2000's to adjust
the mlk Cass 4a and Class 4b mlk pricing fornulas to
changi ng cost and market conditions. The dom nant
characteristic during nost of this period was the rapid grow ng
mlk supply in the state (at an average increase of nore than
four percent per year.) The need for additional plant capacity
to accommodate grow ng mlk supply, |ed cooperatives and
proprietary processors to seek adjustments to the fornulas to
keep them current the actual costs, product prices, and yields
so that plants could profitably transformdairy farmers' mlk
into products that could be marketed to consuners who were
increasingly located a greater distance fromthe the state.

BY MR ENGLI SH

Q So how do these adjustnents work and what inpacts do
t hey have?

A, Well, often times, during that period there were lots
of volatility, say, in energy prices, and al so just changi ng
structure of the plant base in the state in terns of the size
of plants, the age of plants, and there were cost surveys

conducted by CDFA that would determ ne, | guess, a weighted
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average manufacturing cost for plants in their sanple, and

t hese becane an area of focus where CDFA woul d announce the
survey, industry would exam ne the results, and woul d, nmaybe
one or nore parties would petition the Department for a change
in the pricing formla.

Q How often were these surveys conpl et ed?

A, In nore recent years, they have been done annually.
Going back earlier in the period that |I'mdiscussing here, they
cane out |ess than annually, not quite biannually, but every 18
mont hs maybe

Q Turning to an issue of particular interest in this
proceeding. D d those surveys ever involve dry whey?

A, Yeah. For a brief period, in the 2000's, | think
beginning with, it was 2004, | believe, data, but it was
rel eased by the Departnent in 2006. They had for maybe three
years they published a weighted average manufacturing cost for
dry whey.

Q And did that continue?

A, No, that was discontinued when the nunber of plants
fell below the mnimumrequired to continue reporting the
i nformati on.

Q So the nunber of plants actually manufacturing dry whey
fell below three?

A. Fell belowthree, fell bel ow two.

Q Wiy don't you continue with your statenent.
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A Ckay.

Bot h i ndustry and CDFA recognize that for end product
price formulas to generate mlk prices that accurately
reflected the value of mlk to the plants that were purchasing
it, manufacturing costs and yields nmust reflect current
manufacturing conditions in dairy product plants. Likew se,
the comodity price values utilized in the formulas nust
reflect actual prices received, adjusted for the plant's
| ocation. |If these conditions were not net, then the end
product formulas would cease to have economc validity, and
woul d i nproperly value the mlk in the various cl asses.

CDFA's Attenpts to Properly Incorporate SkimWey Value in the
Cass 4b Formula. On January 1, 2000, USDA inpl enented end
product price fornmulas for establishing Class IlIl and dass |V
prices under the FMMJs. The formula for Class |11 conputed
the skimvalue of mlk used to manufacture cheese froman end
product protein price formula.

JUDGE CLI FTON: Start again, please.

DR. SCH EK: The fornula for dass Il conputed the skim
val ue of mlk used to manufacture cheese froman end product
price formula for protein based on cheese and butter commodity
val ues, and an end product price formula for other solids that
was based on the value of dry whey. Because the Federa
Gass Il formula now used the value of dry whey explicitly,

producer groups in California began to request that dry whey be
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included in determning California Cass 4b prices as well.
The request to add dry whey to the Cass 1 fornula was

heard at a hearing in 2001 and denied, but in 2003, in the

m dst of a period of |ow producer -- should say mlk prices.

JUDGE CLIFTON: Let's do insert that. Page 21, second
line, we'll insert between "producer" and "prices" the word
"mlk." And would you read again fromthe beginning?

DR SCH EK: The request to add dry whey to the Cass 1
formula was heard at a hearing in 2001 and deni ed, but in 2003,
inthe mdst of a period of [ow producer mlk prices, CDFA
deci ded to incorporate dry whey into the C ass 4b fornmul a.
Prior to 2003, the Cass 4b formula had cal culated the price
used to make cheese (C ass 4b) as the sum of an end product
formula for cheese and an end product fornula for whey fat.
The whey fat end product formula was based on the price of
Grade B butter, which was assumed to represent the best use of
t he whey cream from cheese making operations. In 1998, the
G ade B butter price was replaced with a G ade AA butter price
| ess an adjustnment of ten cents per pound, an anmpunt that
represented the historic price difference between G ade AA and
G ade B butter prices at the Chicago Mercantil e Exchange (CVE)
That change was made when the CVE di scontinued trading of
G ade A and Grade B bhutter.

The Cass 4b formula resulting fromthe 2003 deci sion

(which also incorporated a floor for butter, nonfat dry mlk
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and cheddar cheese bl ock prices at the corresponding Commodity
Credit Corporation price support |levels) added a dry whey end
product price fornula to the existing ones for cheese and whey
fat. In the new fornula, the dry way manufacturing cost

al l onance (MCA) in the fornula was set at $0.17 cents per pound
of whey, and the dry whey yield was set at 5.8 pounds per
hundredwei ght of mlk at the fornula's assuned vat test. The
whey price series used --

JUDGE CLIFTON: We'll make that change. We're on page 21,
wor king up fromthe bottomof the page, six lines, the line
starts with the word "price" and then the next word is "series"
and the next word will be used. W'Il strike an S and insert a
D. Thank you, Ms. Elliott.

DR. SCH EK: The whey price series used was a sinple
average of the weekly Dry Wiey West Mostly price as reported by
the Agricultural Marketing Service (AVS) of the U.S. Departnent
of Agriculture (USDA) in the Dairy Market News between the 26th
of the prior month through the 25th of the current nonth.

BY MR ENGLI SH

Q So just couple of questions while we're there. What is
a "mostly" price? Wat is your understanding of a "nostly"
price?

A. In dairy, the Dairy Market News publication, prices are
surveyed and typically, there's a range reported. And next to

the sort of regular, | call it maybe the broader range, there's
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what's called a "nostly" range. And that is to kind of narrow
in on where nost of the survey priced transactions are priced,
as opposed to there maybe sone that are, it is just one or a
coupl e of observations that are at the extreme. So the nostly
is nore of a central tendency, it's not really an average, per
se, but it is a central tendency in the data that occurs when
USDA' s dairy division staff in Madison, Wsconsin, working at
Dairy Market News, surveys the plants for these prices.

Q Just to be clear, since there's been discussions of
ot her surveys, such as the mandatory Dairy Product Price
survey, howis this survey -- howis this survey conducted,
very briefly?

A.  Yeah. M understanding is fromtalking wth fol ks
there, it's a telephone, it's a survey where they contact
i ndi vi dual s who mar ket these products and they get a range of
prices based on responses. | don't believe it is audited as
the NDPSR data is. That's nmy that's ny inpression

Q Al right. Wy don't you continue with your statenent.

A, In 2005, CDFA held another hearing to consider changes
to all manufacturing class formlas, including the Cass 4b
fornmula. As aresult of the testinony and evidence given, the
Hearing Panel reconmended that the Secretary renove the dry
whey portion of the dass 4b formula. The Secretary rejected
that recommendation and instead, increased the MCA to $0. 20

cents per pound. In 2006, CDFA held another hearing to
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consi der changes to the 4a and O ass 4b fornulas. Again, the
Hearing Panel reconmended that the dry whey portion of the
fornul a be renoved, and again, that recomendation was not
adopted by the Secretary, but the dry whey MCA was increased to
$0. 267 cents per pound. The MCA |evel was equal -- that MCA
| evel was equal to the weighted average manufacturing cost in
2004 of the California plants making dry whey according to what
was then a new cost survey conducted by CDFA. Prior to 2006,
CDFA did not have any California based manufacturing costs upon
whi ch to base a dry whey MCA

In 2007, dry whey prices spiked to unprecedented
l evel s, topping $0.80 cents per pound on a weekly basis in the
early summer, and California cheese makers began to experience
conpressed nargins and financial |osses. |n August of that
year, a group of eight cheese makers petitioned CDFA for a
hearing to consider renoving the dry whey end product fornula
fromthe dass 4b mlk price fornmula. Producer groups opposed
removi ng the dry whey factor fromthe formula. 1In its Novenber
2007 report, the Hearing Panel said the follow ng about trying
to incorporate a value for skimwhey in a cheese mlk formla:

Now | ' m quoting fromthe Hearing Panel report from
Novenber of 2007:
"The current whey factor in the dass 4b pricing formla that
uses a dry whey specific price, MCA, and yield, is non

sust ai nabl e:
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*the current formula is in itself, flawed:
- the yield is not representative of what processors
testify to as their actual plant vyields,
- the price is not representative of prices received by
California cheese plants for dry forns of whey,
- the MCA is based on actual cost for dry whey plants
in California, but these costs are high because nost
| arge cheese plants with potential econom es of scale
do not make dry whey.
*nost plants do not process wet-ski med whey into a dry form of
whey,
*those plants nmaking a dry form do not nmake dry whey.
Those plants making a dry formof whey, do not nake a standard
product, or set of products. Thus, it is not possible to
devel op a new factor using an alternative dry formof whey with
its own price, manufacturing cost, and yield..."
JUDGE CLI FTON:  Manufacturing cost?
DR. SCH EK: Manufacturing cost allowance and yi el d.
And then I'mskipping a little, and pick up.
"...sone snall and medi um vol ume cheese processors are able to
sell their wet-skimed whey to producers as aninal feed. The
panel believes that there is a value for wet-skimed whey that
strikes a bal ance anong t hose cheese processors making a form
of dry whey, those processors selling wet-skinmed whey of

animal feed, and those processors with no market opportunity

3617

BARKLEY

TRANSCRIPT OF PROCEEDINGS-VOL. XVIII Court Reporters



© o0 ~N oo o b~ w DN P

NN NN R R R R R R R R R
g A W N P O © O N O O M W N B O

for their wet-skimed whey.

After carefully weighing all the relevant econom c factors, the
panel believes that ten cents per hundredwei ght as the fixed
whey factor, is an appropriate figure. Replacing the highly

volatile whey factor with a fixed value would provide constant

value to producers. It would limt the negative inpact on
producers of highly volatile whey prices. It would help to
avoi d the negative consequences that inpact small -- inpacted

smal | and medi um vol ume cheese processors during 2007."

JUDGE CLIFTON: Now, | want you to go back to the paragraph
above that in your quoted naterial, and you see the phrase
second or third Iine up in that paragraph above where you | ust
finished. And you will see, "anobng those cheese processors
making a dry formof whey," if you read that, making, or excuse
me, "those cheese processors neking a formof dry whey" would,
does that mean the same?

DR SCH EK: No, | think the way it is witten is what it
is supposed to nean. A dry form of whey, which could be whey
protein concentrate, whey protein isolate, dry whey, could be a
nunber of products.

JUDGE CLIFTON:  Ah, all right. Well, you didn't read it as
witten.

DR SCH EK: (kay.

JUDGE CLIFTON: So -- so the way it is wittenreally is

t he preci se nmeani ng?
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DR SCH EK It is.

JUDGE CLIFTON: Al right. So would you please take that
sentence and just read that again, beginning with "the panel."

DR SCH EK: "The panel believes there is a value for
wet - ski mmed whey that strikes a bal ance anong t hose cheese
processors making a dry form of whey, those processors selling
wet - ski nmed whey as aninal feed, and those processors with no
mar ket opportunity for their wet-skinmed whey."

JUDGE CLI FTON: Thank you.

DR. SCH EK:  Picking up

The Hearing Panel reported further -- the Hearing Pane
report further noted that the proposed change to a fixed whey,
fixed val ue whey factor woul d increase the spread between the
G ass 4b price and the Federal Cass Il price.

JUDCGE CLIFTON: Let's go off the record for a nonent.

(Wher eupon, a short break was taken.)

JUDGE CLIFTON: Al right. W can go back on record at
3:47. We're on page 23.

DR. SCH EK: The Hearing Panel report further noted that
the proposed change to a fixed value whey factor woul d increase
the spread between the O ass 4b price and the Federal Cass I
price. Against a backdrop of mlk supplies that were straining
pl ant capacity in the state, the panel noted the need for d ass
4a and O ass 4b prices to be market clearing, and stated:

“...remenber, however, that the California mnimumprice is a
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mar ket clearing price, while the Federal Order price is not.
The fact that cheese processors that operate under the Federa
Order may avoid the responsibility of paying the Federal O der
mnimumprice is sufficient reason to justify the increasing
spread between Class 4b and Cass |11 prices.

In this context, the panel, is using the term
“market-clearing price" to nean the price at which supply
equal s demand. At that price, the sellers are willing to
supply exactly the quantity of goods that the buyers are
wlling to purchase. In the dairy industry, the narket
clearing price is the price at which processors are willing to
buy all the mlk that producers are wlling to sell. 1In the
situation under the California regul ated systemof classified
pricing, the mnimm4al/4b prices nust be | ow enough so that
manuf acturing plants are willing to buy all the mlk that is
not used in Classes 1, 2, and 3."

The CDFA Secretary nodified this decision to nake the
fixed whey factor $0.25 cents per hundredwei ght, rather than
the $0.10 cent value that the Hearing Panel recomended, but
the dry whey end product formula was elimnated fromthe
calculation of the Class 4b price. As a result of a subsequent
hearing deci sion nade effective in Septenber 2011 the fixed
whey factor evolved into a whey contribution schedule (sliding
scal e) which was anmended further in August 2012. Most

recently, the whey contribution schedul e was adj usted upward
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for one year from August 2015 through July 2016. A sunmary of
the history of the "dry whey factor” in the Class 4b formula
illustrating the maj or changes nmade through m d-2013 is
contained in Figure 1.
BY MR ENGLI SH.

Q And that is Figure 1 on Exhibit 80, correct?

A It is.

Q So we finally get to Exhibit 80, your Honor, which,
with a cover, there's a cover page and then there are 31
figures and tables. So what Dr. Schiek has just referred to is
page 1, and it's |l abeled Figure 1 on the lower |eft hand
corner, how you get perspective. So why don't you tell us what
this chart is and how you produced it. Well, first of all, did
you produce this chart, Dr. Schiek?

A | did.

Q So why don't you tell us alittle bit about what this
chart does and shows?

A, The chart tracks the dry whey contribution value in the
Federal M1k Marketing O der.

Q Is that the dark blue line?

A, That's the dark blue line with the dark blue --
Sol i d?
Sol i d.

D anonds or --

> O > O

Yeah, dianonds. And then there's a lighter blue line
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that represents the California fornula whey contribution to the
Cass 4b price. So we have got the Federal whey value fornula
to the Federal Order Class Ill price with the darker line, and
the lighter line is the California whey val ue contribution

And then the chart is annotated with the Hearing Panel reports
and deci sions made at various key nonents since the inception
of the formul a.

Q Al right. Anything you want to add about that figure
at this point?

A. | think what was happening in 2007 that led to that
hearing is somewhat obvious in the chart. Were, you know, the
contribution value, both in the Federal Oder pricing and in
California 4(b) pricing, reached |l evels that were nuch higher
than anyt hing that had been historically experienced. And so |
think it illustrates where class -- where cheese nakers that
don't have whey processing capabilities saw their margins
conpressed. And it's -- it was after that hearing at the end
of 2007 when the fixed whey factor was put in place, and you
kind of see that where the light blue line flattens out.

And then in 2011, you see where the price noves higher
and then it's flat sone of the tinme, but it does go up and down
a bit, and that's where the whey sliding scale was introduced.
So initially, when the fixed factor was put in, you can see
where the, it actually was contributing nore than the Federa

fornula for a period of tine, because whey prices were, they
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went fromvery high levels to very low levels. And that
sonmetimes happens in the dairy market. But typically when
things go really high, they become really low |ater on. But
eventually recovered. And it is that difference between the
dark blue line and the light blue line that | think pretty nmuch
expl ains why we're here.

JUDGE CLIFTON: Dr. Schiek, what's the difference between
what is neasured by the Federal Order when it refers to a whey
value, and the California systemwen it refers to a whey
val ue, or when you, on this chart, refer to whey value? Now,
you have given us the history in California, we know it
changed, it kept changing. But as | look at this chart, | need
t o understand how what is being measured nay differ.

DR SCH EK: Ckay. So what's being nmeasured here when we
say whey value. W 're not talking specifically about the whey
price. Wat we're tal king about is the contribution that, for
any given whey price, that that formula that's operative either
in the Federal Order or in California, nakes to the cheese mlKk
price in California that would be 4b, and in Federal Orders
that would be Cass Ill. So it is really a whey contribution
to the mlk price of those classes for ass IIl and C ass 4b.

JUDGE CLIFTON: So it's extrenely val uabl e because it gets
right to the value back to the producer? The value back to the
handl er ?

DR SCH EK: Yes, it gets to the value that the handler,
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the price the handl er pays, and the price that enters the poo
either in California or under the Federal Orders, and goes into
the cal culation of producer uniformprices, and quota, and
over base prices here in California.
BY MR ENGLI SH.

Q Anything else on Figure 1 or should we continue with
your statenent?

A. | think we can continue.

JUDGE CLIFTON:  So we're now on page 247

MR. ENGLI SH:  You are on 24, and Dr. Schiek and | are on
the bottom of 26.

JUDGE CLIFTON: Al right. And we're starting, | believe,
wth "it isironic"; is that correct?

MR ENGLI SH:  Yes.

DR SCHEK: It is ironic that the very issue that dairy
farnmer cooperatives are now attenpting to overturn through
their petition for a California Federal MIk Marketing O der
was adopted by CDFA to restore orderly marketing in the state
by changing mlk pricing fornulas so that mlk markets would
clear by allowing for a regulated price at which cheese plants
could profitably operate. It illustrates that what the
petitioners are primarily concerned with is getting a higher
regul ated price (one that is set above market clearing |evels)
and not ensuring orderly marketing, which has been CDFA's

stated chief concern since the early days of state mlk pricing
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regulation in California.

In summary, the foregoing review nmakes it clear that
CDFA has a long -- has a history of being responsive to changes
in the market pl ace and maki ng needed changes in accordance with
|l egislative directives. The state is still responsive to the
need to maintain orderly nmarketing and an adequate supply of
mlk for consuners. For nuch of the |ast several years, CDFA
has not made the specific changes producer groups have
requested, which have to do with their desire to be paid nore
for their mlk rather than solving any particul ar probl em of
disorderly marketing. California's dairy farmers' desire for a
hi gher price is the fundanental reason why we're gathered at
that hearing. Mre specifically, the state's dairy farner
cooperatives want higher regul ated prices so the cheese nmakers
wll be required to pay nmore for mlk and so that nore of the
noney currently being paid by a few proprietary cheese
manufacturers to dairy farmers as premuns to attract the kind
of mlk supply that is valuable to themgets contributed to al
producers through the pool .

Unfortunately, in their quest for higher mlk prices,
the question of what is an appropriate nmarket clearing price
for mlk used to nmake manufactured products, specifically
cheese, gets ignored in both their proposal and their
argunents; so does CDFA's history of naking hearing decisions

specifically directed at maintaining orderly marketing in the
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state and setting prices at |evels which are market clearing.
[1. CURRENT M LK MARKETI NG CONDI TI ONS I N CALI FORNI A ARE
ORDERLY.

USDA has stated that FMMJ s objectives are to: "Assist
farmers in devel opi ng steady dependabl e markets by providing
prices for their mlk which are reasonable in relation to
econom ¢ conditions" and to "assure consuners that at all tinmes
of adequate supplies of pure and whol esone m |k at reasonable
prices." (See end note (x) on page 40 of Exhibit 79.) Inits
publication from 1989 entitled, Questions and Answers on
Federal M1k Marketing Orders, USDA notes that, "Federal Orders
are primarily instruments for stabilizing marketing conditions
for fluid mlk." It acconplishes these objectives by setting
m ni mum prices for various classes of mlk, establishing
pooling provisions to provide for uniformprices to producers,
providing market information to the industry in general and
dairy farnmers specifically, ensuring accurate weights and tests
for producer mlk, and auditing handler records to ensure that
they have properly accounted to the pool and paid producers.
Because of the FMMO systemis focus on Class 1 mlk (fluid
mlk), orderly marketing is primarily concerned with ensuring
t hat adequate supplies of fluid Gade A mlk are avail able and
that mlk noves to Class 1 use where it is needed, when it is
needed, and in an orderly fashion, so as to provide reasonabl e

returns to dairy farmers so that consuners have access to
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adequate supplies of mlk for fluid use, and that shoul d say,
at reasonabl e prices.

JUDGE CLIFTON: Al right. So we'll make that correction,
Ms. Elliott, on page 26, the second line. W'Ill add a word
that needs to be at the end of that sentence, "prices."

MS. ELLIOIT: Ckay.

DR. SCH EK: Current Differences Between California
G ass 4a/4b Prices and FMMO C ass I11/1V Prices are not
Disorderly. It is no secret that regulated price |evels under
California's State Order are different than FMMO price |evels
for corresponding classes. W freely acknow edge these
differences, but disagree with the dairy farmer organizations
over their inplications. Wile the cooperatives argue that the
differences in and of thensel ves anount to disorderly
marketing, we naintain that the difference exist -- strike the
word "is".

JUDGE CLIFTON: Al right. Let us go to page 26, and we're
in the first full paragraph, under the heading "current
differences.” And next to the |last sentence of that paragraph

has the word "is" that we'll just strike.

DR SCH EK: Wile the cooperatives argue that the
differences in and of thenselves anount to disorderly
marketing, we maintain that the differences exist to pronote
and naintain orderly marketing -- gosh, double orderly

marketing -- in the state.

3627

BARKLEY

TRANSCRIPT OF PROCEEDINGS-VOL. XVIII Court Reporters



© o0 ~N oo o b~ w DN P

NN NN R R R R R R R R R
g A W N P O © O N O O M W N B O

JUDGE CLIFTON: So, Ms. Elliott, sane line, we'll just
strike one set of the words "orderly marketing." And go ahead
and read that sentence one nore time if you would, Dr. Schiek

DR SCH EK: Wile the cooperatives argue that the
differences, in and of thenselves, anount to disorderly
marketing, we maintain that the differences exist to pronote
and nmaintain orderly marketing in the state.

Regul ated price differences between different regions
or different markets are neither a necessary, nor a sufficient
condition for disorderly marketing. Wiile price differences
can be an indicator of the potential for disorderly marketing
conditions, they are by no neans evidence that conditions are
di sorderly. W have seen no substantive evidence that current
mar keting conditions are disorderly. However, this issue of
manufacturing class prices being at levels that were not narket
cl earing, has been a concern.

JUDGE CLIFTON:. So Ms. Elliott, you see where we are, we're
just striking a D. Thank you.

MS. ELLIOIT: Is it "ED'?

JUDGE CLI FTON:  Pardon?

MS. ELLIOIT: Is it "ED?"

MR. ENGLI SH There's an extra ED

JUDCGE CLIFTON. Cn, yes, you are right.

DR. SCH EK: And then strike the rest of that sentence.

JUDGE CLIFTON:  Truly? Yes?
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DR SCH EK:  Yes.

JUDGE CLI FTON: Ckay. Walk us through it, Dr. Schiek

DR SCH EK: The sentence should just read: "However, this
I ssue of manufacturing class prices being at |evels that were
not market clearing has been a concern.”

JUDGE CLIFTON: Al right. So we'll strike the ED, we put
a period, and then truly, we strike all the rest of that?

DR SCH EK: Yeah, that was -- that was deleted text that
sonmehow got undel et ed.

MR, ENGISH Like | said, M. Beshore's grenlins are
cont agi ous.

JUDGE CLIFTON: Al right. So that paragraph then, wll
end with the word concern, period.

DR SCHI EK:  Unh- huh

JUDGE CLIFTON: Al right.

DR SCH EK: Wile it is certainly crucial for regul ated
manufacturing class mlk prices to be nmarket clearing under
FMMO s, the negative consequences that ensue are exacerbated
under a systemof pricing like the one in California where
virtually all mlk is required to be paid mninumprices.

JUDGE CLIFTON: Al right. So | saw two changes. The
first one | saw, Dr. Schiek, is in the second |ine of that
par agraph where at the bottom of page 26 it's a partial
par agraph, and you said "under a system" so we're striking the

word "of" and inserting "a"?

3629

BARKLEY

TRANSCRIPT OF PROCEEDINGS-VOL. XVIII Court Reporters



© o0 ~N oo o b~ w DN P

NN NN R R R R R R R R R
g A W N P O © O N O O M W N B O

DR. SCH EK: Yes, it should say "a".

JUDGE CLI FTON:  "Under a system"™ And then on the next
line we're striking the word "were" and inserting the word
"where." Is that correct?

DR SCH EK: Correct.

MS. ELLIOIT: What was the second one?

JUDGE CLIFTON: It is on the next to the last line, after
the word California there's a word "were" that should be
"where." And then Dr. Schiek, would you begin fromthe
begi nni ng of that sentence, please?

DR. SCH EK: \Wile it is certainly crucial for regul ated
manufacturing class mlk prices to be nmarket clearing under
FMMO s, the negative consequences that ensue are exacerbated
under a systemof pricing like the one in California, where
virtually all mlk is required to be paid at m ni num pri ces.
There is no safety valve to clear excess mlk fromthe narket
under CSO pricing, and woul d be none under any system of
mandatory pooling. The only way to ensure that regul ated
manufacturing class mlk prices will not be at |evels that
create disorderly marketing conditions, is to make really
certain that the regulated price levels are market clearing in
the | ocal narket.

MR ENG.ISH | think you just inserted the word
“mar keting" between the word "disorderly” and "conditions" in

t hat sentence, correct?
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DR. SCH EK: Actually, | don't know why | inserted it.

D sorderly conditions, so you can put marketing if you want.
BY MR ENGLI SH.

Q Is it acceptable the way it is text?

A | think it is acceptable the way it is.

JUDGE CLI FTON: (Okay. Before going on, | really want to
under st and thi s paragraph.

So what's the difference between the way nost Federa
M1k Marketing Orders would operate to clear sone mlk that
woul d not work in California?

DR. SCH EK: Ckay. So in Federal Oders, mlk that is a
transacti on between a pool handler and a nonpool plant, there
Is no application or enforcenent by USDA on the nonpool plant
purchase price, the price that the plant buys the mlk fromthe
pool handler. So let's say a pool handler has excess mlk and
they want to clear it fromthe narket. They are able to keep
the mlk pooled and they will report to the pool at that price,
but the actual plant that takes the m |k and makes a physi cal
product out of it, that's an unregul ated transaction. GCkay?

In California, the only way that coul d possibly happen
Is between a proprietary plant that m ght have sone extra mlk
and a proprietary manufacturing plant or co-op that's buying
that mlk. So if say a bottler had excess mlk and wanted to
sell to a co-op or to a proprietary nmanufacturing plant, they

could, that transaction could be unregulated in terns of price
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[evel. But, let's face it, the bulk of the mlk, the
California is bulk marketed by cooperatives, and it is illegal,
not possible, for any other proprietary plant to pay |ess than
the mninumprice for that mlk offered to themby a
cooperative, because the cooperative is a producer, and they
can't pay producers |less than the regulated m ni mum pri ce.

So there's just not a sane ability to clear markets
when, at least to clear themlocally in California, when
there's too nuch mlk. Wen that situation arises, the option
istotruck the mlk out-of-state. And there's not a |ot of
manuf acturing plants in Nevada. There's one opened recently.
But, you know, when problens aren't, there isn't too nuch
excess mlk that that product is flowed to Arizona, for
exanpl e, but we have lots of reports at tinmes of heavy surplus
that it is ended up in Idaho, in New Mexico, in Texas, and even
pl aces nore distant than that in concentrated forns.

BY MR ENGLI SH.

Q And is that, in your opinion as an Econom st, because
of the structure of pricing in California?

A It is because of the structure of pricing and pooli ng.

Q Pricing and pooling.

A, In California. O course, another option, so what |
described in the Federal Oder is howto clear excess mlk
that's commonly known as a diversion to a nonpool plant. So

the mlk, in that situation, the mlk is still pooled, but the
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ultimate buyer of the mlk isn't bound by the regulated price.
So they can pay, if the surplus conditions are really heavy,
they could pay dollars under the class price, regulated cl ass
price, for that mlk. It is whatever the market wll bear in
that situation

The other potential for clearing excess mlk is sinply
to depool the mlk. And again, whatever the market will bear.

Q That's in the Federal Order?

A. In the Federal Order, but not in California. Because
if you can depool mlk, you can operate as a nonpool plant, but
you are still obligated at the m nimum prices.

Q Just to be clear, Dr. Schiek, have you seen this year
in parts of the Upper Mdwest or M deast and Northeast, reports
of that exactly happening, mlk being sold at multiple dollars
bel ow cl ass because of the vol unes being in excess of what
peopl e could make and get a profit for?

A. | have seen those reports in Dairy Market News, yes.

Q Ckay. Your Honor, could we have a five-mnute stretch
br eak?

JUDGE CLIFTON: It's now 4:13. W'Il take roughly ten
mnutes plus 2, so please be back and ready to go at 4:25.
(Wher eupon, a break was taken.)
JUDGE CLIFTON: We're back on record now at 4: 26,
M. English.

MR. ENGLI SH. Yes, your Honor, thank you very nuch, both
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for those questions and for the break
BY MR ENGLI SH.

Q | believe for purposes of the version that everyone
has, other than Dr. Schiek and nyself, we are on page 27 of the
first full paragraph that starts "we maintain". So, Dr.

Schiek, if you wish to continue at that point.

A W naintain that the current FMMO prices for Cass Il
and dass IV are not narket clearing for California. There is
evidence that in the recent past, California's Cass 4a and 4b
prices have been set at l|levels that were not market clearing,
despite those prices being bel ow correspondi ng FMMO pri ces.
Wiile it has been accurately stated that the market for
manufactured dairy products such as cheese, nonfat dry mlKk
whey and butter, are national (and increasingly global)
mar kets, and that market clearing prices for these products are
determ ned by the national balance of supply and demand, the
statement does not go far enough. The national market clearing
price manifests itself as a surface of regional dairy product
prices that vary by location. This result is derived froma
fundanent al econom c concept of spatial equilibriumthat is at
work in all conmodity markets that have positive transfer costs
across space.

Q You used a phrase like "spatial equilibrium with a
bunch of lawyers in the room Wuld you pl ease explain what

that | ast sentence neans and what spatial equilibriumis.
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A Well, nmarket equilibrium in general, is right, it is
where supply and demand equate. That's known as an equilibrium
point. Wwen we | ook at a basic econom c di agram we have j ust
one supply curve and one demand curve. But in, you know, in
reality what you have is supply curves in different regions,
and demand curves in different regions. And product can nove
fromone location to another. And eventually, based on
differences in supply and demand, costs of noving product,
there is an equilibriumpoint. And what is often the result of
that equilibrium is you have different prices across space.

And when | talk about positive transfer costs, what |
nmean is, it costs sonmething to nove product fromone point to
another. Fromone state to another, fromone city to another.
Those are positive transfer costs. |f you assume there were
no, if product just magically di sappeared and reappeared
somewhere el se, then you could have the sane price in different
cities. And there are occasions in spatial equilibrium where
even with positive transfer costs, sone cities may have the
same price because that just may be the equilibriumpoint for
those products. But, in general, there will be variations
across space. That's why corn prices are cheaper in Iowa than
they are in Florida, for exanple. And you could |Iook at any
commodity, you will find that sometines spatial price
di fference exists.

Q Gkay. Continue.
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A. Distance to narket matters. It is no secret that there
are nore people living in the Eastern half of the country than
in the Western half. Therefore, the largest market for
finished dairy products, particularly cheese and butter, is
| ocates in the eastern half. The production of manufactured
dairy products has grown in the Western half the country to the
poi nt where those products nust |eave the region in order to
find a market. This disparity between where products are
produced and where they are consumed, creates a spatial val ue
that is lower in the West and higher in the East. |If regul ated
mlk pricing formulas failed to account for differences in
spatial value of finished products (and to account for current
yields and current costs of manufacturing dairy products from
mlk) the mlk will not be properly val ued.

Q | think you skipped -- | amgetting there, your Honor,
but I'mtrying to get ahead of you.

| think you omtted the word "dairy" between "finished"
and "products” in the line up fromthe there

A | did, and it was supposed to be there.

Q Ckay.

JUDGE CLIFTON: So it wouldn't hurt to read that sentence
agai n.
DR SCH EK: (kay.
If regulated mlk pricing formulas failed to account

for differences in spatial value of finished dairy products,
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and to account for current yields and current costs of
manufacturing dairy products for mlk, the mlk will not be
properly val ued.

BY MR ENGLI SH.

Q Now, let's also go back in for a different reason, into
that paragraph. And you reference "the production of
manufactured dairy products has grown in the Western hal f of
the country." Has that growth increased, accelerated, changed,
since Federal O der Reforn?

A | think that growth was occurring before Federal O der
Reform but yeah, it has -- it has accelerated, | believe,
since Federal Order Reform because not only has it grown in
California, but it's grown in places |ike Idaho, Col orado,

New Mexi co, Texas, Western Texas specifically, so, yeah. |
believe it has accel erated.

Q Al right. So continue with the next paragraph that
starts "in considering"?

A, In considering what it means for regulated mlk prices
to be market clearing, we have to | ook beyond the bal ance of a
supply and demand of finished dairy products in the national
mar ket pl ace and focus clearly on what is happening in the
local, i.e., (state or region) market for mlk. The narkets
for finished products clear nationally, but --

JUDGE CLI FTON: Go ahead and start again.

DR SCH EK: The markets for finished dairy products clear
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nationally, but the market for mlk clears locally. |If there
I's excess cheese in one region of the country, it can be
mar keted on a Chicago Mercantile Exchange, which serves a
national market clearing function, although even in those
transactions, the price is adjusted based on |ocation of the
seller. If there is excess mlk in a particular region, it
cannot be haul ed across the country to be sold, or all of its
value wll be eaten way by the transportation cost associ ated
with shipping it to its destination. Therefore, in order for
marketing to be orderly and efficient, mlk needs to clear the
mar ket by finding a plant within reasonabl e di stance from where
it is produced. If it cannot, then it will either be dunped or
haul ed | ong di stances at great expense to find a hone.
This was the situation that faced California on

nunmer ous occasi ons begi nning in 2006, although it is nmy
understanding that simlar conditions were seen in California
in the md-1980"'s when m |k production was growi ng faster than
pl ant capacity in the state. In Figure 2 and Table 1, | have
charted an estimate of plant capacity in California against the
state's m |k production.

Q So, again, this is Exhibit 80, and Figure 2 is page 2
and Table 1 would be on pages 3, 4, and 5, correct?

A. Correct.

Q And so why don't you finish what you are saying. 1"l

ask you sone questions, but go ahead and continue after mlk
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production. So you begin with 2006, 2008 period?

A. In the 2006 to 2008 period, there were as nmany as 19
nont hs when m |k production in the state exceeded willing
capacity Necessitating novenents of mlk to out-of-state plants
| ocated in states as distant as |daho, Texas, and New Mexi co.
Fromthe second half of 2008 until 2012, plant capacity was in
excess after a decline in mlk output, the opening of new
pl ants, and the expansion of others. But by early 2012, mlk
production was outpaci ng plant capacity again, and one
cooperative had to take sone rather dramatic steps to reduce
its incomng mlk supply. MIk production exceeded pl ant
capacity once again in 2014.

JUDGE CLI FTON: Let ne stop you and we'll make that
correction. M. Elliott, we're at the bottom of page 28, the
last line, we're going to strike the "was" which is the second
wor d.

M5. ELLIOIT: kay.

JUDGE CLIFTON:  And Dr. Schiek, if you would read that
sent ence agai n.

DR SCH EK:  Sure.

M I k production exceeded plant capacity once again in
2014. M|k production has been |ower in 2015, but it renains
to be seen whether this one-year decline froman all-time high
in the state's mlk output is a trend. MIk output has

declined previously in the state, only to reach new record
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production | evels in subsequent years.
BY MR ENGLI SH.

Q So let ne stop you and let's ook at Figure 2 and Tabl e
with 1 of Exhibit 80. Does it nmake sense to tal k about the
table first and then the figure or --

A, Yeah, let's talk about the table first, because the
tabl e has the nunbers behind the figure, and | want to explain
alittle bit about how | prepared this table so that people
understand what | have done.

First off, there is no publicly avail abl e evidence of
actual plant capacities in the state. So in trying to estimte
what wi |l ling capacity was, and what | nmean by willing capacity,
Is capacity that the owners and operators of plants are willing
to make available. It may be possible for a plant to
physi cal |y produce nore product and take in nore mlk by adding
athird shift, incurring extra costs, but at least this is an
exanple, | think, of the willing capacity at given prices.

Q So wuwuldalimted on willing plant capacity, by
exampl e, be Cass 1?

A. dass 1 wuld be a good exanple of that, because, you
know, we have seen Class 1 sales decline, and |I'l| obviously
get intothat inalittle bit later as well, but it's
reasonabl e to expect there's some excess plant capacity in
Cass 1. But, you know, if you are trying to market mlk and

getting a dass 1 plant to nake a product they can't sell is
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not likely to be a, they are not likely to be willing to do
that, even though they may physically have the roomin their
pl ant .

Q Al right. So that's an exanple of limtation on
wlling plant capacity that you considered?

A Yes.

Q Gkay. So continue with what you did here and how you
didit.

A, So as we tal ked about how Dairy Market News reports
certain happenings in the fluid mlk market. |In this past year
they reported mlk selling below class in the Mdwest, they
report mlk being dunmped in Mchigan, | think. They have al so
reported mlk noving out of the state in California and mlk
not being marketed on occasion in California or mlk being
dunped.

So when we -- we had a period where m |k production was
growmng rapidly in California prior to 2006, but al so new
pl ants were being built. And those new plants were com ng
online in the early part of the 2000's, and there was adequate
roomto grow and adequate capacity. But by 2006, that growth
in additional plant capacity had been sl ow ng down and
basically comng to a halt for couple of years, but mlk
production kept grow ng.

So in early 2006, in March and April, first began

noticing USDA Dairy Market News reporting mlk |eaving the
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state to find a processing home. And we had a hearing, | think
it was in 2006, in June, on Cass 4a and 4b prices, and then
CEO of CDI, Richard Cotta, GO T-T-A was testifying and tal ked
about marketing conditions in the state. So that seemed to be
atime, |ooking at how nuch average daily production was and
the fact that some ml|k was nmoving out-of-state at that tinme, |
ki nd of devel oped a basic point in early 2006 that the maxi num
average daily capacity was around 110 mllion pounds. Because
you will see during the nmonth of March and April, nmonths that |
bel i eve USDA, | ooking back, reported mlk [eaving the state, we
were just a bit above 110 mllion pounds on a daily basis.

Q \Wereas, in the nonth of February and My, the average
daily production was |ess than the 110 and that wasn't
reported; is that correct?

A, That's correct. And after that time | was trying to
keep track of announcenents of plant openings, additions,
capacity, closings, based on press releases, reports in
newspapers, and those kinds of things.

Q Let nme be clear, did you actually start sort of
creating this back in 2006?

A Yes.

Q So this wasn't created for this particular proceeding?

A, No.

Q Ckay. So this was sonething you were doing as part of

your job in the Dairy Institute of California, observing the
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economi ¢ conditions in the marketplace, correct?

A.  Right.
Q So go on.
A. So -- so again, making adjustnents to the effect of

pl ant capacity, you can see that | had it pegged at 110 million
pounds in 2006. And then going forward, you know, | didn't
notice, didn't have any reports of plant closures or plant
openings. So, you know, it didn't change.

Again, there's no publicly available source of data for
this, so I'mjust trying to track it on ny own by |ooking at
the market information that's out there. And then you see the
first change was an announcenent that Gol den Cheese Pl ant,

Gol den Cheese in Southern California in Corona, was going to
reduce, in Septenber, the anount of mlk that was comng into
the plant, and then later in the year, you can see also they
cl osed the plant, now --

JUDGE CLI FTON: Now, that was Septenber of what year?

DR SCH EK:  2007.
BY MR ENGLI SH.

Q D dthey -- where did you cone up with the 3 mllion
pounds? WAs that --

A. So here's the, where there may be sone difference in
terms of what folks who operate the plants, they will say,
"Well, you have got 3 mllion pounds here and 2 mllion pounds

there, and we were only running maybe four mllion, four and a
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half mllion, so we didn't really lose five mllion." Five
mllion was just the nunber in the industry that we were
originally told, it is sort of the conmon know edge of the

i ndustry, that the capacity of that plant when it opened was
five mllion pounds. Now, sonetimes announced capacity and
actual capacity could be different, so there could be sone
differences in these nunbers, I'lIl freely admt that. This is
just my best attenpt to track plant capacity in the state.

Q Ckay. So you say what happened was CGol den Cheese first
cut back, then it closed. You are also show ng another entity,
what, Provision Foods?

A. Right. Provision Foods purchased a plant that Kraft
Foods had basically sold, they consolidated their operations
into a different plant, and so there was a plant avail abl e,
this conpany, Provisions Foods, bought and operated the plant,
and had the capacity of roughly a mllion pounds of mlk a day.
They were, initially when they started, they were running an
old dryer and buying m |k fromothers who had surplus mlk to
sal e.

Q So then it looks like the same time Gol den Cheese
cl osed conpl etely, DFA Hughson nonet hel ess added pl ant
capacity; is that correct?

JUDGE CLI FTON:  Your voice dropped off.
MR. ENGLI SH: And the court reporter has nmentioned that a

nunber of times, and | keep trying not to have it happen.

3644

BARKLEY

TRANSCRIPT OF PROCEEDINGS-VOL. XVIII Court Reporters



© o0 ~N oo o b~ w DN P

NN NN R R R R R R R R R
g A W N P O © O N O O M W N B O

JUDGE CLI FTON: So when you said, Hughson, say agai n what
you said before you said "right?"
BY MR ENGLI SH.

Q Wll, what | was trying to get at was that it |ooks
i ke Golden Cheese closed, if not sinultaneously, certainly
during the same nonth that DFA Hughson added vol ume. So the
net effect was one mllion pounds, because you lost two mllion
pounds OF CGol den Cheese, but picked up one mllion pounds of
DFA Hughson; is that correct? That's why you dropped only one
mllion, from108 to 1077

A Right. W are keeping track of net effects here, for
the nost part, so we have, you know, we had Provisions Foods
addi ng, we had DFA Hughson addi ng or expanding, or mnaking
changes to increase the surplus in their plant, and then we had
the closure of Golden all around the sane tine.

Q Ckay.

A.  And then the big change that occurred that year was,

CDI added their first Visalia plant around that same tine.

Q So if you track through the rest the notes on the right
hand col um, that expl ains your changes in which such changes
occur, for daily affects of California plant capacity, which is
the last colum of nunbers, correct?

A, That's correct. And so that is -- that is one number
that's on Figure 2. That's the red, | think in the graph it is

the red line that has long solid sections where it doesn't

3645

BARKLEY

TRANSCRIPT OF PROCEEDINGS-VOL. XVIII Court Reporters



© o0 ~N oo o b~ w DN P

NN NN R R R R R R R R R
g A W N P O © O N O O M W N B O

change, and then it kind of noves in step-w se fashion.

Q Ckay.

A. The blue line, so that's the average daily maxi mum
effective or wlling plant capacity. And then the blue line is
the average daily mlk production. And that's conputed by
using data fromUSDA's M Ik Production Report for California,
and dividing by the nunber of days in the month. So you can
see fromthe graph, that there were periods in, you know,
starting in 2006, at the very beginning couple of nmonths, there
where the, | guess | should have made the line thinner, but a
coupl e of months where the production piqued above that
ceiling, and then a significant period in 2007, 2008, then a
| ong period where capacity was nore than sufficient for a

production, because in the wake of 2009 financial collapse, the

dairy market prices, comodity prices fell, and mlk prices
fell, and so production in California contracted. So you can
see that in the chart as well. But then, you know, after we

got through that period, 2009, nmarket prices began recovering.
You can see production started noving upward.

And then beginning in 2012, and couple of tines in the
| ast couple of years it's piqued above that capacity as well.
So that's -- that's kind of how !l put it together. | would
like to point out, it's very difficult to track these things,
and obviously, the base point for establishing this was in

2006. That's quite awhile ago now. But | would sort of drew
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heart fromthis Exhibit 51, Eric Erba's outlook -- Dr. Eric
Erba's outlook, Eric with a "c" -- for 2010, and he estinated
California plant processing plant capacity. And let's see
here, | think his nunber, if | added these bars correctly on,
the version | have has no pages on it. Exhibit 51, it is the
section on processing plant capacity, and there's a chart,
Figure 5 in that docunent.

By adding those mllion pounds m |k per day nunbers
together, | came up with 120.2, and that was, | believe, in the
fall of 2010 when he was doing that.

Q And your nunber is 120.5?

A, And ny nunber is 120.5. So we're pretty close, doing
t he same work independently | think, although he probably has a
better know edge of that because he's nore aware of what their
processing capabilities are, but the nunbers were close.

Q Al right. So is that what you want to tell us?
Actually, let ne ask one nore question about Figure 2. There's
been, you have been here the whole hearing right?
Congrat ul ati ons.

A Yes.

Q There's been testinony, there was di scussion about
hearing records at CDFA, there's been other discussion about
when m |k noved out-of-state. Wen, for instance, in the time
period that you are |ooking at woul d nove above the red in late

2011, early 2012, or late 2013, early 2014. 1s that consistent
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W th when you know that m |k was noving out of the state?
A, It's consistent with what | know, yeah
Q Al right. So we're back on Exhibit 79, and we're now
to a new section called Current Differences Between California
Cass 2/3 Prices. You want to pick up there for a few mnutes
before we're done for the day?
JUDGE CLIFTON: California class, what did you say?
MR ENGLISH | said between California class 2/3 prices.
JUDGE CLI FTON: Is that where we are?
MR, ENGISH Yes, | think that's where we are, your Honor.
He had just finished the paragraph on plant capacity, it ended
on page 29. So we're near the top of page 29.
DR SCH EK:  Yes.
JUDGE CLIFTON: Al right, good.
DR. SCH EK: New section:
Current Differences Between the California Gass 2/3 Prices and
FMMO Class Il Prices are not Disorderly.

Cass 2 and 3 prices in California have been
established relative to Cass 4a, rather than Gass IV or Cass
[l, for the purpose of naintaining a reasonable sound econom c
rel ati onship anong the classes in California. |If Cass 2 and 3
prices are set too high relative to Cass 4a, the result could
encour age substitution of nonfat dry milk and anhydrous mlk
fat for use in manufacturing these products, instead of using

fresh cream skim condensed, and/or bulk mlk.

3648

BARKLEY

TRANSCRIPT OF PROCEEDINGS-VOL. XVIII Court Reporters



© o0 ~N oo o b~ w DN P

NN NN R R R R R R R R R
g A W N P O © O N O O M W N B O

BY MR ENGLI SH
Q So you deleted an a between "encourage" and
"substitution.”
JUDGE CLIFTON:. So Ms. Elliott, on page 29, the fourth |ine
down fromthe heading, we're just going to strike "OF", of.
MS. ELLIOIT: Ckay.
DR SCH EK: To preserve these sonmewhat hi gher uses for
dairy farmers through pooling, Cass 2 and 3 nust not be priced
so high as, so high as to encourage dairy ingredient

substitution. The same logic applies to the relationship

between Class IV and Cass Il. However, it should al so be
noted that because Cass Il mlk received at stand-al one d ass
Il plants, or plants with Class Il at |ower usage, it is not

required to be pool ed, the establishment of different regul ated

prices under the CSO and under the FMMO cannot be consi dered

di sorderly. If it were the case that orderly marketing
requires the same price to be paid for dass Il mlk regardl ess
of location, USDA would require that all Cass Il plants be

pool ed. The fact is, they do not.

While it may be the case that differences in O ass |
and dass 2 and Cass 3 pricing leads to sone ability for
nul ti-state manufacturers to engage in price arbitrage by
produci ng nmore product in states where the regulated price is
lower, this ability is limted by manufacturing capacity in

each location. |If California' s average price advantage had
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been especially large, we would expect to see California C ass
2 and 3 manufacturing expanded. Expanding. But there is no
evidence that this is the case. |In sunmary, proponents of
Proposal 1 have little evidence that differences between FMMO
Cass Il and California Cass 2 and 3 prices have led to either
di sorderly marketing, either by nmaking it more difficult for
Cass 1 plants to obtain mlk, or by encouragi ng uneconom c

m | k novenents.

BY MR ENGLI SH.

Q W have |ike one section paragraph maybe, and then it
is longer, so naybe we can get that one paragraph done, your
Honor, and be done for the day, because the next section is
| onger after that.

So why don't you read the next section, Current
Differences Between the California Class 1 prices.

A Yes.

Current Differences Between California dass 1 Prices and FMVD
Cass | Prices are not Disorderly

Class 1 prices, |likewise, need to be in an appropriate
relationship to other classes within the market. California's
Cass 1 prices are sonewhat |ower than FMMO Class | -- it
shoul d be prices in.

JUDGE CLIFTON: M. Elliott, so we're on page 30, and two
l'ines down fromthe heading we're going to insert some words.

And so after the phrase Cass I, how should it read,
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Dr. Schiek?

DR SCH EK: Prices in contiguous states.

MS. ELLIOIT: We're just adding prices?

DR. SCH EK: Prices in.

JUDGE CLIFTON: First insertion is "prices in" before
contiguous, and the second insertion is states after --

DR SCH EK: States is already there.

JUDGE CLIFTON: States is on the next line. Thank you.
Good. So Ms. Elliott is way ahead of me, which is great. Al
right. So all we have added is prices in.

DR SCH EK: Correct.

JUDGE CLI FTON:  And woul d you read that sentence fromthe
begi nning, Dr. Schiek?

DR SCH EK: Yes. California's Gass 1 prices are somewhat
| ower than FMMO Cass | prices in contiguous states, but the
potential for the regulated price differences to lead to
di sorderly marketing (attracting mlk in bulk and packaged form
that is not needed and resulting in inefficient mlk novenent)
is addressed by keeping Class 1 prices in California from
exceedi ng those in surrounding states, something CDFA has been
proactive about. Bulk mlk that is not priced under CSO s has
been entering California and has continued to enter, but those
vol unes are not increasing, but rather declining. And you can
| ook at Table 2.

BY MR ENG.I SH:
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Q And table 2 is just page 6 of Exhibit 80, you basically
took Exhibit 61 introduced by CDFA, Table X, and you took the
nonthly data and added it together to show an annual, correct?

A. Correct.

Q Just finish the paragraph

A Ckay.

JUDGE CLI FTON: Before you go onto the next sentence, when
you have California state orders being plural in this section,
why is that?

DR SCH EK: Yeah. Probably should be consistent, because
we think of it as the California State Order, but really there
are nultiple orders. There is the, under the authority of the
Dairy Marketing Section, there's an order for Southern
California that pertains to mninmumpricing, there's an order
for Northern California that pertains to m ninum pricing.
There's also an order for mlk pooling that is in both areas,
so there's actually three orders, | guess, that we could talk
about. I think it, for sinplicity, we probably ought to just
refer toit collectively as the California State O der, but
technically there's three.

JUDGE CLIFTON: Al right. | like that you have it the way
you do. If you would begin that sentence again with bulk m|k?

DR. SCH EK: Bulk mlk that is not priced under the CSO s
has been entering California and has continued to enter, but

t hose vol umes are not increasing, but rather declining.
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(Table 2.) If lower Cass 1 prices in California are
sufficient to encourage packaged mlk to nove out-of-state and
into FWMO marketing areas where it could undercut Cass | sales
fromprocessors regul ated by those FWO s --

JUDGE CLIFTON: M. Elliott, we'll just nake that plural,
do you see where he is?

MS. ELLIOIT: Yes.

DR SCH EK: Partial regulation exists as a renmedy to
ensure that California Gass 1 plants cannot press an advantage
created by |ower regulated prices. Consequently, |lower Cass 1
prices in California, as they have been applied in recent
years, have not, and do not, result in disorderly marketing
condi tions.

JUDCGE CLIFTON. Al right. So we have conpl eted page 30,
of Exhibit 79.

And is there anything to be announced before we stop
for the day? Yes, M. Beshore?

MR. BESHORE: Well, I'mjust interested in the plan for
tonorrow, since Dr. Schiek is not conpleted. M. Metzger is
here, so | believe, if | understood right, wanted to testify
tomorrow and |'mjust interested in.

MR ENGLISH Well, | think we're going to put M. Metzger
on first in the nmorning, and then we'll go back to Dr. Schi ek.

JUDGE CLIFTON: Do you anticipate, M. English, that

Dr. Schiek will consune the rest of tonorrow?

3653

BARKLEY

TRANSCRIPT OF PROCEEDINGS-VOL. XVIII Court Reporters



© o0 ~N oo o b~ w DN P

NN NN R R R R R R R R R
g A W N P O © O N O O M W N B O

MR ENG.| SH

JUDGE CLI FTON:

MR, ENG.I SH:

| have no idea.

Ve will

| f he does not?

have sonebody.

JUDGE CLIFTON: Do we know who?

MR ENGISH No, | do not know.

MR, BESHORE: Wuld that be on the ESL issue or on the
orderly marketing?

MR. ENGLISH: There's definitely going to be, at some

point, ESL testinony, if it is ready to go by the tine

Dr. Schiek is done, that would be the logical flow [If not,

because |'mnot going to | eave gaps, | will try to have anot her

W tness on disorderly marketing, at least that's ny goal.

MR BESHORE: Not sure,

t hough.

MR ENG.| SH

Vel l,

| "' m novi ng pi eces.

JUDGE CLIFTON: M. Vetne?

MR. VETNE
Cal vin Covington wi ||

tonmorrow or Wednesday,

My under st andi ng, your Honor,

is that
be coming in tomorrow in hopes to testify

because he's going on a hunanitarian

trip to Lebanon on Friday.

JUDGE CLIFTON: Ckay. Good. Al right. Then, I'm going

to ask for sone help tonmorrow norning. | would like to have a
table set up for a witness stand just correctly in front of ny

bench, with a mcrophone. All right. Good. Thank you all

And we now go off record at 5:02

(Wher eupon, the evening recess was taken.)
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